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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

Dear Shareholders, Partners and Colleagues,

2024 marks the 20th anniversary of the listing of Shandong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (“Weigao”
or the “Company”) in Hong Kong. Through two decades
of development, Weigao has grown to become an industry-
leading enterprise in the medical devices and consumables
sector in China, and its market share and position in the
industry have improved tremendously in various business
lines including clinical care consumables, orthopaedic
consumables, pharmaceutical packaging and blood
technology.

Compounded by various factors, the results growth of
the Company was under pressure last year. However, the
Company still secured hard-won achievements. Although
fluctuations were seen in operating results, however, we
are pleased to see strong sales growth across our major
products and also continuous rapid growth in our market
share. Despite such short-term headwinds, the management
focused on high-quality development and a farsighted
and long-term layout, which has underpinned Weigao'’s
sustainable growth in the future.

As a leading domestic platform-based medical devices
company, Weigao enjoys significant competitiveness in the
following aspects:

1) Outstanding corporate culture and
distinguished market reputation and brand
influence.

The Company always practices the corporate culture
of conscience, sincerity and loyalty to meet clinical
demand. With rigid end-user market demand, the
implementation of volume-based procurements
and efficiency improvement in the industrial chain
for medical devices and consumables have put the
Company in a highly favourable position to rapidly
expand its market share and enhance its position and
influence in the industry.

2) Advantage of an open, inclusive and shared
platform.

The Company promotes the synergy, cooperation and
sharing of resources among various segments to fully
revitalize the flexibility and vibrancy of all segments.
Through strategic recalibration, the Company actively
cultivates and deploys new business segments to foster
them into new growth points.
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3)

4)

Solid manufacturing foundations.

The Company enjoys distinct advantages in automation,
materials science, cost control, capacity layout and
quality control and fully meets the demand for
volume-based procurements on price and quality. The
Company will continue to improve the standard of
digital management in production and manufacturing
and actively deploy new materials, new technologies
and new processes to maintain and enhance the
competitiveness of its manufacturing business.

Customer resources and channel coverage.

Thanks to diligent efforts over the years, the Company
has developed a distinguished marketing regime
catered to the PRC market, featuring in particular
a large, comprehensive network for direct sales to
hospitals. Through further integration of sales channels,
its advantage in channels has been enhanced. The
Company continues to step up with the improvement
of product portfolios through R&D, product cooperation
with domestic and foreign parties, and M&As to bring
its channel strengths into full play.

In early July 2023, the Company held a strategic workshop
and put forward the guiding principle of “Three Changes”.

Change in industrial concept: The Company shifted
from the original concept of product mix adjustment
to facilitate industrial structure adjustment to the
concept of industrial structure adjustment to guide
product mix adjustment, thereby driving the adjustment
of institutional structure. By choosing what is good
and holding fast to it, the Company strengthens the
principal business of medical care and devotes itself to
human health and decent well-being.

Change in governance model: The Company shifted
from the current independent corporate governance
structure to a new model of intensive and shared
digital platform-based governance, thereby achieving
compliant and highly efficient development. By
achieving mastery through a comprehensive study of
the subject and a thorough understanding and focus
on customer demands, the Company works together to
construct an ecological chain of medical industry.

3)

4)

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITREHREE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

e Change in value embodiment. The Company shifted
from the existing focus on improving the interests of
the Company and all shareholders to the mutual benefit
and sharing of all Weigao people and stakeholders,
eventually reflecting the common value of the society.
The Company accomplishes its corporate mission to
create a community with a shared future.

Such Three Changes guide the sustainable and high-
quality development of Weigao and are more aligned with
the requirements of modern environmental, social and
governance ("ESG").

The workshop further emphasized the platform-based
strategy. The Company continues to systematically build the
platform-based operation foundation and capabilities, the
platform-based cornerstone structure and framework, and
enhances the security and supporting role of organization
and operation in strategy implementation. Leveraging
the opportunities in digital transformation, the Company
establishes and improves financial, human resources, supply
chain, R&D and other platforms at the listed company level,
strengthens business synergy among various segments, and
fosters the betterment of new business growth points.

The Company continues to promote sales platform
integration, focus its marketing resources on core customer
development and maintenance, improve the product
penetration rate of key accounts (especially tertiary
hospitals), and increase the contribution rate of single
customers.

We continue to develop new markets, capture the
tremendous opportunities of volume-based procurement,
rapidly increase the customer coverage rate in county-level
hospitals, establish new offices at the prefecture level and
city level, and strengthen customer service for county-level
hospitals and below.
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On the R&D strategy front: The government continued
to encourage innovation in medical devices. The R&D
and approval of new products have been accelerated,
and medical device innovative companies have shown
unprecedented vitality. As the economic cycle changes,
certain start-ups have also faced multiple challenges. The
Company seizes the opportunity to increase in-house
R&D investment and accelerates in-house R&D progress.
Meanwhile, we strategically approached and collaborated
with these innovative start-ups to accelerate new product
launching and market access. The Company is accelerating
the improvement of its product portfolio in response to the
change in time.

On the internationalisation strategy aspect, we have
integrated the overseas advantages of various segments
and established an overseas platform under centralised
management that has enormous potential after launching it.

On the ESG front, in December 2023, we were selected for
the list of pilot programs for the construction of green, low-
carbon and high-quality development zones in Shandong
Province. As the first medical “green bond” client of the
World Bank, the sustainable development strategy of
the Company has received strong endorsement and high
recognition by the World Bank.

We put the core corporate culture of “Conscience,
Integrity and Loyalty” into practice when discharging our
corporate and social responsibility. Working together with
nearly 10,000 employees and their families at the Weihai
headquarters, we jointly created “Blissful Weihai” and once
again contributed to Weihai being shortlisted as “China’s the
most blissful city in 2023".

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE
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We continue to enhance our corporate governance. We insist
on compliant management, abide by laws and regulations,
fight against corruption, uphold integrity and advocate
fair competition. We enhance transparency and strengthen
engagement in the capital market. In active response to
shareholders’ demands, we increase the dividend payout
ratio. We stay focused on gender equality and increase the
proportion of female members on the Board and senior
management. The Group actively provides sound and equal
job opportunities for nearly 1,000 disabled people and helps
them adapt to society.

We remain fully confident about the long-term development
of the medical device industry and have made an extensive
and long-term layout to achieve the long-term and
sustainable development of the Company.

Once again, | would like to express my gratitude to all
shareholders, partners and colleagues for their concerted
efforts and continuous support.

Long Jing
Chairman
26 March 2024
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

[=a=]
=
For the year ended 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
HE+-B=+—HIEE
“E-hE T TFE T -5 _T-__F ZBIZHF
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(B E5) (B E5) <=} (IR E5)
RESULTS E§
Revenue WA 10,718,232 11,792,790 13,314,046 13,747,473 13,229,453
Profit before taxation BRFD AT & A 2,332,315 2,701,667 2,933,274 3,385,739 2,369,187
Taxation Ria (340,740) (349,924) (430,829) (435,589)  (307,585)
Profit for the year AN E A 1,991,575 2,351,742 2,502,445 2,950,150 2,061,602
Profit for the year FATHRIE
attributable to: FEAEER] :
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZF =N 1,916,278 2,226,367 2,320,595 2,764,093 2,001,906
Non-controlling interests JEERER 75,297 120,254 181,850 186,057 59,696
1,991,575 2,346,621 2,502,445 2,950,150 2,061,602
As at 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
®w+=-—A=+—8H
“E-hE E%HE - -5 ZEZZ
ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT AREBFR
(&5 (< E5) (B E75) (=E5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZHERAE
Total assets BB E 27,037,426 28,243,727 30,740,714 33,402,242 33,670,231
Total liabilities S =R (9,529,277)  (9,184,650)  (9,614,597)  (9,819,957) (9,677,526)
Non-controlling interests JEER (811,436) (845,108)  (1,640,359)  (1,815,419) (1,543,584)
Equity attributable KABHEB A
to owners of the Company e 16,696,713 18,213,969 19,485,758 21,766,866 22,449,121
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

Revenue

WA

RMB'm
ARBEET

10,718,232

13,747,473
13,314,046 13,229,453

11,792,790

//A v Za //A //A-

Profit Attributable to
Owners of the Company

TATIEE AEMNER
RMB’'m _
ARKRERT 2,764,093
2,226,367 2320595
2,001,906
1,916,278
O & N & A V0,
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Gross Profit

ER
RMB'm
ARKBEET
7,516,316 7.305,732
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Basic Earnings Per Share
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RMB
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

Revenue Breakdown Y A BR4H
% of sales
HEML
@® Sale of medical device products
HEREBWER 50.85%
® Sale of orthopaedic products $HEFH ER 9.61%
Sale of interventional products SH& T AE & 16.36%
Sale of pharma packaging products
HEEREORKER 15.30%
Sale of blood management products
HEMREEER 7.88%
Segment Profit Breakdown 4 &R FBH 4M
% of segment
_ EZO_23: gprofi‘t
— BB LE
® Medical device products BE3RHER 48.65%
@® Orthopaedic products & & & 3.42%
® Interventional products 77 A E 5 1.08%
® Pharma packaging products Z G 8 E R 37.48%
© Blood management products Il & &2 & 5.55%
© Others Hfth 3.82%
Segmental revenues (RMB’000)
FEBBA (AEREF )
2023 2022 % Change
—EZ=ZF T gEFAENL
Sale of medical device products iHE BEaR AR 6,727,859 6,567,676 2.4%
Sale of orthopaedic products tHE SR E & 1,271,203 2,038,168 (37.6)%
Sale of interventional products HEN AZE 2,164,588 1,938,237 11.7%
Sale of pharma packaging products HEZEMBEER 2,023,809 2,105,432 (3.9)%
Sale of blood management products HEMREEEM 1,041,994 1,097,960 (5.1)%

13,229,453 13,747,473 (3.8)%




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B E
Geographic breakdown 3h & B 4H
_ 2023
— == % of sales
SHE L L
® PRC [ 74.3%
@® United States =H 9.8%
©  EMEA BUM >~ R IENM 4.6%
Others EAth 11.3%
% of sales
SHE ML L
® PRC P 77.0%
@® United States =E 9.3%
© EMEA BUN -~ R IEM 4.1%
Others E1th 9.6%
Segmental revenues (RMB’'000)
FEBBA (ARETFT)
2023 2022 % Change
—EZ= —F—— EHHSL
PRC F 9,832,038 10,582,343 (7.1)%
United States ESE 1,300,576 1,272,330 22%
EMEA BUM ~ R ER R FEM 611,304 563,217 8.5%
Others H1h 1,485,535 1,329,583 11.7%

13,229,453
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Optimisation of product mix

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year"”), the
gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 53.1% of
last year to 50.2%, which was mainly attributable to the
price reduction for certain products and change in product
mix.

The existing major products of the Group under each
business line are as follows:

e  The medical device products business includes clinical
care, medical testing equipment, anesthesia and
surgical-related products

e The pharmaceutical packaging business includes
prefilled syringes and pre-filled flush syringes

e The orthopaedic business includes trauma, spinal
implant, artificial joints, sports injury, soft tissue
repair, reconstruction implant, orthopaedic filling, and
orthopaedic related surgical tools

° Interventional business includes tumor intervention,
vascular intervention, and interventional imaging

e The blood management business includes blood
collection, storage, separation, and sterilization of
consumables and equipment
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

Optimisation of product mix (continued) miGIBEERE @

14

During the Year, the medical device products
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB6,727,859,000, representing an increase of 2.4%
over last year. The higher sales base of supplies for
epidemic prevention and control in the same period of
last year affected the growth rate. The price of various
products was reduced in volume-based procurements
across different regions. However, the Group continued
to maintain a dominant position in this market segment
and continued to increase its market share as the sales
volume of major products grew rapidly and the market
share increased significantly, which compensated the
impact of the price reduction on revenue.

During the Year, the pharmaceutical packaging
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB2,023,809,000, representing a decrease of 3.9%
over last year. Shipment volume for prefilled syringes
decreased year-on-year resulting from the high base
of orders from COVID-19 vaccine packaging, and
the average selling price also declined due to the
adjustment of product and customer structure, resulting
in a decrease in revenue. As an industry leader, we
continued to enhance our service capability to bio-
pharmaceutical downstream customers and improved
customers’ dependence. Sales volume of flushing
syringes grew swiftly, exploring the potential of the
downstream hospital market.

During the Year, the orthopaedic business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,271,203,000,
representing a decrease of 37.6% over last year, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the ex-
factory price of the products caused by the volume-
based procurements. The terminal surgical implantation
volume of major orthopaedic products experienced high
growth, continued to increase market share.

During the Year, the interventional business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB2,164,588,000,
representing an increase of 11.7% over last year.
Global business progressed in a steady manner, and
the business in China continued to increase with great
potential.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Research and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group obtained
product registration certificates for 115 new products in the
PRC. The research and development for 57 products were
completed for which applications for product registration
certificates are underway. 163 new patents were obtained
and 166 new patents are under the application. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group had over 818 product
registration certificates and 965 patents, of which 120 were
patents on invention, in the PRC.

For the overseas market, 3 new patents are under
application and the research and development for 163
products were completed for which application for product
registration certificates are underway. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group had over 794 product
registration certificates and 192 patents.

The strategy of placing a strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage on its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.

In view of the need for strategic adjustments to the product
mix, the Group continued to increase efforts on the
improvement and subdivision of product layout in existing
product series, so as to maintain its leading position in
research and development capability in China.

In addition, the prices of major products decreased due
to the impact of volume-based procurements. To adapt to
the demand for cost reduction, the Group has strategically
“reduced costs through R&D and design” and upgraded the
design of some of its major products to better improve its
competitiveness in the market and increase its profitability.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total research
and development expenses amounted to approximately
RMB592,850,000 (2022: approximately RMB556,442,000),
representing 4.5% (2022: 4.0%) of the revenue of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

Production

During the Year, to constantly expand production capacity,
the Group continued to expand its production facilities,
including factories of syringes and prefilled syringes to satisfy
the sales demand for future market growth. Meanwhile, the
Group proactively promoted the improvement of production
processes and enhanced intellectualization and automation
of production equipment. The production costs were reduced
through efficiency enhancement and scientific management,
maintaining the Company’s overall profitability.

Sales and Marketing

During the Year, the Group consolidated the marketing
management system and further adhered to the strategy of
sales channel integration and product mix adjustment and
focused on marketing resources on customer development
and maintenance in the core healthcare market. The
Group achieved substantial results in key client accounts
management. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group newly added 201 hospitals, 5 blood stations, 59 other
medical institutions, and 402 distributors to its PRC customer
base, and the Group has a PRC customer base of 9,770 in
aggregate (including 3,802 hospitals, 419 blood stations,
1,178 other medical units, and 4,371 distributors) and an
overseas customer base of 7,530 in aggregate (including
3,265 hospitals, 2,022 other medical units, and 2,243
distributors).

&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIREsTsm AT
SHERTBISHE @

Sales and Marketing (continued)

KEBEMmEAFMEEERXFHL

Sales comparison by geographical regions when compared

with the last year is set out as follows: mr
Turnover by Geographical Information EXRAMEEH
Increase or
decrease over
corresponding
2023 2022 period %
—FZ= TEITHF BEHER%
Regions HE RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR®TT
The PRC Ealay
— Eastern and Central —EERMEEAR 5,252,878 5,355,878 (1.9%)
— Northern —2EdL 1,869,986 2,215,310 (15.6%)
— Southern —EF 925,279 1,036,647 (10.7%)
— Northeastern —&db 837,745 991,513 (15.5%)
— Southwestern —7mE 723,722 731,899 (1.1%)
— Northwestern —7adb 222,428 251,096 (11.4%)
PRC sub-total EIA 9,832,038 10,582,343 (7.1%)
Overseas NEPAN
- USA — X 1,300,576 1,272,330 2.2%
- Asia — oM 1,086,374 930,581 16.7%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa —BUM ~ FRER A FEM 611,304 563,217 8.5%
— Others —Hh 399,161 399,002 -
Overseas sub-total BININET 3,397,415 3,165,130 7.3%
Total “Est 13,229,453 13,747,473 (3.8%)

RENEG BB T AEERETFHN
BEN-REN RS TEERHNER

The integration of sales channels has strengthened
the Group’s market penetration and influence over the
customers. It enhanced sales contribution per customer and X > FEHEZLERNEREEXR
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end EAEENHWAREN—BEBETEF
customers and was an important approach in generating E§ o

revenue growth for the Group.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmA DN

Sales and Marketing (continued)

Turnover by Geographical Information (continued)

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor in
enhancing the results for the Year. Comparison of revenue of
principal products with that in last year is as follows:

HE RIS (

—=
=]

&)

EERAEERR (B

EmGBNARRENFRERNS —
BEEERZ STEEMBAREFR
EEIEman T

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=t+-HLEE

For the six months ended 31 December

B#E+ZA=+-HL/ER

Over Over
corresponding corresponding
Product category ERER 2023 2022 period 2023 2022 period
ZBZZE C—T_”E ¥EH ZE-zZf _ZT-°F K
RMB’000 RMB'000 %  RMB'000 RMB'000 %

ARBTR AREBTR AEBTRT ARETR
Medical device products BEZNED 6,727,859 6,567,676 24 3,213,519 3,126,420 47
Pharma packaging products ERGEER 2,023,809 2,105,432 (3.9 962,690 1,049,258 (83)
Blood management mEEE 1,041,994 1,097,960 (5.1) 518,506 608,477 (14.8)
Orthopaedic products BRER 1,271,203 2,038,168 (37.6) 474,100 839,358 (43.5)
Interventional products NAER 2,164,588 1,938,237 117 1,102,938 1,045,271 55
Total BE 13,229,453 13,747,473 (38) 6,331,753 6,668,784 (5.1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of
12,519 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with last year is as follows:

EEEFT A DM
ADER

RWIE_=F+_B=+—H &~&EH
HEM12519%EE B AF LA
FI M T

Department &P

2023 2022

—FZ= S

Production gE 6,183 6,281
Sales and marketing HE RTISZHE 3,265 2,896
Research and development bff 22 1,370 1,272
Finance and administration M RITIE 626 596
Quiality control HEEH 653 607
Management I=$i 336 383
Purchasing g 86 87
Total 4a =t 12,519 12,122

There are a total of 1,337 overseas employees who reside in
Hong Kong, USA and Europe. Other employees of the Group
are resided in Mainland China. During the Year, the total
cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,209,253,000 (2022:
approximately RMB2,213,500,000).

Remuneration System

The Group’s remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in the human resources market.
The remuneration policy so determined has become the
basis of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of directors is proposed
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the directors and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of directors is proposed by the Board subject
to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

BIMBEN,337% ) DRIREBERE
EUNEET AERNEMEE SN
RAEAR e ER AEBEETHE
B ERESHNRAEEBEBOS AR
#%2,209,253,000c (ZE - "F 1 49%
AR#2,213,500,0007T) ©
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EIERE DRI E RN % WAARERR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW B4 7% O] §E
Results E 3

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded a turnover for the year of approximately
RMB13,229,453,000, representing a decrease of
3.8% over the previous financial year. Net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB2,001,906,000 (2022: approximately
RMB2,764,093,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 27.6% as compared with the previous
year. Net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company (excluding extraordinary items) was
approximately RMB1,982,432,000 (2022: approximately
RMB2,783,452,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 28.8% over the previous year.

BHE_ZT_=Z#+"A=+—H
TEE FEZSEXBREENARE
13,229,453,00070 ' R E—0AEFE T
[£3.8% c AAB A ABGLAFOAR
#%2,001,906,000c (ZZE - —"F : A
E#%2,764,093,00070) "B E—FE T
[E4927.6% c Rt SR IBE AR B %
B AEEAR 4 AR 11,982,432,0007T
(ZE % 9 A\R2,783,452,000
7o) B E—FE T FE28.8%

20

Financial Summary REHEE
2023 2022 Increase
—E-= s _F (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB'000 & (R
ARBTR ARBTT %
Turnover EERE 13,229,453 13,747,473 (3.8%)
Gross profit EF 6,643,033 7,305,732 (9.1%)
Net profit attributable to KABIHER NELAT]
the owners of the Company 2,001,906 2,764,093 (27.6%)
Net profit attributable to RErHHRIBE AR E]
the owners of the Company wmE A\ ELAR
(excluding extraordinary items) 1,982,432 2,783,452 (28.8%)

During the Year, extraordinary items include the post-tax
gain of product liability claim including insurance recovery
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB19,474,000
(extraordinary items in 2022: Weigao Blood Purification
issued new shares to investors, and the Company's equity
was diluted from 28.0871% to 26.55%, resulting in a gain
of approximately RMB100,398,000. The Company recorded
a post-tax gain of approximately RMB57,549,000 regarding
the taking up by the government of the using rights of 2
state-owned construction sites and the buildings, structures,
and other ancillary facilities thereon; and the post-tax
expenses of litigation attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB177,306,000).

FROBHREEALAADEE AEM
—EEREXRE (BERREE) 2
MBEWRDHOARR19,474,0005T (=
ZEITFRHERE  HesDREFEL
MKEREEZRTHR ARBZRKRER
28.087 1% EE26.55% B U ZE 49 A
EE1100,398,0007T ; S W E2FRE A
R R M EEEY - EBEY
REMK BRI KABRERE KR
£ AR #857,549,0007T ; RAATIHE
ANEH—BHFRZREEROAR
177,306,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and bank balance
amounted to approximately RMB6,988,731,000. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, the net cash flow from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,798,529,000, representing a sound cash flow position.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total interest
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB272,971,000 (2022: total interest expenses of
approximately RMB191,401,000).

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as of the end of 2023
reduced to 18.6% (2022: 20.6%).

As of 31 December 2023, the total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,819,414,000 (2022: net
cash of approximately RMB2,473,089,000). The gearing
ratio represents total debt as a percentage of total capital.
Total debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital is
calculated as the Group’s shareholders’ fund.

BEEmEDN
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group’s purchases and sales are mainly conducted
in the PRC and the United States. Assets, liabilities, and
transactions in the PRC are denominated in RMB, while
overseas assets and transactions are mainly denominated
in US dollars. Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
outstanding borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group has adopted foreign currency hedging
instruments to better manage foreign exchange risk.
The objective of the hedge is to minimise the volatility
of the RMB expenditures expected to be incurred in the
future to meet foreign currency liabilities. The Group’s risk
management policy is to partially hedge the forecasted cash
flows in foreign currencies by considering the appropriate
hedging instruments and costs of hedging. The Group uses
foreign exchange structured derivative financial contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risk. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group had not encountered any
material difficulty due to the fluctuation in exchange rates
nor had it affected its funds for operation purposes.

Due to the fluctuation in exchange rates, the Company
realised a foreign exchange loss equivalent to approximately
RMB16,602,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: foreign exchange gain equivalent to approximately
RMB138,325,000).

Material Investments/Future Material
Investment Plans

1. During the Year, the Group continued to invest
approximately RMB644,632,000 in the purchase
of properties and production facilities and plant
construction for the purpose of enhancing the overall
construction of the industrial zone for the Group’s
medical consumables.

2. The Group planned to invest RMB770,000,000 to
acquire the 38.5% interest in the Songyuan Healthcare
Industry Fund (fAJREREEAEFEESE), which focuses
on the investments in the medical and healthcare sector
mainly covering medical devices, biopharmaceuticals,
medical services and rehabilitation and elderly care,
of which a total of RMB308,000,000 has been
contributed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material Investments/Future Material
Investment Plans (continued)

3. In January 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic, a subsidiary
of the Company, acquired 100% equity interest
in Shandong Weigao Newlife Medical Device Co.,
Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company, which is
principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of tissue repair product lines, at
a consideration of RMB1,030,000,000. The transfer
price is payable in installments, with a payment of
RMB721,000,000 during the year and a payment of
RMB103,000,000 will be expected to be made in 2024.

4. In 2024, the Group planned to invest approximately
RMB200,000,000 in a new production line for pre-filled
syringes, which is under the construction process, and is
expected to be successively put in operation by 2025.

5. In 2024, the Group planned to further invest
approximately RMB320,000,000 in the upgrading and
reconfiguration of the single-use consumables and
orthopaedic consumables equipment to further enhance
the level of production automation.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no future plans involving significant
investments or capital assets acquisition as of 31 December
2023.

Capital Commitment

As of 31 December 2023, the capital commitment
including acquisition, investment, and purchase of
property, plant and equipment which the Group and the
Company had contracted for but not provided amounted
to approximately RMB1,151,986,000 (2022: approximately
RMB1,299,231,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.

EEES DN

EXRE REKEXRGEE @

3. TE=ZF—RB ' ARBERBAE
BeER U AERE1,030,000,000
TWEERAABDRRKB RS LWE
Hzm%EE SRR AR AR 100%
RH#E  ZABTENFHBEBEE
uu,‘%ﬁﬁﬂéﬁf RS RIHE - BB (E
APBHEIN EREZFTARE
721,000,00070 —E _NEEst
X+ AR #103,000,0007T °

4. “TE_NFEFERENARE

200,000,00070 AR EEKRER
R TEEE IS SR EL ) Bt
ST REOEBRAEE-

5. TEINFHIEERANARIE
320,000,000 FFERAMR — XM
EMREREMNREEMENS
BE E—TRAEENBEEEK

\7 o

frEMBERKRERRESEIIN R T
=+ ZR=t—H xEETES
HERKENBAELEE Z KK

o
B &R

ﬁ\_v__ﬁ‘f' B=+—H &x&H
A AT B ELE M R 1E L B EH W
Eﬁ\?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%%ﬁ‘ﬁfﬁ%&%&%%ﬁ@
BAREENAS AE®1,151,986,0007T
(CE - "% AE1,299,231,000
7)) P RIBEBRUARER A E RS
N




24

MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

Pledge of the Group’s Assets

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged the equity
interest in Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Ltd.,
Shandong Financial Leasing Company Ltd., and Shanghai
Financial Leasing Company Ltd., wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group, as well as certain buildings and land use rights
of the Company, to secure the long-term borrowings from
International Finance Corporation, and pledged/restricted
bank deposits of RMB754,975,000 (2022: RMB694,084,000)
to secure short-term borrowing, bills and letters of credit
granted to the Group.

The lease financing company pledged account receivables
of approximately RMB8,913,000 (2022: RMB17,100,000) to
secure bank facilities.

The Group had pledged bills receivable of RMB13,599,000
(2022: RMB107,611,000) to secure bank facilities.

As of 31 December 2023, the loan principal of Argon
Medical Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”) amounted to
US$311,067,000, which was secured by a security package
of 100% equity interest in Argon and its subsidiaries as well
as the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
deposits, trade receivables, cash and bank balances of
Argon. In the meantime, the Company provided a guarantee
for Argon.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

As of 31 December 2023, the total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB21,992,058,000 (2022:
RMB21,309,803,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to Hong Kong's generally accepted accounting principles.
As of 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB9,212,316,000 (2022:
RMB8,315,208,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

At the beginning of 2023, with the unleashing of epidemic
control, the hospital diagnoses and treatment volume
recovered gradually. However, the Group’s profit for the
whole year was significantly affected due to a combination
of the following reasons.

Firstly, ex-factory prices for major products decreased due
to the comprehensive implementation of volume-based
procurement of orthopedic products, which substantially
affected the revenue and net margin of the segment.

Secondly, although the sales volume of general consumables
and pharmaceutical packaging products increased
significantly, however, due to the impact of price and
product structure, the growth in revenue was weaker than
sales volume.

Thirdly, the rapid withdrawal of epidemic prevention-
related products from the market had affected our overall
performance growth for the whole year.

In addition, the year-on-year increase in the US dollar interest
rate pushed up the finance costs, which also exerted a
certain impact on the Group's profit.

The national healthcare reform policies continued to
advance in full implementation, as initiatives such as
medical insurance negotiations, centralised pharmaceutical
procurement, volume-based procurements of high-value
consumables and diagnosis-related groups’ payment (DRGs)/
diagnosis-intervention packet’s payment (DIP), among
others, continued to produce a profound impact on the
medical industry. The volume-based procurement policies,
in particular, have presented some challenges to the Group
in the short term, although in the long run, it presents
enormous opportunities for development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the clinical care segment, the volume-based procurement
of different products by various provinces will continue to
move forward. Leveraging its prolific product portfolio and
extensive market coverage, the Company boasted strong
capabilities to counter risks. Through various means such
as product upgrading and iteration, sound cost control and
mass market expansion, the Company seized opportunities
to expand its market share rapidly and enhanced its
competitiveness in the industry.

The digitalised clinical care products launched by the
Group have enhanced the regulation and standardisation
of clinical care and alleviated the magnitude of work of
medical staff and reduced staff costs. Such products are
widely commended and welcomed by hospitals and medical
personnel. We believe that digitalised clinical care products
hold immense market prospects and its performance
contributions will be achieved one after another. Meanwhile,
the digitalised clinical care services, together with the sales
of the clinical care series products, represented a good
synergy. Therefore, the Group’'s competitiveness in the
industry has been further enhanced.

In the orthopedic segment, facing the continuous deepening
of policy impact and the new stage of industry reshaping,
the Group grasped the opportunity of reform and continued
to facilitate sales model transformation. Our terminal service
capabilities improved significantly and customer coverage
continued to expand. Integrating with the market and
technology development trend as well as clinical feedback,
the Group continued to explore and develop new materials,
new horizons and new technologies, so as to gradually
improve the upstream and downstream orthopedics
industrial layout.

In the pharmaceutical packaging business, the market
position has been further reinforced. Customer loyalty was
strengthened by continuously increasing production capacity
to enhance its ability to serve downstream pharmaceutical
manufacturers. The Group also grasped the opportunities
from downstream enterprise products, business layout
and product upgrading to expand sales. In addition, the
Group continued to optimise production and supply chain
management to reduce costs and adapt to the market
environment better. The Group has taken the initiative to
make arrangements for new pharmaceutical packaging
products and accumulated a large number of customers at
the research and development stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the interventional segment, the growth of revenue
remained solid. New product arrangement continued,
which was quickly introduced to the global markets such
as Europe and the United States. The overseas market sales
of the interventional segment have laid a sound foundation
for the Group’s overseas market layout. In addition, the
interventional segment accounted for a low revenue share in
the domestic market with huge potential for development.

As a leading medical device enterprise in China, the Group
is committed to providing medical institutions with total
solutions in various professional segments to help them
improve their diagnostic and treatment capabilities and
standards. The Group continued to expand and enrich
its product portfolios in various specialty areas such
as respiration and anesthesia, urology, endocrinology,
endoscopy diagnosis and treatment, and rehabilitation.

The Group puts the corporate culture of “Conscience,
Sincerity and Loyalty” into practice when discharging its
corporate and social responsibility. The Group continued
to improve and enhance corporate governance and
propel strategies for sustainable development to facilitate
long-term and high-quality development. As the first
healthcare “Green Bond” customer of the International
Finance Corporation (IFC) under the World Bank in Asia,
the sustainable development strategy of the Group is
strongly supported and highly recognised by the IFC. The
Group highlights responsible operation and meets public
demands for medical products with high-quality products.
The Company puts emphasis on compliance operations
and advocates fair competition. The Company stresses the
green development concept and implements concepts,
goals and initiatives in relation to energy conservation and
emission reduction in production and operation. The Group
advocates gender equality, promotes the rights and interests
of female employees and increases the proportion of female
executives. Meanwhile, the Group actively provides sound
and equal job opportunities for nearly 1,000 disabled people
and helps them adapt to society.
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The Group formulates development strategies and medium
and long-term development plans on a rolling basis.
Taking into account the changes in industry policies and
the competitive landscape, clinical requirements and its
own internal resources reserves, the Company proposed a
three-pronged operational strategy of “platform-based”,
“internationalised” and “digitalised” development and
dual assurance strategies underpinned by “talents” and
“innovation”. The Company intends to deliver long-term and
stable value through the implementation of such strategies.

In 2023, although the Group’s operating results fluctuated,
the management is glad to see strong sales growth in all
major products, rapid growth in the Group’s market share
and significant improvement in industry influence.

Amid various uncertainties in the macro-environment and
international landscape, the management still remains fully
confident about the future sustainable development and
growth of the Company in the long term.

The management believes that on the back of its strategic
presence in a wide range of business sectors and high-
quality products, an operational strategy underpinned by
persistent market adaptation and a future-oriented approach
and initiatives that motivate employee creativity, the Group
will continue to maintain and strengthen its leading position
in the PRC market. Meanwhile, the Company will actively
promote global resource sharing to achieve synergistic
development in the domestic and foreign markets to support
the stable growth of the Group’s operating results.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing, aged 50, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Long joined
the Company in July 2005 and served as the manager of
sales management department and vice-general manager
of sales of the Company until August 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of the Company from August 2018
to March 2021. He has been an executive director of the
Company since December 2018 to date, a director of
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
("Weigao Orthopaedic”) (a subsidiary of the Company,
stock code: 688161.SH) from March 2020 to date and the
chairman of the Board of the Company from March 2021
to date. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Long served
as the sales chief of Shandong Plastic Materials Industry
Company (LUERBER TH4AE) from 1996 to 2002.
Mr. Long obtained a bachelor degree in marketing from
Shandong Economic University and a master degree in
business administration from Shandong University. He also
obtained the Chinese professional qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), with nearly 20 years of experiences
in sales and operation management in the medical device
industry.

Mr. CONG Rinan, aged 43, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Cong joined
the Company in August 2003. He served as supervisor,
deputy manager and manager of the syringe production
workshop until December 2013. During the period from
January 2014 to December 2014, Mr. Cong served as the
assistant to the chief executive officer of the Company.
From January 2015 to December 2018, he served as the
deputy general manager of the clinical care business unit of
the Company; from January 2019 to March 2021, he has
been the general manager of the clinical care business unit;
he has been the chief executive officer of the Company
from March 2021 until present; he has been the executive
director of the Company from May 2021 until present; and
he has been a director of Weihai Huadong Automation
Co., Ltd., ("Huadong Automation”) (Stock code: 002248.
SZ)from March 2024 until present. Mr. Cong obtained a
bachelor’s degree in applied chemistry from Yantai University
and a master’s degree in engineering from Harbin Institute
of Technology. He completed the Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of China
in 2019 and obtained the title of senior engineer of medical
device professional, with nearly 20 years of experience in
production and operation management in the medical device
industry.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LU Junqgiang, aged 50, is an executive director of the
Company and a director and a general manager of Weigao
Orthopaedic (stock code: 688161.SH), a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Lu joined the Company in October 2000 and
served as the regional manager, sales manager of Eastern
China and deputy general manager of the medical devices
products until January 2018. Mr. Lu was the deputy general
manager of sales of Weigao Orthopaedic from January 2018
to September 2019; and the director of Weigao Orthopaedic
in September 2018 and the general manager of Weigao
Orthopaedic from September 2019 until present. Mr. Lu
obtained a master’s degree of business administration from
the University of Wales in the United Kingdom and has
more than 20 years of experience in sales and operation
management in the medical device industry.

BEFE W
HITES (@)

EMEEAkE 505 ARBHTEER
KABIMBRAEE S ER BRMDAH :
688161.5H) EEREKIE-BRAENR T
EEEFT+AMARRAG E_F— N\
F—RA BFAEXAARDAEKE -FEHE
HERENBESWE RS EIME 4B
KB, R _E—N\F—HEZZ—NHF
NWEETESBERIEEREKE , N5
—NENBR_E—NENBES F
BEBRESREKIE . ELEEEHE
BEEmELt A2 InEEELt240 S
BE - +FENEERIMITEHERES
BIPES o

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

' LEREEERASD TERRAERAT 2023 £}



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng, aged 53, is a non-executive
director and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company.
Mr. Tang joined the Weigao Holding in December 2017 and
currently is a director and the general manager of Weihai
Weigao International Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.
and the vice chairman of Weigao Holding; and a director and
vice chairman of Huadong Automation (stock code: 002248.
SZ) in March 2018 and from July 2018 until present; and a
non-executive director and the vice chairman of the Board
of the Company from March 2021 until present. Prior to
joining Weigao Holding, Mr. Tang was the assistant to the
president of Bank of Communications, Weihai Branch, the
president of Minsheng Bank, Weihai Branch and the assistant
to the president of China Minsheng Bank, Qingdao Branch.
Mr. Tang graduated from Shandong University majoring in
business administration and completed the EMBA program
of China Europe International Business School, with over
20 years of experience in banking and corporate finance
management.

Mr. CHEN Lin, aged 48, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chen joined Weigao Holding in September
2000 and has served as assistant general manager and
general manager of Weigao Holding and currently is the
chairman of the board of Weihai Weigao International
Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and the chairman
of Weigao Holding. Mr. Chen is a non-executive director
of the Company from March 2021 until present. Mr. Chen
graduated from Weihai University majoring in economic
management and completed a Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of
China, with over 20 years of operation management
experience in the medical device industry.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and joined the Company in June
2022. Currently, Mr. Li is the chief strategy officer and
co-chief financial officer of China Aircraft Leasing Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1848.HK) and an independent
non-executive director of Space Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2448 .HK).

From July 2019 to December 2022, Mr. Li worked in
Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (“Zhongsheng
Group”, stock code: 0881.HK). His last position was joint
chief financial officer. He was also an executive director
of Zhongsheng Group from June 2020 to December
2022. From August 2013 to July 2019, Mr. Li was the vice
president, chief financial officer and executive director of
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code:
3320.HK), a non-executive director of Dong-E E-Jiao Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 000423.5Z) and China Resources Double
Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600062.SH) and
a supervisor of Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 000999.57). He was the accounting director
of the finance department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited from September 2009 to August 2013; a
senior analyst of IMC Development Management Company
in Hong Kong from April 2006 to September 2009; and
a M&A investment analyst in IMC Fanya, Singapore from
October 2005 to April 2006.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in naval architecture and
marine engineering from Wuhan University of Technology,
a master’s degree in business administration from Wuhan
University, a master’s degree in financial management from
Nanyang Technological University in Singapore and obtained
professional qualifications as a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) qualified by the CFA Institute of Chartered Financial
Analyst and a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) qualified by
the Singapore Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. MENG Hong, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company and joined the Company
in September 2022. Mrs. Meng is currently an associate
professor of the Accounting Department of the Business
School of Shandong University (Weihai). She has over 20
years of experience in research and teaching at university.
From 1994 to 1999, Mrs. Meng worked at Auditing Firm of
Weihai High-tech Industrial Development Zone (B /&S
MEXBEEBAMEFT), where she was responsible
for auditing and appraising. From 2016 to 2022, she served
as an independent director of Shandong Weida Machinery
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002026.5Z) and Zhuhai Winbase
International Chemical Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 002492.57). From 2021 to 2023, she served as an
independent director of Sunfly Intelligent Technology Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 300423. SZ). Currently, Mrs. Meng is also
an independent director of Weihai Guangwei Composite
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 300699.5Z) and Tianrun Industrial
Technology Co., Ltd (stock code: 002283.57). Mrs. Meng
obtained a bachelor’s and master's degree in economics from
Shandong University and a doctorate degree in economics
from Hoseo University in South Korea. She is an asset
appraiser in China.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LI Qiang, aged 48, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and joined the Company in
December 2022. Mr. Li is currently the managing partner
of Grandall Law Firm (Shanghai). Mr. Li is mainly engaged
in the legal practice of capital markets, including private
equity investment, corporate listing and M&A restructuring.
Mr. Li is also the director of the Securities Business Research
Committee of the Shanghai Bar Association and an arbitrator
of Shanghai Arbitration Commission. Prior to joining
Grandall Law Firm (Shanghai), Mr. Li worked as a paralegal
at the Shanghai office of Boss & Young from March 2003
to April 2005; as a marketing manager at Lenovo Group
Limited from September 1999 to August 2000; and as a staff
member at China National Arts & Crafts (Group) Corporation
from July 1997 to June 1999. Mr. Li has provided legal
services to more than 40 companies in their domestic
and overseas listing and restructurings. He has nearly 20
years of extensive legal experience in listing. Mr. Li was an
independent director of Anhui Gourgen Traffic Construction
Co.,Ltd. (stock code: 603815.SH). Currently, Mr. Li is as
independent directors of Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 300067.5Z) and Impulse (Qingdao) Health Tech
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002899.57).

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree and a master
of laws degrees from Shanghai University of International
Business and Economics; a master of law degree from
Chicago-Kent College of Law and EMBA degree from China
Europe International Business School (CEIBS).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

SUPERVISORS

Mrs. GU Meijun, aged 47, is a shareholder representative
supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company, and is currently the chief accountant of
of Weigao Holding. Ms. Gu joined Weigao Holding in 1996
and held positions such as accounting supervisor, accounting
manager, assistant to general manager of Weigao Holding.
Ms. Gu has been a supervisor of Huadong Automation
(stock code: 002248.57) from March 2021 to date. Ms. Gu
graduated from Beijing Information Technology Institute
majoring in financial management and passed the middle-
level accountant title examination.

Mr. SONG Dapeng, aged 46, is a shareholder representative
supervisor of the Company and is the director of the audit
center of Weigao Holding. Mr. Song joined Weigao Holding
in November 2009 and has served as the supervisor of the
audit and risk management department, manager of the
audit and risk management department and assistant to
general manager of Weigao Holding. Prior to joining Weigao
Holding, Mr. Song worked as the manager of the audit
department of Weihai Jinzheng Accountancy* (B8 Eg
sHEMEEF5PR) from January 2006 to October 2009. Mr. Song
has been the chairman of the supervisory committee of
Huadong Automation (stock code: 002248.5Z) from March
2021 to date. Mr. Song graduated from Shandong University
of Finance and Economics* (LB &% 2 7) majoring in
accounting.
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SUPERVISORS (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Zhuanggqiu, aged 47, is an employee
representative supervisor of the Company and is currently
the vice general manager of the clinical care business division
of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in January
2016 and successively served in different positions in the
Company such as the assistant to general manager of the
clinical care business division and vice general manager of
production department. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Zhang worked for Samsung Electronics (Shandong) Digital
Printers Ltd. (ZE8BF (WR) MBI ABRLE) from
July 1997 to January 2012 and worked for Weihai Weigao
Medical Systems Co. Ltd. (Bi/BEEEBRABRAR),
subsidiary of the Company’s controlling shareholder, Welgao
Holding Company Limited, as the vice general manager of
production department from February 2012 to December
2015. Mr. Zhang graduated from University of Science and
Technology Liaoning (EZEHRZKE) in July 1997 majoring
in mechanical manufacturing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Xuefeng, aged 46, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the finance department of
the Company in July 2001. He served as the manager of
the manufacturing finance department and the manager
of the sales finance department of the Company until July
2012; from July 2012 to October 2013, he was the manager
of the risk management department of Weigao Holding;
from October 2013 to February 2017, he was the financial
controller of the pharmaceutical distribution business
department of Weigao Holding; and from February 2017 to
present, he has been the financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor degree in finance management
from the University of QiQiHar in Heilongjiang Province and
obtained a master degree in business management from
the Missouri State University, the United States, with more
than 20 years of experience in the accounting and finance
management.

Mrs. WONG Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 55, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company in
May 2006. She is a Chartered Secretary and fellow members
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Wong has over 25
years of experience in corporate finance and management.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the articles of association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company's management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the articles
of association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited consolidated financial statements and the dividend
to be proposed by the Board for presentation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. We are of the opinion
that the Directors, the chief executive officer and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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EEGHLSE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2023 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

GU Meijun

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

26 March 2024
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The Directors are pleased to present this Annual Report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) is principally engaged in the research
and development, production and sale of medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management products,
and operates financing business.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into six operating divisions — medical device products,
orthopaedic products, interventional products, pharma
packaging products, blood management products and
others, among which interventional products were produced
by Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc.. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

production and sale of orthopaedic

Medical Device
Products

Orthopaedic

Products products
Interventional — production and sale of tumour
Products and blood vessel interventional

instruments

Pharma Packaging— production and sale of pre-filled

Products syringes and flushing syringes
Blood — production and sale of blood
Management collection, irradiation, storage,
Products separation and sterilization products
Others — finance lease and factoring business
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Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Business
Review and Financial Review sections respectively from pages
4 to 8, 13 to 19 and 20 to 24 of this Annual Report. The
future development of the Group's business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in the Review
and Outlook sections from pages 25 to 28 of this Annual
Report. In addition, more details regarding the Group’s
performance by reference to environmental and social-
related key performance indicators and policies, as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group, are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the "ESG Report”), which will be
published separately.

Dividend

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 of RMB0.0943
(2022: RMBO0.079) (before considering any tax effect) per
share totaling approximately RMB431,011,000 (2022:
RMB361,080,000), subject to the approval of shareholders
of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The final
dividend will be denominated and declared in Renminbi.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the combined value of the Group's contracts
with its five largest suppliers, which were not of a capital
nature, was less than 30 per cent of the total value of
supplies purchased. The Group's five largest customers
combined contributed less than 30 per cent of its total
revenue and other income during the Year.
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During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Director
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 93 to 94 of
this annual report.

Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounted to RMB939,000 (2022: RMB677,000).

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2023, the total share capital of
the Company was RMB457,063,232.4 divided into
4,570,632,324 ordinary shares with a nominal value of
RMBO.1 per share, of which 4,522,332,324 shares were
H shares and 48,300,000 shares were non-listed domestic
shares.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statement.

Closure of Register of Member

For the purpose of determining who may attend the Annual
General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 28 May 2024,
the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2024 to Tuesday, 28 May
2024 (both dates inclusive), during which no transfer of H
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement
to attending and voting in the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers of H Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company's H Share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May
2024.
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In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument

accompanied by the share certificates

forHShares ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... ... 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 21 May 2024

Closure of register of members of the

Company for attending and voting in the

Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 22 May
2024 to Tuesday, 28 May 2024

Date of Annual General Meeting . .. Tuesday, 28 May 2024

For the purpose of determining who may be entitled
to receive the final dividend of the Company (subject
to approval by the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting), the register of holders of H Shares of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 5 June 2024 to Tuesday,
11 June 2024 (both dates inclusive), during which no
transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement to the final dividend, all transfers of H Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 June 2024.

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument accompanied

by the share certificates for H Shares and

Domestic Shares . ............... 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
4 June 2024

Closure of register of members of the Company

for entitlement of the final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2023. ... ... Wednesday, 5 June 2024
to Tuesday, 11 June 2024

Record date for the entitlement of the
final dividend . . .. ... ... ... ... Tuesday,
11 June 2024

Expected dispatch date of the final dividend . .. .. .. Friday,
12 July 2024

The final dividend will be despatched at the risk of those
entitled thereto to their respective registered addresses on or
before Friday, 12 July 2024.
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Reserves and Distributable Reserves

As of 31 December 2023, the total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB21,992,058,000 (2022:
RMB21,309,803,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to Hong Kong's generally accepted accounting principles.
As of 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB9,212,316,000 (2022:
RMB8,315,208,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG lJing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. NI Shili (resigned on 29 December 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
(continued)

Mr. Cong Rinan, Mr. Tang Zhenpeng and Mr. Chen Lin shall
hold office to the 2024 AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a
service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors and Senior Management’s
Emoluments

The remunerations of the Directors are reviewed from
time to time by the remuneration committee of the
Company with reference to their professional qualifications,
responsibilities, experiences, performances and the Group’s
operating results.

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract,
retain and motivate talented individuals to contribute to
the success of the business. The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Position

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
of any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) of
the Company, which will have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which will be required, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
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the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as contained in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying (i) REAFRGKRBERRKRGIETE :
shares of the Company:

% of the

% of total issued

% of Domestic  share capital

H Shares Number of Shares in of the

Name of Nature of Number of in issue Domestic issue Company

director interest Capacity H Shares held (note 1) Shares held (note 1) (note 1)

1IN

B BT HBRT BETRES

HERE At REREAL BEENt

e e 5 FrisHIR# B (MzE1) FEAEREE (MHsE1) (Mis1)

Mr. Long Jing Personal Beneficial Owner 480,000 0.0106 6,000,000 12.42 0.1418
REREE BA EREBA

Mr. Cong Rinan Personal Beneficial Owner 200,000 0.0044 2,000,000 414 0.0481
E0mMEE A BREBA

Mr. Chen Lin Personal Beneficial Owner 196,000 0.0043 - - 0.0043
BREE BA BREBA

Note: MIEE -
1. As at 31 December 2023, the number of total issued shares of 1. W2 _=F+_B=+—H &2

the Company was 4,570,632,324, comprising 4,522,332,324 H
Shares and 48,300,000 Domestic Shares.

B EETRNAEEA4,570,632,324
f% > B1354,522,332,324BHBE &
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Position (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the associated corporations of the

§$&I§ﬁﬁ5zl\éﬂ@ﬁ£ﬁ&i&
()

(ii) B 72 B) A Bk & B 2 AR 17 B 4E B A
fResFE

Company
Amount of % of
equity interest
Name of interest held/ in the
Name of associated Capacity/Nature registered capital/ associated
director corporation of interest underlying interest corporation
FrislRiEsE REkEE
EEfA HRBEERE g/ fEatE B YR e zE
Mr. Chen Lin Weihai Weigao International Beneficial owner RMB1,100,800 6.90%
Medical Investment Holding
CO., Ltd, (Note)
Rt FE BEREERER BREBA AE#1,100,8007C
REZERBRAF W
Mr. ChenLin Weigao Holding Beneficial owner RMB9,760,000 0.81%
Company Limited Mo
Rt BEERERAT "= BREBA AE#9,760,0007C
Mr. Lu Jungiang ShandongWeigao Orthopaedic ~ Beneficial Owner 400,000 A shares 0.10%
Device Company Limited (Note i)
EREE WREEERME KRR BRERA 400,0001RAR
BRAT (#y2ti)
Notes: M5

(i) Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment Holding
Co., Ltd. ("Weihai Weigao International”) holds 89.93%
equity interest in Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao
Holding”), which is the controlling shareholder of the Company
holding 45.94% equity interest in the Company.

(i) These underlying shares were incentive share options granted to
Mr. Lu Jungiang and were vested pursuant to the share award
scheme of Shandong Weigao Orthopadeic Device Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

() BESHSERERKEERARAH
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Ras (TELE M) 89.83% /KR4 > M
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BEURESERMERHBRAT
(RABR LBRSRFZA LT 2
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and
short positions which the Director is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware,
the following persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) or institutions have interests or
short positions of 5% or more in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
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BREXFIREEN RZE_=F+=
B=+—H #iEBEEREARBETET
BAEREARBNEERBEEZE (E
HEREBSNREBERAL) R M KRR
P BB ()IRIEE S KB ERAEXV
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EWEFIRABENERRKE) ;3K
(b)RIRFE S M E R A FE 352K BEE
REZIEFTIE S MR R A ; ()

RIEIZESTRIBMNG AN T KRBT
*& W/JL)E'O
FEREK
A CECZFE+_RB=+—H> ?t%%
FrFl > 255 R EA G EAIE3361& M A

FEZEEMAAEE T AL (%%&
ARBEBITHABRIN S iEES
AR RN ABRRMNS %I £ #

mIKE -

% of
total issued
share capital

Number of
H Shares held

Name of shareholder Nature of interest (Note 2) (Note 1)
EHEBITRE
FrfFHRR# B HEEHDLE
R TE EmeE (Bfz¥2) (F33E1)
Mr. Chen Xueli Interest of controlled 2,099,755,676 (L) 4594
corporation
FREEF S TEAE R
Weihai Weigao International Interest of controlled 2,099,755,676 (L) 4594
corporation
8 = B R ZEAE R
Weigao Holding Beneficial owner 2,099,755,676 (L) 45,94

= E EmEBEA
Notes:
1. As at 31 December 2023, the number of total issued shares of the

Company was 4,570,632,324, comprising 4,522,332,324 H Shares
and 48,300,000 Domestic Shares.

2. The Company is owned as to 45.94% by Weigao Holding, which
is 89.83% owned by Weihai Weigao International. Weihai Weigao
International is 50.80% owned by Mr. Chen Xueli. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Xueli and Weihai Weigao International are deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Weigao Holding for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

1. RIZEZ=F#+"-BA=+—H'£&x28E
BITRMHHMRS A4,570,632,32488 614%
4,522,332,32488HA& % 48,300,000 R &

e

2. AREHEEEEFEA5.94%E 5 TE
SEEHEEESEKITEES9.83% M
BERSERRREN EERFAES0.80%#
o AL > IRIEE H R EIE KB EBEXVES » IR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Incentive Share Scheme

The Company adopted an inventive share scheme on
17 November 2014 (“Incentive Share Scheme”). The
purposes of the Incentive Share Scheme are to: (i) enable
the Company to provide incentive to the Eligible Participants
(as defined below) in order to recognise and motivate the
contributions they have made or will make to the Group; (ii)
attract and retain quality talents for the business operation,
management and development of the Group; (iii) align
the interests of the management, the employees and the
Group to ensure the realisation of the Group’s development
strategy and business objectives; and (iv) attain a long-term
relationship between the Group and its employees.

Subject to the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules,
Eligible Participants are persons eligible to receive awards
under the Incentive Share Scheme include any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, but excluding any Excluded
Employee as defined under the Inventive Share Scheme) of
any member of the Group, or any person who, in the sole
opinion of the remuneration committee of the Company,
will contribute or has contributed to any member of the
Group. The maximum number of the issuable Shares under
the specific mandate of Incentive Share shall not exceed
223,818,616 Shares, representing 5% of the number of
Shares in issue on the date of adoption of the Incentive
Share Scheme.

BREXFIREEN RZE_=F+=
B=+—H #i#EEM AL EEREA
B FETHABSRIN REAQABWKRD
WABRE D PR RIRE S RS EHA)
FBI36EMABFEZE LML HNT
AR TRE o

# Bh B2 17 51 &

RABRZE—MNE+—H -+t HER®A
—IEHEN R (0 5t 8 (DB R 5T 8)) ©
HEROSENENS (()VEEAT D
GERZSEE (EER TN BTFREF
PHHB B ESEBEFH IR FL
WER(INATEENEHKEE BE
RERRS|IREEEF AT (iiFEE
BB Mm@ B TH m AR EEN mAS
GER REFCERERYBMNEEE
BER, R(VBIFEREST ~ [
RENBER %

ELHRBEBAERNRET  5ER
2 EZIERBERBIRMDTEEERERS
HEMAL aFEFAREBRRE AT
MERZBAEBRNES  BFREER
B st B R ENEMARIINAE
TNBEHNEETE2HRLBT TR I K
HEMXAEBRE A EHEENETMA
AT o BB IR 45 R IRETE T o] 817K
MNERRZEAB1E223,818,6160% 7 14
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Incentive Share Scheme (continued)

The Company issued 94,260,000 Shares in total under the
specific mandate. As at 31 December 2023, 129,558,616
outstanding Shares remain available to issue under the
specific mandate, representing approximately 2.83% of the
total issue share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of Shares that may be granted to the Eligible
Participant selected by the remuneration committee of
the Company to participate in the Inventive Share Scheme
(“Selected Employees”) must not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
grant. The length of the vesting period, vesting and other
conditions (such as the length of the lock-up period) that
must be satisfied for the exercise of the subscription right
will be determined by the remuneration committee of
the Company at its discretion, and may vary among the
Selected Employees depending on their position, length of
service with the Group and performance. No exercise period
for awarded shares was set. The Selected Employees can
exercise the share awards in anytime upon vesting. Save
for the subscription price, participants are not required to
pay any amount upon participation of the Incentive Share
Scheme. The subscription price represents the net asset
value per Share as set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company in the last financial year
immediately preceding the grant date of the share awards.
Subject to an early termination of the Incentive Share
Scheme as determined by the Remuneration Committee,
the Incentive Share Scheme will be effective for a term
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, until
16 November 2024. Details of the Incentive Share Scheme
of the Company is set out in Note 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Incentive Share Scheme (continued)

Details of the movement of the share awards granted
pursuant to the Incentive Share Scheme during the Year were

BB 15 =t 8l (@)

FR REABROSTEEFHIRMDE
B EsrIBU T ¢

as follows:
Number of share awards Weighted
BUELEL] average
closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the
Exercisable Exercisable dates the
as at Vested Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat  Subscription awards were
Name of 1 January during during during during 31 December  price upon  exercised or
grantee Date of grant 2023 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023  grant (RMB) vested (HKD)
RIOREBER
RZgzzf RZBZZE EffEdRE
-A-H tZBZt-A BHEZIEE ARmNNE
AREAS RHAH g FAERE  FAEARE  FABHE  EREXR A (AE®) Tk (Br)
Directors
g3
Mr. Long Jing 111212015 (batch 1) 480,000 0 0 0 0 480,000 22 5.59
Bis 11122015 (F—H#)
2411212021 (batch 2) 2,400,000 1,200,000 0 0 0 3,600,000 3.58 938
24120021 (EZH)
Mr. Cong Rinan 111212015 (batch 1) 200,000 0 0 0 0 200,000 22 5.59
E ftiyiks 1111202015 ($—4)
2411212021 (batch 2) 800,000 400,000 0 0 0 1,200,000 358 9.38
241202021 (EZH)
Other Eligible Participants
EtRERSAE
employees 111212015 (batch 1) 430,000 0 0 0 0 430,000 22 5.59
fe& 1111202015 (4
241212021 (batch ) 16,120,000 8,060,000 0 0 0 24,180,000 358 9.38
240120001 (BZ#)
Notes: Bk -
1. With respect to batch 1 of the share awards granted in 2015, a total 1. MIZ—hASRENE—MRMERmS
of 1,110,000 shares were exercisable as at 31 December 2023. Such WZZ2EZ=F+ZH—H »&%1,110,000

shares, together with (i) 8,812,000 shares that were repurchased
by the trustee upon exercise by the directors and employees
during 2023; (i) 4,534,000 shares that were lapsed and retained
by the trustee prior to 1 January 2023 pursuant to the Incentive
Share Scheme, represent the total outstanding incentive shares of
14,456,000 held by the trustee for the benefit of the Incentive Share
Scheme (batch 1).

The number of share awards and the shares are calculated on a 1:1
basis (i.e. 1 share award = 1 Shares).
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Internal Control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December
2023, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
subsisted in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2023.

Independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save for the share options granted to the Directors, at
no time during the Year was the Company, or its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts in respect of the management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries were entered into or subsisted
during the Year.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transaction of the Group during the
Year are as follows:

On 3 January 2023, Shandong Weigao Orthopedic Materials
Company Limited (“Weigao Ortho”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement
(the "Equity Transfer Agreement”) with Weihai Weigao
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (BlBEESEMREBRRE),
Weihai Weigao Fusen Medical Materials Co., Ltd. (Bl/B8E S
ERBAMEARAS), Weihai Weigao Medical Imaging
Technology Co., Ltd. (BUBE = BELEEKLARAE)and
Weihai Weigao Qiquan Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. (E&
HeheBEREARAT) (all of which are subsidiaries
of Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment
Holding Company Limited (“Weihai Weigao International”),
collectively the "Vendors”)), pursuant to which Weigao
Ortho agreed to acquire, and the Vendors agreed to transfer
to Weigao Ortho their respective equity interests for a total
of 100% in Shandong Weigao New Life Medical Device Co.,
Ltd., at a cash consideration of RMB1,030,000,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Weihai Weigao International holds approximately 89.83%
equity interest in Weigao Holding, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. As such, the entering into
the Equity Transfer Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company and was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the registration of Weigao Ortho as the registered owner
of Shandong Weigao New Life Medical Device Co., Ltd. has
been completed.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
3 January 2023 and 15 February 2023 for further details.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group which required reporting and annual review in 2023
were as follows:

1. Supplemental Purchase Framework
Agreement

The Company and Weigao Holding entered into a
purchase framework agreement dated 5 December
2018 (as supplemented by supplemental agreements
dated 27 September 2019, 18 December 2019, 26
August 2020, 28 October 2020 and 16 November
2021) (the "Purchase Framework Agreement”) in
relation to the purchase of the medical based products,
including but not limited to, medical equipment,
medical raw materials, medical packaging materials,
pharmaceutical and medical devices by the Group from
Weigao Holding Group.
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Supplemental Purchase Framework
Agreement (continued)

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into a
supplemental purchase framework agreement with
Weigao Holding (the “2021 Supplemental Purchase
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement
terms of the Purchase Framework Agreement for
two years to 31 December 2023 and propose new
annual caps of RMB1,300 million and RMB1,500
million for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2023, respectively. The term of 2021 Supplemental

ATTIREIER S (B

A B —F+—B+H &R
B S ER QB L HTIRBIE
g (T2 - —F A EBEE
HHZE)  BRBERGEREIEER
FEE_F+/A=+—"HK
BHE_Z T FRIT"=
+ - A=+—HIEFEESEHFE
FER2AIA ARE1,300,000,000
ﬁ&AEﬁuﬁg'IEOO,OOO,OOOFDO:

Framework Agreement expired on 31 December T —FRARBERGEILZ
2023. On 23 August 2023, the Company entered into Z_=F+"RA=+—HEH-I®
a supplement framework agreement with Weigao TEI=FNBIZ+=BH>E&RH

Holding (the “2023 Supplemental Purchase Framework
Agreement”) to extend the agreement term for two
years to 31 December 2025 and propose new annual
caps of RMB1,500 million for each of the financial years
ending December 2024 and 2025.

During the Year, the actual amount of transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Supplemental Purchase
Framework Agreement was approximately RMB1,201.8
million (2022: RMB1,249.9 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supplemental Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into
a logistic support services framework agreement
("Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement”)
with Shandong Weigao Medical Company Limited
(LREEBZEARAT) (the “Logistic Company”),
a subsidiary of Weigao Holding, for a term of two years
commencing from 1 January 2022. Under the Logistic
Support Services Framework Agreement, Weigao
Holding Group shall provide logistic support services
to the Group by delivering the Group’s products to its
customers (such as hospitals), collecting payment from
the customers on behalf of the Group and settling
the amount paid by the customers (net of the logistic
service fees charged by Weigao Holding Group) with
the Group on a back-to-back basis. Annual caps for
transactions contemplated under the Logistic Support
Services Framework Agreement in respect of the total
amount settled by the Logistic Company Group for the
Group’s sales to hospitals through Logistic Company
Group were RMB5,000 million and RMB6,000 million
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023,
respectively. Annual caps in respect of the logistic
service fees charged by the Logistic Company were
RMB155.0 million and RMB186.0 million for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively. The
Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023.
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Supplemental Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement (continued)

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into a
supplemental logistic support services framework
agreement with the Logistic Company (“Supplemental
Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement”) to
extend the agreement term of the Logistic Support
Services Framework Agreement for two years to 31
December 2025, proposed new annual caps in respect
of the total amount settled by Logistic Company
Group for Group’s sales to customers through Logistic
Company Group of RMB4,400 million and RMB5,200
million for the financial years ending 31 December
2024 and 2025 respectively and adjusted the pricing of
the logistic service fee to not more than 3%. Annual
caps for the logistic service fees charged by Logistic
Company are RMB132.0 million and RMB156.0 million
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2025,
respectively.

During the Year, the total amount settled by the Logistic
Company Group for the Group’s sales to customers
through Logistic Company Group was RMB3,542.5
million (2022: RMB3,346.9 million) with a logistic
service fee of RMB105.9 million (2022: RMB78.2
million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

3.

Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement

The Company entered into a deposit services agreement
dated 23 August 2017 with Weihai Lanhai Banking
Corporation (B /BEBRITRMNEMRAE) (“Lanhai
Bank”) (as amended by the supplemental agreement
dated 20 December 2019 and 16 November 2021)
("Deposit Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
Lanhai Bank agreed to provide deposit services to the
Group and the Group agrees to utilise such deposit
services. In accordance with the supplemental deposit
services agreement entered with between the Company
and Lanhai Bank dated 16 November 2021 ("2021
Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement”), the
annual cap for the maximum daily balance of deposits
(including the interests accrued thereon) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was RMB300 million. The
2021 Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
a supplemental deposit services agreement with
Lanhai Bank (“2023 Supplemental Deposit Services
Agreement”) to extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the
2023 Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement, the
proposed annual caps for the maximum daily balance of
deposits (including the interests accrued thereon) shall
not exceed RMB200.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the actual
maximum daily balance of deposits (including the
interests accrued thereon was approximately RMB80.7
million (2022: RMB162.6 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

4.

Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring
Framework Agreement

The Group entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 27 September
2019, 2 November 2020 and 16 November 2021)
with Weigao Holding, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide finance leasing and recourse and
non-recourse factoring and other commercial factoring
services to Weigao Holding Group. In accordance
with the supplemental finance leasing and factoring
framework agreement dated 16 November 2021 (“2021
Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement”), the annual cap for transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Supplemental Finance
Leasing and Factoring Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB500.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring
Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, WEREEMEHEERR A
(Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.) and £
BEEMEMRESBRLQSB (Shanghai Weigao Financing
Lease Co., Ltd.), both are subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into the supplemental finance leasing and
factoring framework agreement with Weigao Holding
(the 2023 Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement
term for two years to 31 December 2025 and propose
new annual caps of RMB600.0 million for each of the
financial years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025.

During the Year, the actual aggregate value of finance
leasing and factoring amount was RMB130.6 million
(2022: RMB347.4 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

5.

Supplemental Sales Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 18 December 2019,
2 November 2020 and 16 November 2021) (“Sales
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company agrees to sell or procure its subsidiaries to
sell, and Weigao Holding agrees to purchase or procure
its subsidiaries or associates to purchase products
including but not limited to, medical devices, carton
box and moulding. In accordance with the supplemental
sales framework agreement dated 16 November 2021
("2021 Supplemental Sales Framework Agreement”),
the annual cap for transactions contemplated under the
2021 Supplemental Sales Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB500.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Sales Agreement expired on
31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into the
supplemental sales framework agreement with Weigao
Holding (the “2023 Supplemental Sales Framework
Agreement”) to extend the agreement term for two
years to 31 December 2025 and propose new annual
caps of RMB600.0 million for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2024 and 2025.

During the Year, the actual amount of transaction
contemplated under the Sales Framework Agreement
was RMB452.2 million (2022: RMB444.8 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

6.

Supplemental Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 2 November 2020 and
16 November 2021) (“Services Framework Agreement”)
with Weigao Holding, pursuant to which in relation
to the provision of services by Weigao Holding Group
to the Group; the Company agrees to purchase or
procure its subsidiaries to purchase, and Weigao
Holding agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries
or associates to provide services including but not
limited to, transportation, dormitory, premises, security,
catering services and hotel services. In accordance
with the supplemental services framework agreement
dated 16 November 2021 (“2021 Supplemental
Services Framework Agreement”), the annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the 2021
Supplemental Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB50.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Services Agreement expired on
31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
the supplemental services framework agreement
with Weigao Holding (“2023 Supplemental Services
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2025; and propose new
annual caps of RMB65.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, The actual transaction amounts for
the services provided by Weigao Holding Group to the
Group contemplated under the Services Framework
Agreement was RMB48.9 million (2022: RMB19.7
million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

7.

Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 2 November 2020
and 16 November 2021) (“Tenancy Framework
Agreement”) with Weigao Holding, pursuant to
which the Group agrees to lease its premises located
at industrial zone at Chucun Town, Weihai, Shandong
Province, the PRC and sublease its leased premises in
various sales market areas to Weigao Holding Group
and receive rentals therefrom. In accordance with
the supplemental tenancy framework agreement
dated 16 November 2021 (“2021 Supplemental
Tenancy Framework Agreement”), the annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the 2021
Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB25.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
the supplemental tenancy framework agreement
with Weigao Holding (2023 Supplemental Tenancy
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2025; and propose new
annual caps of RMB38.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts for
the rental received by the Group from Weigao Holding
Group contemplated under the Tenancy Framework
Agreement was RMB11.4 million (2022: RMB9.4
million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions ¥
(continued)
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Supplemental Services Provision Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a services provision
framework agreement dated 16 November 2021
("Services Provision Framework Agreement”) with
Weigao Holding, pursuant to which the Company
agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide,
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and maintenance services for a term of two years. In
accordance with the supplemental services provision
framework agreement dated 16 November 2021
("2021 Supplemental Services Provision Framework
Agreement”), the annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Supplemental Services
Provision Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB40.0 million. The 2021
Supplemental Services Provision Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into the
supplemental services provision framework agreement
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agreement term for two years to 31 December 2025;
and propose new annual caps of RMB60.0 million and
RMB65.0 million for each of the financial years ending
31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts for the
for the medical related services provided by the Group
to Weigao Holding contemplated under the Services
Provision Framework Agreement was RMB15.9 million
(2022: RMB23.6 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and provided a
letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions abovementioned:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
provision of goods and services by the Group;

(iii) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual caps as disclosed in previous
announcements.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with
the requirements set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the abovementioned connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions. Save as disclosed above,
other related parties transactions disclosed in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statement do not fall under connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), whereby the shareholders of the Company are
entitled to the dividends declared by the Company. The
payment and any amount of dividends shall be formulated
at the discretion of the Board. Any dividend distribution
is subject to the approval by the general meeting of the
Company. Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the Company, all shareholders
of the Company shall be equally entitled to dividends and
distribution. Dividends paid to holders of Domestic Shares,
if any, shall be calculated and declared and payable in
Renminbi. Cash dividends paid to holders of H Shares, if any,
shall be calculated and declared in Renminbi and payable in
Hong Kong Dollars.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in this annual report.

Change of Board Composition and Senior
Management

Mr. Ni Shili has tendered his resignation as an executive
Director with effect from 29 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no change of information
on directors and supervisors of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023 pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, so far as the
Company is aware, the Company has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have material effect on the
Company in all material aspects. The Company’s compliance
with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations
are provided in the 2023 Environmental, Social, and
Governance Report separately issued by the company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the standard
for securities transactions by Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors whether they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors of the Group and the persons
who served as the Directors of the Group in 2023 for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWRS

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, which
retires and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing
Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
26 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and recognises that good governance is vital
for the long-term success and sustainability of the Group’s
businesses. The Company has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the Code. The
Company's key corporate governance practices and activities
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are highlighted in
this report.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the standard
for securities transactions by Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors whether they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Board of Directors

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility
to act objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business and regularly reviews the contribution
required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time in performing them that are commensurate with their
role and the Board responsibilities. The Board includes
a balanced composition of executive directors and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.
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The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG lJing (Chairman)
Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on
page 29 to 36 of this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer are
held by Mr. Long Jing and Mr. Cong Rinan respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning and leadership of the Board as well
as provides overall guidance on the business, strategy and
corporate development of the Group. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the overall management of the business,
strategy and corporate development of the Group.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other
Directors do not have any financial, business, family, material
or other relevant relationships with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Company has received written
annual confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Induction and Development

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors are provided
with comprehensive induction training conducted by
senior executives and/or external legal advisers to ensure
that they have a thorough understanding of the Group’s
operations and governance policies, as well as their role and
responsibilities as Board members.

Ongoing training helps Directors keep abreast of current
trends and issues facing the Group, while enabling them to
update and refresh the skills and knowledge necessary for
the performance of their duties. The Directors are regularly
briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to
enroll in a wide range of professional development courses
or and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and independent auditors
so that they can continuously update and further improve
their relevant knowledge and skills. From time to time,
Directors are provided with written materials to develop and
refresh their professional skills. The company secretary also
organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to
assist them in discharging their duties.
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Induction and Development (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars and/or studying materials to director’s
duties and responsibility and provided a record of training

70

they received to the Company.

FriE=gall Zz 508k o

Corporate Governance/Updates on
Laws, Rules and Regulations
EEERHRER BB RRG 2 EHR

Read materials Attend workshops

RIE M HERSE

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) RREE (2F) 4 v/
Mr. Cong Rinan =AMEEE 4 4
Mr. Lu Jungiang BEHRiE 4 v/
Mr. Ni Shili R EE (R-ZT-=F v/ v

(resigned on 29 December 2023) +TZAZ+NHF#E
Non-executive Directors ERITER
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) & IERBSCE (5] Z /%) 4 4
Mr. Chen Lin BRI L 4 4
Independent Non-executive BiFRITESR

Directors
Mr. Li Guohui FEESLE 4 4
Mrs. Meng Hong RALT v v
Mr. Li Qiang TREE 4 v/
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings were held two times during
this year to review and approve financial and operating
performance, interim and annual results. Ad-hoc meetings
will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. Notice of board meeting will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications. The Company
will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the
meetings. All the Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable
requests, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year, four board meetings were held. The
attendance of each Director is set out below:

TEERARS

FRCEAABDBRITWMRESTEENE
FoOUBRRMEMBREEER T
HAhFEXEE - BERTECMAERS
FoOUBNBERBURESERNESE
MUBRFE - 2RESFNETERE
FEEHEIRVTOREXETES TR
BE o MEREFggxESNGHE
RENKEFTEF - EFZRHRFABEB
BEFEMANHEFE - ARATRAKEHH
FFEEERMHELSRFENBEEE
H-2REEFREREINERUETT
HBS TTEAENERT EF9IRN
BEBRATEXBIEERSR EAMHA
KRB AE - 2REFHARENES

TEEEENMARE-

RAEFE BEFGHARAMORGHZ S
EFHNHERBROT

Attendance

Name of Directors ERfa SR
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) B EE (£/%) 4/4
Mr. Cong Rinan =BmEE 4/4
Mr. Lu Jungiang Bt 4/4
Mr. Ni Shili (resigned on 29 December 2023) {REF|&LE (R ==

+TZAZ+AHED 3/3
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) =IERS AL (B F/E) 4/4
Mr. Chen Lin PRARSE 4 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors EHIIJFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui TR S 4 4/4
Mrs. Meng Hong AL 4/4
Mr. Li Qiang FogsdE 4/4
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of the
Code. The remuneration committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui
(chairman of remuneration committee), Mrs. Meng Hong,
Mr. Li Qiang and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Tang Zhengpeng.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group's performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the remuneration committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors’ remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the Year, two meetings have been held by the
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration
committee attended the meeting during which the
remuneration package of directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company were reviewed. The chairman
of the remuneration committee reports the findings and
provides recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

During the Year, the remuneration committee has
convened two meeting to review the remuneration
package of Directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company for the Year and the attendance of each
remuneration committee member is set out below:
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SREEAEHEHR FHEEETS
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Attendance
Member of Remuneration Committee #HMMESERE HEBR
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng wwIEMS T 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors HIiIJFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) TEELE (£/F) 2/2
Mrs. Meng Hong mAZ L 2/2
Mr. Li Qiang FogdE 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012 in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Li Guohui (chairman
of the nomination committee), Mrs. Meng Hong, Mr. Li
Qiang and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Tang
Zhengpeng. The terms of reference of the nomination
committee are of no less exacting terms than those set out in
the Code. The principal duties of the nomination committee
include:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

In assessing the Board composition, the nomination
committee would take into account various aspects as
well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The nomination committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the nomination committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board.

During the Year, the nomination committee has convened
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2023 annual general
meeting and candidate who was proposed to be appointed
as the Director. Attendance of each nomination committee
member is set out below:
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EMERBECENESREEARIZ
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Attendance
Member of Nomination Committee RHZEEERE HEBR
Non-executive Director JERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng wIEMS T 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors JEHIIJEHITESE
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) TEELE (F/F) 11
Mrs. Meng Hong DAL 1/1
Mr. Li Qiang Fagsdt 1/1
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Board of Directors (continued)

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee
comprises Mr. Long Jing (chairman of the corporate
governance committee), Mr. Li Guohui, Mrs. Meng Hong and
Mr. Li Qiang.

The principal duties include:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the corporate governance committee has
convened one meeting. The attendance of each corporate
governance committee member is set out below:
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Member of Attendance
Corporate Governance Committee TtEEREZEERE R
Executive Director BITES

Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) BER S E (£/F) /1
Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIJEHITEE

Mr. Li Guohui FEES L 1/1
Mrs. Meng Hong HAZ T 1/1
Mr. Li Qiang TSk 11
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Board of Directors (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee on 15 March
2012. Currently, the audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui

(chairman of the audit committee),

Mrs. Meng Hong,

and Mr. Li Qiang and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng. The terms of reference of the audit
committee are of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the Code. The principal responsibilities of the audit
committee includes:

(a)

To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the same
at the general meeting for consideration. To approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors when the general meeting is authorizing the
Board to determine the remuneration of the auditors,
and to address any questions regarding the resignation
or retirement of that auditor.

To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.
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Board of Directors (continued) EEET®

Audit Committee (continued) BZEEE (B

(d) To monitor the completeness of the financial statements  (d) BERANATMNMHBRR KA ATE
of the Company and the annual report and accounts ERERKRERFFERGTNTE
and half-year report of the Company and to review the Mo G B E R PT A A B 7S B AR
significant opinion of the respective financial reporting NEARR - TEFHEH ZEGHE
contained therein. In this regard, the committee will BMEETRIXBHEALAQABDFERS
review the relevant statements and reports of the REEBRYFERESAIERBHR
respective annual report and accounts and half-year KRS o
report of the Company before submitting the same to
the Board.

(e) To oversee the financial reporting system and internal  (e) BB ZAA T FEERIRAE K AL EE
control procedures of the Company. ZEREF-e

During the Year, the audit committee has convened three WHAFE BRZZESHIER=XT
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and # > @ LFENmABRPPAREEE
reviewed the interim and annual results and have discussed — #& WRtAEB A ILEITEFET 75
and considered the internal control procedures of the Group. HEEZ - BREZEGSHENLEERS
The attendance of each audit committee member is set out P N

below:

Attendance
Member of Audit Committee BExEEENE HEER
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng wmIEMS ST 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors i JFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) FEE SR E (F/E) 3/3
Mrs. Meng Hong Eatigegun 3/3
Mr. Li Qiang Fogitt 3/3

Directors’ Liabilities Insurance EEEHERE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability HE_ZE_=F£+_B=+—HL %
insurance coverage for the Directors during the year ended E ARSI CAZEELHRBEENE
31 December 2023, which is still in force. EEERE > ZREDEE
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Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, the term of office for all Directors (including
the non-executive Directors) is three years. In accordance
with provision B.2.2 of the Code, Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Diversity of Directors

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy with
respect to the composition of the Board. In assessing
candidates running for directorships, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, technical expertise and the ability
to fulfill the requirements of the Board. At present, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Board is
sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee reviews the Board
Diversity Policy annually to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of
the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio in
the workforce (including the senior management of the
Company) of the Group comprised 57.4% male and 42.6%
female.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board has one female member,
out of a total of eight members. The Group believes that the
gender ratio of the workforce is within the reasonable range.
The Group will review the effectiveness of the measures
and practices against the actual circumstances of the Group
and will adopt new policies when considered necessary. In
particular, it will continue to monitor the gender ratio and
will aim at achieving a greater gender diversity in hiring all
positions across the Group.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
set out below:

2 2L BT A <=

ME_F_=G#+_A=t—8LSF
B A REEBRE R UBHE
{1,/ B 32 A9 F 2 A 55 B BT OB
SHWT :

Fees Paid/

Payable

Service Category Bl 75 48 B gt &R
RMB'000

AR¥ET T

Audit services for the Group AAREEREZBIRT 8,533
Audit services for subsidiaries of the Group AERERZ B A B R EZEARTE 6,430
Non-audit services (Note) JEZEART (FYsh) 2,243

Note:

Non-audit services included due diligence services for the Group's potential
acquisition and tax advisory services.

Company Secretary

Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effective from 26 May 2006.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December
2023, Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness, and such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles in
relation to the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and internal audit
functions. The Board has responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ investment.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group has internal control systems to formalize the
risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system to manage risk and
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Appropriate policies and
controls have been designed and established to ensure
the assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards
and regulatory reporting requirement and key risks that
may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
managed.

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
The Company has retained an independent professional
firm as external advisor to assist the Company to perform
an assessment on risk management and internal control
mechanism of the Group. We have our own Internal Audit
Department to fulfil the requirement of internal audit
function. Together with the supports from the external
advisor, the internal audit function can facilitate the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors in ascertaining the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an annual and ongoing basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has conducted an
annual risk assessment which identified respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks, and compliance risks
for each of the major business segment of the Group. Risk
factors were analyzed and consolidated at the Group level.
Based on the risk assessment results, following a risk-based
methodology audit approach, an annual internal audit
plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into
annual audit projects. The Group's internal audit department
performed the annual reviews in accordance with the
audit plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit
Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group strictly regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in information disclosure
policy to ensure potential inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately approved
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work
performed by the internal audit department, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that the Group
has maintained adequate and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Directors’ Responsibilities In Respect of
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently except the adoption of revised
standards, amendments to standards and interpretation.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 87 to 92 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles, the specific rights
of shareholders of the Company in the following three
aspects are as follows:

Convening Extraordinary General
Meetings

When two or more shareholders collectively holding ten
percent or more of the issued and outstanding voting
shares of the Company request in writing to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting as soon as practicable and
include the proposals put forward by the requestor in the
agenda of the meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals
at General Meetings

Where a general meeting is being convened by the
Company, shareholders individually or collectively holding
three percent or more of the total voting shares of the
Company shall be entitled to put forward and submit interim
proposals in writing ten days before the date of the general
meeting to the convener of the general meeting, who shall
issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting within
two days after receipt of the same to all other shareholders
and include matters in the proposals that fall within the
scope of duties of the general meeting in the meeting
agenda for consideration by the general meeting.

Proposals for a general meeting shall satisfy the following
conditions: (1) the contents of the proposals shall not
contravene the provisions of laws and regulations and shall
fall within the scope of business and the duties of the
general meeting of the Company; (2) the proposals shall
have clear topics for discussion and specific matters to be
resolved upon; and (3) the proposals shall be submitted or
delivered to the Board in writing.

Such proposals and the written requisitions from the
aforesaid requestors calling for the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting may be delivered to the
Board or company secretary of the Company by hand, mail
or courier at the following address: 29/F., Two Chinachem
Central, 26 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Making Enquiries to the
Board and Information Available Thereon

Shareholders of the Company may obtain such relevant
information as stipulated in the articles of association of the
Company after payment of fees at cost in accordance with
the provisions therein, and may raise their concerns with or
make enquiries about the aforesaid information to the Board
via the email address, postal address and telephone numbers
posted on the Company’s website.

If shareholders have any enquiries in respect of their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividends, they may
contact Tricor Standard Limited, the Company's H share
registrar, from time to time.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the general meetings, directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (continued)

During the year, four general meetings were held. The
attendance of each Directors is set out below:

TEERARS

B RRIgEENER @

REFE RERASHAMAEREZ-
BREFHREBRAOT

Attendance

Name of Directors EEn4 HEER
Executive Directors BMITES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) R EE (£/F) 3/4
Mr. Cong Rinan =BmEE 4/4
Mr. Lu Jungiang ESak: P 4/4
Mr. Ni Shili (resigned on 29 December 2023) EHF|&4E (R 2=

+ZAZ+ N BEE) 4/4
Non-executive Directors JEMITESE
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) wIERS A E (B F/E) 3/4
Mr. Chen Lin PR AR S A 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIJFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui FEIESLE 4/4
Mrs. Meng Hong HAZ T 4/4
Mr. Li Qiang Tt 4/4

The independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors have attended general meetings of the Company
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the view of
the Shareholders.

The Company maintains a website at www.weigaogroup.com
as a communication platform with shareholders of the
Company and investors, where the financial information and
other relevant information of the Company are available for
public access.

The Company actively responds to enquiries raised by the
shareholders and investors through emails and phone calls.
The Company collects and analyzes, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the operations
of the Company given by securities analysts and investors
and compiling them into reports periodically, and selectively
adopting them in the operations of the Company. During
the Year, the Company had arranged company meetings,
telephone conferences, investors meetings, site visits,
held a number of non-deal road shows and organized
briefings, press conferences and one-on-one interviews with
investment institutions.

BYFATEEFRFATEFEHRE
ARERRARE UEETHRRENE
ke

X A B ® IR 1|
www.weigaogroup.com > % B 7K /A 5]
BREREREEENBBEFES ARG
BERKEMBEERTER &AL
WA HRARER -

ANBBBEBI K BEEROERE R
REENEH AR REWEL T
BEDNMERKREEHN KRB EENE
BERKEZ EHEEMKRS Ui
ARBNEEREEEM MR - F
W AABRHFATER BEER R
EEER BUMER BETIRERS
BE TASBRS HEEMSMA
BB —H—FHRe




86

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

Constitution Documents

During the Year, the Company proposed to amend its articles
of association which has been approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 13 October
2023. The adoption of the amendment to the articles of
association is subject to the fulfilment of all the relevant
conditions and/or all necessary approvals and/or consents
from the relevant PRC authorities and bodies being obtained
and/or the procedures as required under the laws and
regulations of the PRC being completed. As at the date of
this report, the above conditions have not been fulfilled. The
Company will publish an up-to-date version of the articles of
association of the Company on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange once the amendments becomes
effective. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 18 September 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED
LWRESEEBAS Y FRaRBERARE

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 284, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBIEBZEEAELENFEH D =B
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the ZABGEMBERRTEEEMNEE.
consolidated financial statements of the current period. ZA{TRBRERESHBRERLIMILE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit HMERFEENLESZE MAGHILSE
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and HIEBEBZEXRER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MEEZRER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REMBERERZAE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B AP 1

We identified impairment assessment of
the goodwill of interventional products
cash-generating unit with amount of
RMB3,249,640,000, including Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”), as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the
significant management estimate involved in
assessing the impairment of goodwill.
EEERINAERREEFEUZHE (£
RE 4 AR 163,249,640,0007T) & BTG (B1E
BIRBEBMIZREBRELE ((EIR))) 1FHE
REZSEE DERESRNGEMBRRAR
BAXERTEEHERER I RERNEE
@15t e

In estimating the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated, the management has made a
number of significant assumptions in the value
in use calculation. The key assumptions mainly
include discount rate and growth rate applied.
RiGstEmBEDENRESEL B2 o[BI
TR EEENEREESERERETE
RiRs% - B R T2 6 EPT AR KA

R

Details of significant judgments and
assumptions in the impairment assessment
are disclosed in Notes 5 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BETHFHNERASEBRFERGESHT
B RMIFES R 18 IFEE ©

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the goodwill of interventional products
cash-generating unit from acquisition of Argon
included:
EEMBBERINAERRTELEEMU2BHERE
SHENEZEFEE

e Understanding the internal controls relevant to the
impairment assessment of goodwill;

o THRABBRENLARZAIMIES

e Evaluating the valuation methodology and long-
term growth rate with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists;

e HAEARIFHEBEBZEXRNHEN T EGEES EREIAIE
Ex;

e Evaluating the discount rate, including developing
a range of independent estimates and comparing
those with the discount rate selected by the
management, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists; and

e AHMASMEEERNHE FTAGHERE 81
WEER , &

e  Evaluating the growth rate by comparing with
historical performance and industry data.

. EBRBERRRITERBILEGEREE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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ZHEA B RS MBS RRAK
BENEE®

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2024

#’/“‘v-r SRR AK

i S
S8

EIL 2
IR 1E

‘A]HEH

FITEREE B BE LN B HE R
BUREREZERE  HhEEXRTT
EEZPHE A HAEERERNERS
JEZBR°

AITTRRREBIRRER  RAETE
HEAMBIMNBEBEREREX
WERKEEEBUAESERIREGRE
TBIMNFIARGRKREMEER UKk
EBEABER TR HRES MRERTT
B AR BY P HEFE T

RESSEEBENSIER  R1THE X
EHFAPEGESYBRRNEARSE
EMNER AMBMBEREESEEH &
THEZBMRETEEREFFTE FIF
ERERATAFARKEZFTEER
HEBIHEFERABRT > SERAMER
AITZHRENERRESFTEENNEERR
REBEENLRHN @ BIEITRER
BEREPERAZER.

HEBUYZBMBENEZEEEBA
FHIRERAR o

£8) - A= G E 51T
BEGE AT
B

_EMFE=A_-+/,"H

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

' LEREEERASD TERRAERAT 2023 £}



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
C<$==7l)
Revenue WA 6 13,229,453 13,747,473
Cost of sales iHE p A (6,586,420) (6,441,741)
Gross profit EF] 6,643,033 7,305,732
Other income, gains and losses HA A~ W ka8 7 352,682 445,702
Impairment losses under expected FEHREERERE T2
credit loss model, net of reversal BEETE (BR#E[E]) 8 (5,343) (33,930)
Selling expenses HEMZ (2,582,237) (2,536,450)
Administrative expenses TEMAE (1,249,983) (1,122,577)
Research and development expenses FfERE (592,850) (556,442)
Finance costs RRE Al A 9 (272,971) (191,401)
Share of results of associates FEILEE ABIEE 86,079 77,906
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEREES (9,223) (2,801)
Profit before tax R8BI F 2,369,187 3,385,739
Income tax expense TSR 10 (307,585) (435,589)
Profit for the year F N A 11 2,061,602 2,950,150
Other comprehensive income Hh2mEmiA
Item that may be reclassified HEAEM D EERm
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEH
Exchange differences arising on MhEEBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations PERE%R 58,182 356,458
Total comprehensive income FREMEWALLLE
for the year 2,119,784 3,306,608




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the yearended 31 December 2023 BE_ZE_=F+"A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
B 5 ARBTR AREBTT
C<$==7l)
Profit for the year attributable to: TR IERGFERNRA
Owners of the Company ZIN/NESTEZ F =N 2,001,906 2,764,093
Non-controlling interests JEEREm 59,696 186,057
2,061,602 2,950,150
Total comprehensive income for the TFF&BEEGEREE
year attributable to: WA 4E%E -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZZ =N 2,051,260 3,093,925
Non-controlling interests JEIER T 68,524 212,683
2,119,784 3,306,608
Earnings per share SREF 14
Basic (RMB per share) BEXR (ERARET) 0.44 0.61
Diluted (RMB per share) B8 (BRAR®T) 0.44 0.61
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR AR

At 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+_F=+—H
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated)
—gB-=F —T_—fF
+=H _TZE
. =iZE  =i-@
B 5 ARBTR AEEBTT
(& &E:7)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN 4] 15 6,512,423 6,344,161
Right-of-use assets s E 16 494,308 515,221
Investment properties "EYE 17 135,611 140,785
Goodwill S 18 3,727,790 3,638,741
Deposits paid for acquiring property, EUEEYIZE  BE K&
plant and equipment sREzZENEE 328,302 461,041
Other intangible assets HimmpEE 19 1,507,337 1,722,176
Interests in associates = /NETROE v 20 1,461,381 1,375,302
Interests in joint ventures ReEbENER 21 349,318 358,035
Financial assets at fair value through 3 AF{Est AEBT
profit or loss HEZEMBEE 22 86,910 120,301
Deferred tax assets RIS E & 23 207,102 161,241
Finance lease receivables FEUW BLE T B R I8 24 15,302 23,037
Loan receivables FEWE R 25 147,191 184,165
Prepayments A RIE 27 62,965 70,536
15,035,940 15,114,742
Current assets MEIE E
Inventories 78 26 2,495,352 2,323,755
Loan receivables W E = 25 642,476 627,626
Trade and other receivables & UK B 53 BR 7R B EoAth
e IR \ 27 7,365,212 7,085,067
Financial assets at fair value through %A {Est ABm st
profit or loss EZTREE 22 371 -
Debt instruments at fair value B FEst AEA
through other comprehensive LEHNBHEFTTEZ
income BB LA 28 344,211 521,651
Finance lease receivables FEU A& 1E B k18 24 42,963 70,831
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BIEH 2 REIERTT
EEN 29 754,975 694,084
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHER 30 6,988,731 6,964,486
18,634,291 18,287,500
Current liabilities piE A=Y
Trade and other payables FET B 5 AR E At
FEAS TR I8 31 4,319,784 4,415,899
Contract liabilities EENE 32 424,492 380,444
Borrowings (R \ 33 2,546,750 960,808
Financial Tiabilities at fair value BATEST ABm
through profit or loss STErzEmMEs 22 7,653 -
Tax payable (SR8 239,964 193,918
Deferred income ESEUT A 35 7,369 13,110
Lease liabilities HE&E 36 26,587 29,323
Provisions BiE 9,442 11,655
7,582,041 6,005,157
Net current assets MENE E P 11,052,250 12,282,343
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTEEE 26,088,190 27,397,085
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E IR ER
At 31 December 2023 W -ZE - =F+_HB=+—H
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-= —_E_
+=A +_—H
=+—H =+—H
iz AR¥FTr ARETT
(2 E75)
Capital and Reserves BARKHE
Share capital &N 37 457,063 457,063
Reserves #E 21,992,058 21,309,803
Equity attributable to owners of the AT HA AE(LELR
Company 22,449,121 21,766,866
Non-controlling interests JEER T 1,543,584 1,815,419
Total equity R0 EE 23,992,705 23,582,285
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Borrowings R 33 499,894 2,403,212
Bonds payable T &S 34 995,405 993,977
Trade and other payables FET B 5 AR E At
NESE! 31 226,363 -
Deferred income 4% JIE ST A 35 59,977 69,094
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIRIBEEE 23 165,794 199,797
Lease liabilities HEESR 36 100,681 104,077
Contract liabilities =R =K 32 9,730 7,642
Provisions B 37,641 37,001
2,095,485 3,814,800
26,088,190 27,397,085

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 284
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of s TE
directors on 26 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

LONG Jing
REAE
DIRECTOR
BF

N — < —

BT THUATEEFAREFERE!

BI3E2BAEMGR AV HRREEES

ME=ZRB - +/xB#tERE

CONG Rinan

=HiE

DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGAEFS IN EQUITY
e BBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYGE TP
Share-
Share  Statutory based Non-
Share  premium surplus Translation  payments Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits Total interests Equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
(Note a) (Note b)
Nt
RiVEE  EERE AERfR

k% i i ERER B HfEE  REE &t FmRER  EEAE
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARETZ ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARET:

(Hizka) (Ktzkb)

At 1 January 2022 RZE__&E-A-A 457,063 2,743,144 261,271 (163,072) 151,500 774128 15,182,612 19,406,646 1,640,359 21,047,005
Restatements due to business combination under F—F ~ = EF— 24 T £H A4

common control in 2023 (Note 3(a) &G (H3() - - - - - 10,905 46,240 57,145 2,01 79,166
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZEZ"£-A—H (BE5) 457,063 2,743,144 261,211 (163,072) 151,500 785,033 15,228,852 19,463,791 1,662,380 21,126,171
Profit o the year (restated) FEEER (S5 - - - - - - 2764093 2,764,093 186,057 2,950,150
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMZANA - - - 329,83 - - - 329,832 26,626 356,458
Total comprehensive income FR2EWALE (LEF)

for the year (restated) - - - 329,832 - - 2764093 3,093,925 212,683 3,306,608
Consideration for business combination under ~ ZZZZFF-E5| THEBAHZAE

common control in 2022 (Note 3 (b)) (33(0)) - - - - - (288,000 - (288,000 - (288,000
Adoption of share award scheme (Note 38 (a) (c) SR A B At E] (i £38(a)(c)) - - - - - 46,958 - 46,958 - 46,958
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRNRREEZURDAERAR

payments (Note 38) (BizE38) - - - - 90,092 - - 90,092 1675 91,767
Repurchase of shares under a share award RERMHBHHEERG (H:38(0)

scheme (Note 38 (a)) - - - - (19,965) (15,283) - (35,248) - (35,248)
Recognition of sales of repurchased shares under BES2it £ RER T HEHE BN R

a share award scheme (Note 38 (a)) (FzE38(a)) - - - - - 25,50 - 25,57 - 25,572
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) ~ BRAAZ KBRS (H513) - - - - - - (680319 (680,319) (61,319 (741,638)
Other equity changes of an associate BENTEMERET - - - - - 50,095 - 50,005 - 50,095
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RIEZZE+ZA=+-A (BE5) 457,063 2,743,144 261,271 166,760 21,627 604375 17312626 21,766,866 1815419 23,582,285
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RZEZZE+ZA=+-H [EEF5) 457,063 2,743,144 261,211 166,760 21,627 604375 17,312,626 21,766,866 1815419 23,582,285
Proitfor the year KEEER - - - - - S 2000906 2000906 59696 2061602
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMRENA - - - 49354 - - - 49,354 8,828 58,182
Total comprehensive income for the year EW%@M%@E - - - 49,354 - - 2001906 2,051,260 68524 2,119,784
Consideration for business combination under ~ ~E - =EF-#5| FHEBAHZAE

common control in 2023 (Note 3 (a)) (33(a) - - - - - (743,407) - (743,407) (286,593) (1,030,000
Adoption of share award scheme (Note 38 (a) (c) FR4H8R 3 315t B (F38(al(c) - - - - - 46,958 - 46,958 - 46,958
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BINEREEZNRAAERER

payments (Note 38) (BzE38) - - - - 53977 - - 53977 1482 55,459
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary (Note 38 (d)) @& — i BAF K1 (H338(d) - - - - - (19,962) - (19,962) (16,568) (36,530)
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) ~ BESZAZDREAIRE (513) - - - - - - (67,0000 (687,000 (45632 (732,632
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) WE-ERBAR (H539) - - - - - (19,571) - (19,571) 6,952 (12,619)

At 31 December 2023 RZEZZE+ZAZ+-R 457,063 2,743,144 261,271 216,114 275604 (131,607) 18,627,532 22,449,121 1,543,584 23,992,705
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

l\‘7[_ =)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

B mEEHRK

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC (as defined in Note 1) require the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share
capital. According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the PRC companies, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus
reserve shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into
capital and expansion of its production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into capital, the remaining
amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Other reserves mainly includes the difference between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid to acquire the additional interest in
subsidiaries, the cost of the ordinary shares held by the trustees under
share award scheme and the reserves arised from differences between
the consideration of business combination under common control and
the net assets of the combining entities.

B 5E

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS

?:_g:_flf‘f'_ﬁ =t+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
—E=f =
+=8B +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IFFE
ARBTR AREBTT
(REZ)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEX
Profit before tax BRAR A m A 2,369,187 3,385,739
Adjustments for: KIEH Y FAE
Interest income B A (130,087) (117,540)
Finance costs =PI N 272,971 191,401
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZBINE
plant and equipment 587,745 511,630
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 42,322 37,160
Depreciation of investment properties KEYEITE 5,399 3,853
Allowances for credit losses EEBEERE 5,343 33,930
Impairment losses on property, ME~ BB R B EE 1R
plant and equipment 1,679 -
Impairment losses on inventories EEREERE 32,223 13,078
Impairment losses on other HihmiEERERE
intangible assets 8,020 10,806
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAMm A & = 8 i 276,238 250,501
Share-based payment expenses MURRMAER IS 55,459 91,767
Share of results of associates FE(LEE NB XA (86,079) (77,906)
Share of results of joint ventures BlEaahEES 9,223 2,801
Gain on deemed disposal of BAHENR—HEEZE A8
investment in an associate ®’E 2 W@ - (100,398)
Gain on disposal of financial HERAFEF ABHEFTE
instruments measured at FVTPL 22T ANkaE (5,968) 36,757
Gain on deregistration/disposal of RIERESE HERKB AT
investments in subsidiaries 2 EN WG (593) (47,832)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEDE -BERKEZ
plant and equipment B8, (W) 2,147 (60,919)
Release of deferred income AR SE WL A PR BR (29,741) (24,097)
Loss/(gain) from changes in fair value BATEStABHRAEZ
of financial assets at fair value THEEQTEES
through profit or loss 518, () 28,037 (19,557)
Exchange loss/(gain) EREE (W) 14,422 (145,228)
3,457,947 3,902,432
Movements in working capital EEBSTED
Increase in inventories FE1gm (202,090) (538,698)
Increase in trade and other receivables FE UL B 5 BR 7R K EL A FE UK
FRIEE N (234,753) (807,330)
Decrease in finance lease receivables BN ERE R 38,926 29,659
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables W ERURL, (E) 21,974 (61,291)
Decrease/(increase) in debt instruments BATEsFAEMEE
at fair value through other WAStEZEHF LA
comprehensive income b (a0 177,440 (78,179)
Decrease in other non-current assets HAIEme & &R - 296,995
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FET B 5 IR e LA FE A
other payables ;I8 Cel) g (175,273) 455,831
Increase in contract liabilities B8 EEN 46,136 61,266
Increase in deferred income 305 3IE Ut A 38 0 14,883 6,337
Decrease in provisions B ERL (2,475) (485,649)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
ARBTR ARBTT
C<$==7l)
Cash generated from operations KEMmERE 3,142,715 2,781,373
Income taxes paid B PTER (344,186) (486,493)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ EEXEMEBSRESEHE 2,798,529 2,294,880
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXED
Purchases of property, BEME BENERE
plant and equipment (319,275) (614,605)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMELEE (38,087) (43,669)
Payments of right-for-use assets RS EMN - (2,934)
Deposits paid for acquiring property, MBI 2= BB &
plant and equipment REZREE (328,302) (455,570)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME- -BERFZE
plant and equipment Fri§™18 6,741 6,680
Interest received BuH 8 130,547 107,385
Withdrawal of pledged/restricted ENEETFZRE
bank deposits RITFEM 651,655 573,134
Placement of pledged/restricted FEABEE ZRE
bank deposits RITER (712,546) (506,323)
Withdraw of term deposits IENEBREXR 1,252,541 -
Placement of term deposits EIEREMNR (2,000,376) (1,443,435)
Disposal of financial assets HERAFEFAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss STHEE 18,604 (29,937)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEE—RINEBABMMEERN
a subsidiary (Note 39) WREMmEFEE (EE39) (43,217) -
Investments in joint ventures REeshxENKRE - (179,000)
Investment in an associate RN—ERErENKRE - (8,000)
Disposal of an associate HE RS R - 790
Deregistration/disposal of subsidiaries RIEHES HEWRE AT 593 26,915
Payments of loan receivables S ITEWER (8,548) -
Repayment of loan receivables BERWER 1,078 21,502
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 18 & i EIRS S5 (1,388,592) (2,547,067)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS

A=
/\7[_ |:| Eﬁli /ﬁ%#ﬁ%
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE _ZE_=F+_A=+—HIEEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
+=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE EFE
AREBFrT ARETT
(&R&E7)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLE R
Repayments of borrowings BEEN (757.234) (874,672)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHE8E (44,982) (32,724)
New borrowings raised Gz AR 392,704 967,944
Interest paid B FHE (258,183) (184,619)
Dividends paid BKRE (732,633) (741,638)
Repurchase of shares under a 1R 35 B 47 2B 5t 8 [0 BE AR 17
share award scheme - (35,248)
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary Ol —EN B AR RGN (36,530) -
Net cash flow on business combination HEZEGF THNEREHZ
under common control (Note 3) REREFE8 (5E3) (721,000) (120,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEXEFRAZIRE 3 (2,157,858) (1,020,957)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HEkHAEEEWRHLBEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (747,921) (1,273,144)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVNIRERNSZEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,521,051 6,698,035
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ShEEE RSB T E 24,331 96,160
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNIRERIAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 4,797,461 5,521,051
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “"Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Weigao
Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”),
and its ultimate holding company is Weihai Weigao
International Medical Investment Holding Company
Limited (“Weihai Weigao International”). Both Weigao
Holding and Weihai Weigao International are registered
in the PRC with limited liability. Its ultimate controlling
party is Chen Xue Li. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is
No. 1, Weihai Road, Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park,
Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products and blood management products, and operate
financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group's annual period beginning on 1
January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020

and February 2022

Amendments to

HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Definition of

HKFRS 8 Accounting Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKFRS12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two model Rules

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
model Rules

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. HKAS 12 is amended
to add the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
that are related to tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (the “Pillar Two
legislation”). The amendments require that entities
apply the amendments immediately upon issuance
and retrospectively. The amendments also require that
entities to disclose separately its current tax expense/
income related to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
which the Pillar Two legislation is in effect, and the
qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially
enacted but not yet in effect in annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception
during the current year because the Group’s entities are
operating in jurisdictions which the Pillar Two legislation
has not yet been enacted or substantially enacted. The
Group will disclose known or reasonably estimable
information that helps users of financial statements to
understand the Group’s exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in the Group’'s annual consolidated financial
statements when the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or
substantially enacted and will disclose separately current
tax expense/income related to Pillar Two income taxes
when it is in effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the "Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group's accounting policies set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and

HKFRS 16 Leaseback?
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities
HKAS 1 as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)?
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants?
Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and Arrangements?
HKFRS 7
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability®
HKAS 21
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of all other amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
#2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

e specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Covenants which are required
to comply with only after the reporting period do
not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk that
the liabilities could become repayable within twelve
months after the reporting period, if the entity classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity's right to defer settlement of
those liabilities is subject to the entity complying with
covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”) (continued)

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted.
If an entity applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the
entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s right to defer
settlement for bonds payable of RMB995,405,000 are
subject to compliance with certain financial ratios based
on the Group’s financial position at the end of the
reporting period but assessed for compliance only after
the reporting period when the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group are available. Such
bonds payable were classified as non-current as the
Group met such ratios as at 31 December 2023. The
application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

Except as described above, the application of the 2020
and 2022 Amendments will not affect the classification
of the Group's other liabilities as at 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE
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3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS

The Group accounts for all its business combinations
involving entities under common control using the
principles of merger accounting.

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

December 2023

In the current year, Shandong Weigao
Orthopaedic Materials Company Limited (“Weigao
Orthopaedic”), a subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 100% interests in Weigao New Life
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. ("“Weigao New
Life”) from fellow subsidiaries, Weihai Weigao
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.; Weihai Weigao Fusen
Medical Materials Co., Ltd.; Weihai Weigao
Medical Imaging Technology Co., Ltd. and Weihai
Weigao Qiquan Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. with
a total cash consideration of RMB1,030,000,000
(the "Acquisition”). Weigao Orthopaedic acquired
control over Weigao New Life on 3 January 2023.

Weigao New Life is engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of tissue
repair products. The principal products include
platelet-rich plasma preparation kits and closed
trauma negative pressure drainage set.

Weigao New Life was established on 8 April
2008, which was indirectly held by Weihai Weigao
International, and thereby the Group and Weigao
New Life came under common control of Weihai
Weigao International. Since Weigao New Life
and the Group have been under common control
by Weihai Weigao International before and
after the Acquisition, the Group has applied the
principles of merger accounting with reference to
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations to the Acquisition
(the "AG5") issued by the HKICPA as if the
common control combination had been effected
since the establishment of Weigao New Life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

December 2023 (continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2022 have been
restated to include the assets and liabilities of
Weigao New Life as if they were within the Group
since 8 April 2008. The consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2022 have also been
restated to include the results and the cash flows
of Weigao New Life.

The effects of the application of merger
accounting on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND 3.
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31
December 2023 (continued)

aHEEET @

(a) HEZZT"=%+_"A
E+—HLEFEZEHEE

(®
The year
ended The year
31 December ended
2022 as 31 December
previously 2022 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S S
—E-C —E-C
+-B=+—H +-RA=+—-H
ILEFE ILEE
(M%E 25K) W (BE7)
AR®FT AREF T ARETTT
Revenue WA 13,619,007 128,466 13,747,473
Cost of sales HEME (6,505,925) 64,184 (6,441,741)
Gross profit E# 7,113,082 192,650 7,305,732
Other income, gains and losses HAl A Wi kB8 444,765 937 445,702
Impairment losses under expected ~ FEEIEEHEER T2
credit loss model, net of reversal  R{EESIE (I FR#E(@) (33,332) (598) (33,930)
Selling expense HERY (2,427,077) (109,373) (2,536,450)
Administrative expenses THHER (1,116,689) (5,888) (1,122,577
Research and development expenses B 2552 (546,552) (9,890) (556,442)
Profit before tax BRI ANER 3,317,901 67,838 3,385,739
Income tax expense FrEMmx (424,267 (11,322) (435,589)
Profit for the year FREF] 2,893,634 56,516 2,950,150
Total comprehensive income FREAWALE
for the year 3,250,092 56,516 3,306,608
Profit for the year attributable to: T3 & IBREMEEFREF
Owners of the Company AREEBA 2,723,309 40,784 2,764,093
Non-controlling interests FERER 170,325 15,732 186,057
Total comprehensive income TS ERLFENZE
for the year attributable to: ONE
Owners of the Company iN/NSIE 2SN 3,053,141 40,784 3,093,925
Non-controlling interests kR 196,951 15,732 212,683

The basic earnings per share during the year ended
31 December 2022 changed from RMBO0.60 per
share to RMBO0.61 per share due to the application
of merger accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31
December 2023 (continued)

The effects of the application of merger
accounting on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022 are
summarised below. Line items that were not

3. AHEtEET @

(a) BE-F_-_=5+_-A
=t+—BLEEEZEHER
(&)

KEGHEHEENRF
—_HFF+ZR=+—HZ&E
GMBRRETZZE®TS W
T RAREFHTENRE IR

affected by the changes have not been included. CAPNG
As at
31 December As at
2022 as 31 December
previously 2022 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BZEZZ R-8-Z%
+ZBA=+-H +ZB=+-H
(MEFZEH) AE (&)
ARBTT AERBTTT ARBT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ #)¥ BB K&t 6,342,212 1,949 6,344,161
Deposits paid for acquiring MENE BB K
property, plant and equipment BB THIRSE 455,570 5,471 461,041
Deferred tax assets EEREBEE 159,453 1,788 161,241
Total Non-current assets FRBEERE 15,105,534 9,208 15,114,742
Current assets MBEE
Inventories 78 2,315,343 8,412 2,323,755
Trade and other receivables B ZRF R E IR 7,024,893 60,174 7,085,067
Debt instruments at fair value — #AFEAHMEEWA
through other comprehensive st EZ &% I A
income 495,337 26,314 521,651
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEY 6,862,278 102,208 6,964,486
Total Current assets BB EMLE 18,090,392 197,108 18,287,500
Current liabilities Ve IR
Trade and other payables B 5 R KA MR FIE 4,370,333 45,566 4,415,899
Contract liabilities BHEE 370,150 10,294 380,444
Tax payable EARE 179,144 14,774 193,918
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

December 2023 (continued)

3. SHEFAET @®

(a) &

E-ET=

#£+=A8

=+—HLEFEZEHES

()
As at
31 December As at
2022 as 31 December
previously 2022 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZ¥ZZ R-%ZZ
+=B=+-H +ZB=+-H
(Mm% 25) HE (REF)
AREFTT ARBTT AREF T
Total Current liabilities MENEERE 5,934,523 70,634 6,005,157
Net Current Assets MBEE PR 12,155,869 126,474 12,282,343
Total Assets less Current REERTBEaRE
Liabilities 27,261,403 135,682 27,397,085
Capital and reserves BARGE
Reserves 4 21,211,874 97,929 21,309,803
Equity attributable to owners of AT HEE AEEER
the Company 21,668,937 97,929 21,766,866
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,777,666 37,753 1,815,419
Total Equity EmiER 23,446,603 135682 23,582,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Merger accounting in the year ended 31
December 2023 (continued)|

The effect of the application of merger accounting
on the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
increasing the net cash from operating activities
with amount of RMB80,306,000, increasing net
cash from investing activities with amount of
RMB21,896,000, and increasing cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year with amount of
RMB102,208,000.

Merger accounting in the year ended 31
December 2022

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company acquired 100% interests in Weihai
Weigao Medical Materials Co., Lte. ("Weigao
Medical Materials”) from Weigao Holding with a
total cash consideration of RMB288,000,000. The
Company acquired control over Weigao Medical
Materials on 9 September 2022.

Weigao Medical Materials is engaged in the
research and development, manufacturing and
sales of infection protection products, disposable
interventional surgery auxiliary kits, disposable
sterile surgical kits and disease control protection
products.

Weigao Medical Materials was established on 13
March 2002, which was held by Weigao Holding,
and thereby the Group and Weigao Medical
Materials came under common control of Weigao
Holding. Since Weigao Medical Materials and
the Group have been under common control by
Weigao Holding before and after the acquisition,
the Group has applied the principles of merger
accounting with reference to AG 5 as if the
common control combination had been effected
since the establishment of Weigao Medical
Materials.

3. Atg

(a)

(b)

stEEY (@)

BE—_T-=%+=8
E+—HLEFEZGHEE

(&)
RAEHEAHBEE_Z

T+ ZA=+—HIF
ENiGEREsRERNEE
A SRR FRAIY
A R#80,306,0007C &
XBMERSFHENAR
#21,896,0007Tc X EFRMIR
ERIEEEEYEMNARKE
102,208,0007T ©

BE-—E-—_+=A
=+—HLEFEEZEHE:

BE_ZT__£+°-AH
=+—HLEFE > EATLUE
REREARBE288,000,000
7T ) B = & B A B UK s
BEBRAMHMAERAS (THS
BERAMEL) B9100% R (o7
ARSIl — 2 W= W =
NSHESEBME A ES
o

BB BRI SRR &
Ean s —RMEEBNT AT
BeE - —RUEERERTME
R 5% E B 3~ RS
R AHE o

HEBRAMBR _Z2ZF
—A+=BRI HESEE
AERFAE FHEEEEREES
BRAVMHREEERAAH
EIHEH] o B IS B = B8 A 1 e
AEERWENZR -BEXE
SEEABHFES > WAL
EERWRBEEEAGHS
SHEAT S EEBEFMA
GEMR G EHIE5IE55% 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1

4.2

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

4.

4.1

4.2

R
=2

FOMBHREERE
THERE R

\

E

ﬂll|‘

RRGEAMBRREE

REVMBRRIODEREES
ST AgEMmZEBMBR
SEARHR - MmERESHH
KERZENME  ENGER
ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ@%ﬁ%‘%%@@ﬁﬁ
BZRR ZFEMABERS
BEKX-MIN FEHFBFHRE
HEETREMEXZMARS
BlEE 5 AR (TEmRA)
REBABFRARENER
e

FEGHHEREN

HEMBRRELIERT N
R 2 A B) e EL MY B A B P £
FINBRENMBRR -E4X0Q
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

REBE (&

MEBARRAEBERSNE
ABRIEFERRIBGS

IR W AERE BB L
B R HERIRE R AR LE o 45 B2
FARBHELERB QR
WAKRMXBAEBRREE
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ERIRBARZBLERES
BomRkEMEERARIER

Bmk&HME2EWAES
BERAERABERE AN RIFE
iEm - WEARNZEWA
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FFEREm A RFAERR

AEERVRERGHNBEA
AR B ERFHBE UL
MEBARNE B RERE
ERE St BERAN —Ke

HAEENBERRBXZH
HHFFEERREERER
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HREEREREHEHE-
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AEERETHEOTSRZ
Pl iERFRHAZ BT
FEARMRFERZLS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and
assets which includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The acquired
processes are considered substantive if they
are critical to the ability to continue producing
outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce
or cannot be replaced without significant cost,
effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control, are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUEEMFRREERE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHHREHN @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
4.2 Material accounting policy information 4.2 FEFHHBREH (@&
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EFBEEH (&)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”)
except for transactions and events within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the
Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead
of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

P W 58 BY B 8 Bl B 2 R AR K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value.

Merger accounting for business
combination involving businesses under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party's perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Merger accounting for business
combination involving businesses under
common control (continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
businesses had been combined at the beginning
of the previous reporting period or when they first
came under common control, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs"”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate
or joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The revenue of the Group mainly comes from sales
of goods. Revenue is recognised at a point in time
upon control of the goods has been transferred,
being when the goods have been accepted by the
customers. Following acceptance, the customer
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in
associates and joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on
an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Shares/Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar series are measured
at the fair value of equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration of all non-market vesting
considerations is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payments reserve).At the end of the
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting condition. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to share-based payments reserve.

When the award shares/share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to other reserve. When the award shares/share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHHBREEH @®
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

KR BEEM (&

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions W REZE 2 R BT
(continued) X5 (#)

Shares/Share options granted to employees
(continued)

When shares granted are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments

reserve will be transferred to other reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current

and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
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of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and BRERMEESEEEENGTE

assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Surgical instruments produced by the Group that
are dedicated for use with the Group’s orthopaedic
implant products commence depreciation upon
they are provided to the distributors that in the
location for their intended use.

Buildings in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers

Transfers to, or from, investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
owner-occupied property to investment property;
or commencement of owner-occupation, for
a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHHBREEH @®
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (continued)

e how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.
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Impairment on property, plant and BEEIZHE BERR
equipment, right-of-use assets, and B EHAEESERBVEER
intangible assets other than goodwill =}

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
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individually, the Group estimates the recoverable G ZEEMBZREEL
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the Bz ElEEE

asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

BREERFE

=ik
EEHRER @

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

BREENIZYE BERR
HRHESERERNEER
& (&)

i xEEHER B PTRE
TRABEBEEMREHRAEE
TetfE - MEFEFEBERER N
AHEAGER—BNDEE
EE > ARBENTGDEERE
AIRTEEENM SRERD
EER/NZREELEUES
(MEATHESER —RH
DEEER) o

P El @A R FERLE
MARERBEZESE 57
EEREER  JHERERR
WITH G P aT(h & 88 2 5
BEZRABBEXREREH
REBE MZEE (HFL
EEEM) ZBFARKESR
BRIKRAHEMERER -

' LEREEERASD TERRAERAT 2023 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or A group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprise of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from

the Group's ordinary course of business are
presented as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

EHTA (&)

Financial instruments (continued)

THEE (B

Financial assets (continued)

TMEENDERRBRESE

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued) =)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt
instruments. When these debt instruments are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income,
gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUFAMHBRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEgHHEEHE ®

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information 4.2 FEFHHBREH (@&
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EFMITA &)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&
Impairment of financial assets and other items THEBENEBUBREE
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Ao BETREN G H
MIEE 2 BE
The Group performs impairment assessment rEBRBEEHREERE (T8
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on HESRE) BRAHREBESEE
financial assets (including trade and other MBREENEIRZH LA
receivables, receivables from factoring business, ETRENGNEMEE (8
loan receivables and debt instruments at FVTOC], EEWE SRR EAME U
pledged/restricted bank deposits, cash and BN RIBEFSE WIS FE
bank balances), and other items (finance lease WER KRB AFES AEAM
receivables and financial guarantee contracts) PEHBAGFEZEHFIE B
which are subject to impairment assessment under B ZEGIRITERURIR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount of EIRITHER) REMIEE (UK
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect MEHERBERERIERS
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. 2) ETRESL - TBHRES

EENEERNSE2RARE
o UURIRE B RERENE

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result EEBHNTEREEEEE
from all possible default events over the expected MELARESSFEHAMA
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, OEMNENEHREELENTE
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the HEEBE-ER12E8E
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result BEEEBE (M2ERAEHEE
from default events that are possible within 12 BB IENRERHEER 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are BEANAIEZEENENSTH
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss TEstEE B Z B0 2 EEE A
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific HTEHRE B R348 o a1 Th IR 15
to the debtors, general economic conditions and REBRBEIEEFEELRA
an assessment of both the current conditions at ER > UmEBSAFERR
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future ERCERERBESHHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables. The ECL for these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e  existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

150 SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

EHTA (&)

THEE (B

TRMEERBBUBREE
AR AETREMNEZHE
=B 2 RE (4)

(i) FEERREE LA (@

o RAWEMNBHE-
Sl B |
AREE) > ERETF
ANEBEF/EREIRKR
e

e BEBAKEEEN
ERNFAHREES
&5

s BEHANEE KK
AERMREABER
HFEHKEKRTF
DE> EREHAE
BEERNEKIE
TEEe

' LEREEERASD TERRAERAT 2023 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI only comprise bank bills receivable
that are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks and therefore are
considered to be low credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes
of assessing impairment. The Group considers
the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE B _=F+_A=+—HILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEMBERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEgHEEHE @®
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information 4.2 FEFHHBREH (&

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

EHTA (&)

THEE (B

TRMEERBBUBREE
AR AETREMNEZHE
=B 2 RE (4)

(iv) Write-off policy (iv) HEEEER
The Group writes off a financial asset when BENBETHFAERERE
there is information indicating that the B REEERWL A

counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables and
finance lease receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16
Leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is
the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
finance lease receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

156  SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R
28

ik

=Rivki
TEEREE @®

1

BREERFE

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

EHTA (&)

THEE (B

TRMEERBBUBREE
AR AETREMNEZHE
=B 2 RE (4)

(v)

HHREEBEZFER
FEED ()

MM BEREOMS > &
EREREEBAER
FRER T RGERBEBER
SRR FBHES
BRILHBERE AR
EEEERRKZARMR
B2 RE BEREER
BT A A BB A
S AEREM TS IR Z
EAIEEE

ETRREZSERMRE
WREREMENTFE
HAREERES K
BB RAREEER
(BEAEMERRER
Bk HEFEEE-

' LEREEERASD TERRAERAT 2023 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

MNESHMBEREBERE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
e  Past-due status;

e  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.

Except for investments in debt instruments
that are measured at FVTOCI and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception
of receivables from factoring business, loan
receivables and trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment through
a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
EEHRENR @

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 FEGFHHREH (B

4.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’'s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies, (ii) held
for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RRESUHBHEREBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEgHHEEHE ®

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information 4.2 FEFHHBREH (@&
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EFMITA &)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEERED (B)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued) BATEFFABGFEZE

maE (@

A financial liability is held for trading if: WE TR HENERMEERE
EREAXZMEAEZER
=R

e it has been acquired principally for the e TETHMEFENENE
purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; B/ HRREE] ; 5
or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio e TVHREIFELEH
of identified financial instruments that the EPREENHREM
Group manages together and has a recent TEEEHN—Fn 1 HE
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or MBI BEIER

FREZAESETERE;
%

e itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is s EETEIA -ERZ
a financial guarantee contract or a designated MERSOIWIEES
and effective hedging instrument. BEMHEHATENTET

RS

Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHER A ECEMEBE

Financial liabilities including borrowings, bonds THas (BEER -BNE

payable and trade and other payables are FUKRENE ZRR KR HAM

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using FE AT TRIE) EL 18 12 8 85 Al A 3%

the effective interest method. BB XEFdE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUFAMHBRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEgHHEEHE ®

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information 4.2 FEFHHBREH (@&
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) E2HTA B

Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEERED (B)
Changes in the basis for determining the AAEEENEMERET
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate ERIREREEHE)

benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the MAMNEXEENEMERE
contractual cash flows of a financial liability to EREBHEKASEZEME
which the amortised cost measurement applies BEZENREeEnBEEZEF
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the SO AEERATTHERER
Group applies the practical expedient to account FoOUBHBRANXERZEE
for these changes by updating the effective AR BRI X @8 —
interest rate, such change in effective interest rate femEsHEEEmMEB R 2R
normally has no significant effect on the carrying HETEEBETEZ.

amount of the relevant financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the EERNS NAMEGRER =
contractual cash flows is required by interest TeaNRenzEEBRARE
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these MBS MEE !

conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct s ZEFEMXEENZ
consequence of interest rate benchmark ZEEEBR &
reform; and
e the new basis for determining the contractual e EBESHNBEERZME
cash flows is economically equivalent to EERKE EERN LA
the previous basis (ie the basis immediately B2 EBEFHF2E
preceding the change). %) o
Derivative financial instruments TEEMI A
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at METBRYMTHTETARAS
the date when derivative contracts are entered into AN HBENAFERES  H
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value BREANBKRSHRNLQFE
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting BEMstE-PMEENWGEINE
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. BRI 1B P HEED ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or
a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of
the instrument is more than 12 months and it is
not due to be realised or settled within 12 months.
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5.

UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU (or group of CGUs) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows
or upward revision of the discount rate, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six operating divisions — medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management
products and others, among which interventional
products were produced by Argon. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (Managing Director) in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Principal activities of the Group’'s operating and
reportable segments are as follows:

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

Medical device
products

production and sale of orthopaedic
products, including tissue repair
product line

Orthopaedic -
products

Interventional - production and sale of tumour

products and blood vessel interventional
instruments

Pharma — production and sale of pre-filled
packaging syringes and flushing syringes
products

Blood — production and sale of blood
management collection, irradiation, storage,
products separation and sterilization products

Others — finance lease and factoring business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. MARSHER @

SEWMARES

AEBIL A REDE DT Z WA K
FEWMTE

BFEF-_F-_-F+"H=+—HIE

FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic Interventional packaging management
products products products products products Others  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRENER BRER NAER ERtEER 0OREEER Hftt e ait
AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AEETm  AEETR
Revenue N
External sales SHBBE 6,961,407 1,271,203 1,931,040 2,023,809  1,041,99% - - 13229453
Inter-segment sales RBRIHE 45,797 - - - - - (45,797) -
Total ait 7,007,204 1,271,203 1,931,040 2,023,809 1,041,994 - (45,797) 13,229,453
Segment profit AR 1,053,863 74,159 23,454 811,783 120,203 82,732 - 2,166,194
Depreciation of investment RENEINE
properties (5,399)
Unallocated other income, gains ~ RAREMBA ERER
and losses (3,031)
Rental income of investment ~ REWNEZAEKA
properties 11,412
Interest income from bank BEDZHERA
deposits 158,509
Loss from changes in fair value %7 F B ABAHEZER
of financial instruments at BATEEEER
FVTPL (28,037)
Gain on disposal of financial ~ HERATEFAERHEL
instruments measured at SRTIAZNG
FVTPL 5,968
Share of results of associates ~ EfSEEAF£E 86,079
Share of resuls of joint ventures  EEAEREZE (9,223)
Share-based payment expenses  MURHAERR[IFER (42,426)
Gain on deregistration of HEENBLIREZ NG
investments in subsidiaries 593
Net gain of litigation FEN e 28,548
Profit hefore tax BianaR
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(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MBI MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. MARSHER @

SEUWARER (B

 E_E_—F{+-HF=+—HI
FE

Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic Interventional packaging  management
products products products products products Others  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
BEAENER BHER NAER EpOfER NREEER Hth iz =5l
ARETT ARETR ARETn AR®TR AR%TR AR®Tx ARETT ARETR
(& E75) (&5 (&5
Revenue O
External sales SEPEE 6,779,746 2,038,168 1726167  2,105432 1,097,960 - - 13,747,473
Inter-segment sales R HHE 50,802 - - - - - (50,802) -
Total At 6,830,548 2,038,168 1,726,167 2,105,432 1,097,960 - (50,802) 13,747,473
Segment profit DEER 1,297,951 643,144 147,448 895,983 210,587 64,017 - 3,259,130
Depreciation of investment ~ REMEZHE
properties (3,853)
Unallocated other income,  RABEMBA AR
gains and losses 55 62,147
Rental income of BEMEZBENA
investment properties 11,812
Interest income from bank BT Z A BIKA
deposits 117,540
Gain on disposal of HERKBLARREZ
investments in Wi
subsidiaries 47,832
Gain from changes in BATES BRI EL
fair value of financial SRMIANTEED
instruments at FVTPL Wi 19,557
Gain on disposal of HERATFEHFAER
financial instruments at SEZEBMIAZME
FVTPL 36,757
Gain on deemed disposal  RALER—FHELTE
of investments in an REZ Wi
associate 100,398
Share of results of S = UNSES
associates 77,906
Share of results of joint EEEELEEE
ventures (2,801)
Share-based payment NRGAERNOATES
expenses (81,077)
Net loss of litigation SR SE (259,609)
Profit before tax IR IRRTER

3,385,739
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

6.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of depreciation and rental income
of investment properties, unallocated other income,
gains and losses of the corporate function, interest
income from bank deposits, gain on disposal of
investments in subsidiaries, gain from changes in fair
value of financial instruments at FVTPL, gain on disposal
of financial instruments at FVTPL, gain on deemed
disposal of investments in an associates, share of results
of associates/joint ventures, share-based payment
expenses recognised for grantees of the management
of the Group and net gain/(loss) of litigation. This is
the measure reported to the Managing Director for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARAIHBER @
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and REBERIIRERKEEDE DT Z
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: BEERBEAOT
Segment assets DEEE
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(restated)
—f== =2
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
C<==p7l)
Medical device products BEIRMESR 11,095,372 10,439,913
Orthopaedic products = A E i 2,994,546 3,143,920
Interventional products 7T A i 5,600,529 5,918,361
Pharma packaging products BEonOEEmR 2,970,487 2,853,330
Blood management products m&ERE®M 825,519 1,051,854
Others Hh 1,103,765 1,169,640
Total segment assets DEEAE E 24,590,218 24,577,018
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEStABGTE2 S/
BE 87,281 120,301
Interests in associates FEE QBN ER 1,461,381 1,375,302
Interests in joint ventures NN =R 349,318 358,035
Investment properties KREYE 135,611 140,785
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIEE E 207,102 161,241
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BER /R EHIRITER 754,975 694,084
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHER 6,084,345 5,975,476
Consolidated assets REBE 33,670,231 33,402,242




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WA KRSEEER @
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEERER (B
Segment liabilities DEEE
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(restated)
—F-= =
+=A +=8
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
C<=pl)
Medical device products B 2R I A o 4,953,772 4,771,335
Orthopaedic products 2R E 1,217,784 997,992
Interventional products A E 2,598,068 2,886,469
Pharma packaging products BERBEEER 289,710 419,208
Blood management products mREEESR 287,674 323,020
Others Hih 53,323 59,055
Total segment liabilities PRy =N 9,400,331 9,457,079
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIBE A 165,794 199,797
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEStABHRAEZERM
a8\ 7,653 -
Unallocated other payables FOEEMELRIE 103,748 163,081
Consolidated liabilities magE 9,677,526 9,819,957

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments: BIR

e all assets are allocated to operating segments J
other than financial assets at FVTPL, interests in
associates, interests in joint ventures, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, pledged/restricted
bank deposits and part of cash and bank balances.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments o
other than deferred tax liabilities, financial
liabilities at FVTPL, and unallocated other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. IRARSDIEE @

(continued)

Other segment information HithaEHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_EF-_=-F+-H=+—HIE
FE

Medical Pharma Blood

device  Orthopaedic Interventional ~ packaging management
products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRENER BHER NAER EBREOKER NDREEER -4 ait

AERFR  ABBTR  ARBTR  AREFTR  AREFR  ABRTR  ARETR

Amounts included in the measure of FENDEHTADEEY

segment profit or segment assets: EEE N
Additions to property, plant and equipment  HiE9% HERRE 278,952 147,048 30,271 220,077 69,175 - 745,523
Alowances for credit losses FERERE 23,037 (16,043) 1,381 (1,656) (1,721) 345 5,343
Impairment losses on inventories BEHERE 1,571 21,944 2,708 - = - 32,223
Impairment losses on property, NE BRERZRAESE

plant and equipment - 1,679 - - - - 1,679
Impairment losses on other intangible assets Bt EFEEHESE - - 8,020 - - - 8,020
Amortisation of other intangible assets EtEREEEN 612 5,232 257,425 25 12,944 - 276,238
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%BERZENE 274,520 102,934 26,524 132,839 50,920 8 587,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 26,082 4,358 6,869 - 5,013 - 42,302
Loss/(gain)/on disposal of property, HENE RERZERR/

plant and equipment (g 444 17 1,423 (20) 283 - 2,147
Research and development expenditure HERY 304,007 130,310 50,339 65,213 42,981 - 592,850
Share-based payment expenses MRHAERNARES - 1,105 11,928 - - - 13,033
Government grants Bt (50,162) (8,477) (6,992) (7,286) (154) (6,071) (79,142)
Rebate of value added tax ("VAT") R (MEER) X (75,683) - - (46) - (3,012) (78,741)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

6. MARSHER @

Eﬂﬂﬁnﬂﬁﬂ (n\;)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_F__F+_HF=+—HIt

172
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FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device Orthopaedic ~ Interventional packaging ~ management
products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
BRENER BRER NER EnffER OREEER Hh Bt
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AR¥TR  ARRTn  ARETn  A\RETx
(fEE5) (=) (=)
Amounts included in the measure of FENDEHTADEEY
segment profit or segment assets: EEE R

Additions to property, plant and equipment  HiE9% HERRE 206,135 164,204 5139 629,251 52,861 39 1,103,880
Alowances for credit losses FERERE 12,531 8759 487 7,199 - 4,954 33,930
Impairment losses on inventories ERAERR (16) 7453 1,806 - 3,835 - 13,078
Impairment losses on other intangible assets B EFEEHERE - - 10,806 - - - 10,806
Amortisation of other intangible assets EtEREEEN 280 5,844 231,198 819 12,360 - 250,501
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%BERZ AN E 258,602 88,079 20112 110373 34,447 17 511,630
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 22,650 3,697 6,133 - 4,680 - 37,160

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HENE BREZE &) /
plant and equipment B (67,421) (228 6323 127 280 - (60,919)
Research and development expenditure HERES 308,088 117,657 27,196 62,126 4375 - 556,442
Share-based payment expenses MRHAERNARES - 2,638 8,052 - - - 10,690
Government grants BTREE (17,699) (13,547) (6,795) (1372) (350) (3,186) (42,949)
Rebate of VAT HERER (80,165) - - - - (1911) (82,076)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. IMARSDIEE @&

(continued)

FEEmBRRBEA

Revenue from major products and services

UTHEEERBETEERKR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from

its major products and services. B2 WA DT °

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
—EZ-= —ECCF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IEFE
ARBFTR ARBTT
C<S== 1)
Sale of medical device products iHE B M E m 6,727,859 6,567,676
Sale of orthopaedic products HE B E M 1,271,203 2,038,168
Sale of interventional products HEN AE M 2,164,588 1,938,237
Sale of pharma packaging products — $5& &% 6 45 &= 2,023,809 2,105,432
Sale of blood management products £ & & ¥ & & 1,041,994 1,097,960
13,229,453 13,747,473

Information about major customers FTEERNEN

RWmEFERN SBEE-—FRHEE
BB AEREBEWRARI0%-

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of
total revenue of the Group for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

6.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group's non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and

6. MARDEEF @

HEER

FEBRBEIINBELZBMAZER
BDRERMUEZY - KAEBIFRD
BEEZENNREEMBEUEZY
BEFEEERTIARELEREE
o

deferred tax assets.

Revenue from
external customers

Year ended Non-current assets
31/12/2023  31/12/2022 31/12/2023  31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
REMBERZHWA ErREE
ES HE
ZEIZF TR
+=AR +-B IZBZZ=f _"ZT_CF
=+-B =t-8  +ZB  +IB
LEE  tFE =+-B  =t-E
ARETR AEBTT ARETR AEEBTR
(K& 51) (&5
PRC FE 9,832,038 10,582,343 9,395,723 9,165,460
United States Z[ 1,300,576 1,272,330 5,077,849 5,366,273
Europe, the Middle East BUM ~ REEIEM
and Africa 611,304 563,217 103,791 99,582
Other districts Hni & 1,485,535 1,329,583 17,374 17,720
13,229,453 13,747,473 14,594,737 14,649,035

Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

As a practical expedient of HKFRS 15, the Group
need not disclose the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts with customers that has an
original expected duration of one year or less.
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SEREERFANZETEROREN
XmE

ER BB HREERF155EHIE
IEWSEvE ZK%I@/E?BZE’%“EEIEZ
ERFE MRS —FRNERHARE
TEREHNNRXZE-

' LEREEREAa s TERRAERAT 2023 £5F



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HUA - e K518

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB’000
(restated)
8= BHE
—FZ= =St
+ZAH +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ILFE IEFE
ARBFTRT ARETT
(#e&E 7))
Other income: HMUA -
Rebate of VAT (Note a) BERERR FYsEa) 78,741 82,076
Government grants (Note b) B #EB) (M5Eb) 79,142 42,949
Operating rental income REMRTUIA 11,412 11,812
Finance lease income MEHEEUWA 2,896 5,902
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $R{TERZF B U A 158,509 117,540
Interest income from RIBEB ZF] BIA
factoring business 14,713 13,808
Interest income from loan receivables FEWE =2 F B WA 62,456 50,062
407,869 324,149
Other gains and losses: H e & E518 ¢
Impairment losses on other Hiwm & E B ERBE
intangible assets (8,020) (10,806)
Impairment losses on inventories FERERE (32,223) (13,078)
Impairment losses on property M2~ BB R 5 B R E RS 18
plant and equipment (1,679) -
Net exchange (loss)/gain FER (8518) N F 8 (16,602) 138,325
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEVME - BERREBEZ
plant and equipment (F518) Wz (2,147) 60,919
Gain on deregistration/disposal of BiE HERMBARZKRE
investments in subsidiaries Z W 593 47,832
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHER—BBEABZ
investment in an associate (Note "Bz W (MPsE20)
20) - 100,398
(Loss)/gain from changes in BATEStAB@mIEZ
fair value of financial ETMTEATEEH
instruments at FVTPL (B518) Wz (28,037) 19,557
Gain on disposal of financial HERAFESABRE
instruments at FVTPL ZEMT Az WE 5,968 36,757
Donation paid [SENE =L (939) (677)
Net gain/(loss) of litigation (Note ¢)  &fsAUREE ~ (HBk) BEE
(Mf5EC) 28,548 (259,609)
Others Hth (649) 1,935
(55,187) 121,553
352,682 445,702
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

As Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Limited ("Jierui”),
one of the subsidiary of the Company, was recognised as a
“Social Welfare Entity”, the Tax Bureau in Weihai granted a
rebate of VAT paid by Jierui with effect from 1 May 1999 on
the basis of “payment first then rebate”. Pursuant to Caishui
[2016] No.52 issued by the State Council, with effect from 1
May 2016, Jierui was granted a rebate of VAT determined with
reference to the number of staff with physical disability. For
each staff with physical disability, four times of the minimum
salary approved by the local government in Weihai is granted to
Jierui as rebate of VAT.

Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No.36, Weigao Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
immediate tax rebates upon collection when the actual VAT tax
burden rate exceeds 3%.

During the year, government grants were awarded to the Group
mainly for business development and certain research and
development expenses occurred and were recognised as other
income when the government grants were received. There
were no unfulfilled conditions in the year in which they were
recognised.

A subsidiary of the Group (the "Subsidiary”) is a defendant
involving in a number of product liability claims. The Subsidiary
entered into a conditional master settlement agreement with
the lead counsel for the plaintiffs (the “Agreement”) to resolve
and settle the vast majority of the outstanding claims against
the Subsidiary (the “Settlement”). As a result, the Group
recorded cumulative pre-tax provision of RMB667,047,000 in
respect of the Subsidiary’s obligation for product liability claims
under the Agreement during the year ended 31 December
2022.

As of 31 December 2023, for the number of plaintiffs who
may, but have not yet agreed to participate in the Settlement,
and the number of plaintiffs who declined to participate
in the Settlement, the Group recorded pre-tax provision of
RMB34,962,000 (2022: RMB35,742,000) based on the best
estimation of the injury alleged, the results of related litigation,
and the degree of responsibility that may be inferred to the
Subsidiary.

7. HfthigA - s R ASHR (@

PEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MBI MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

7. HfthigA - s R ASHR (@

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@]

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Subsidiary
had obtained product liability insurance and its insurers have
paid the Subsidiary an aggregate amount of RMB26,073,000
(2022: RMB203,491,000). During the year ended 31 December
2023, the net gain related to the product liability claims
by considering the provision and insurance coverage is
recorded with an amount of RMB28,548,000 (2022: net loss
RMB259,609,000).

The Group reserves the right to seek recovery of certain of

fsE : ()

(@]

(#8)

REE_Z-_=_F+"HF=+—HIt
EF WF@TEWﬁﬁﬁmEEﬁ

%%’EAET—‘}%26,073,00071:(_7__
£ AR®203,491,0007T) - &=
ETZF+ZHA=FT—HIEEE R
EEINBEBSRRREREER BE
RETREEANFREEESEA
R 1528,548,0007T (ZE 2 4F | Bk
8 A R #259,609,0007T) °

FERREOANEARBERNE

these losses from the entity that previously owned the relevant BEEAETZEREANEN GSEK
products, including taking necessary legal actions. BB ERITH) o
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 8. FAEHAEEEHEEX T Z2HE
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 518 > R EEE]
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
—EZ= =
+=B8 +—H
=+—8 =+—H
ILEE EFE
ARBFrT ARETT
C<E==el)
Impairment losses (recognised)/ FTFIBEE FER) #E
reversed on: HEEE
— trade receivables —EWE 5 R (4,250) (33,550)
— loan receivables —EWRER (155) 3,175
— other receivables —HMEWEIE (749) 573
— receivables from factoring business — K BfRIEZ£F5 2 BT IE (304) (1,574)
— finance lease receivables — KRR ERERIE 115 (2,554)
(5,343) (33,930)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. FIERZ

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000

HE BHE

—E-= =

+=A8 +_—HA

=+—H =+—H

IEEE EFEE

AREBFRT AR®TFT

Interest on borrowings BRSPS 232,257 150,148
Interest on bonds payable A ESFE 35,900 35,900
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 4,814 5,353
272,971 191,401

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRiFIRFA

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000

(restated)

BE BHE

+=A +—A

=+—H =+—H

ILEE IEFE

AREFRT AR®TFIT

(&R&E7)

Current enterprise income tax BNHARZEPRIER 403,063 479,971
Over provision in prior years BEFEBREEE (12,981) (1,466)
Deferred tax PR IE (82,497) (42,916)
307,585 435,589

BIE(REAREMBEEZEFRRFR
&) (TREEPRERE)) R(EEFF
KOEBRIRG) » XABRETH
ENEABNBE_S _=Fk_
E__HF+_A=+—HLEHFEZ
MEZ15%

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company and certain PRC
subsidiaries is 15% for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. The
subsidiaries in the United States (“U.S.”) are subject
to federal income tax at a tax rate of 21% and state
income tax.

The Company, lJierui, Weigao Orthopaedic and
Shandong Weigao Purui Pharmaceutical Packaging Co.,
Ltd (“Weigao Purui”) were recognised as Shandong
Province New and High Technical Enterprises (LU
RESHEMEE) from the year 2020 to 2025;
Weigao Medical Materials and Weigao New Life
were recognised as Shandong Province New and
High Technical Enterprises from the year 2021 to
2023, Zhejiang Quantum (as defined in Note 39) was
recognised as Zhejiang Province New and High Technical
Enterprises from the year 2021 to 2023, and the
subsidiaries of the Company, Changzhou lJianli Bangde
Medical Devices Co., Ltd and Weihai Weigao Jiesheng
Medical Devices Co., Ltd. were recognised as New and
High Technical Enterprises from the year 2019 to 2024.
In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau
of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and
High Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a
tax rate of 15%.

The State Taxation Administration of the PRC
announced in September 2022 that enterprises
accredited as “New and High Technical Enterprise”
would be entitled to claim 100% of the purchase price
for equipment and appliances newly purchased during
the period from 1 October 2022 to 31 December
2022 as tax deductible expenses and 100% additional
deduction for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Jierui has been recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”.
Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No. 52 issued by the State
Council, with effect from 1 May 2016, Social Welfare
Entity is subject to income tax rate of 15%, and an
amount equivalent to the total salaries paid to staff
with physical disability is further deducted from the
taxable income of Jierui. The tax charge provided for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
made after taking these tax incentives into account.

10. FRiEHRA @

HE r#EEENRIEREH
BEAHENRITREAE - NERH
(F%!J) RIS AT E%21%M
T3 R 4R B FR P 1S 70 S ZB AR N PRy
B

piN/NI=] INDs 257 I Wﬁmﬂ&M$W
== “Egﬁiﬁﬂéé%iﬁﬁél‘](rrﬁ
mﬂ%ﬁm,_v_gif
V_EEEM$é%%ﬁm¢¥,
BEBERAMEREESEERRS
TE T FEE_E_=_FEE
dEMEmEE WIEF (EE
RME39) EmRA S _—FE
EE__FEWILAesHEMmME
ERANRNBRBAEEIMNEFBE
ggﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ&mﬁm%@%

BEBSMERABDERIAL_E
—NWEEE T _NEESHRM
TE-RBEB(VBIEARNRBED
AR EEMSRE TEIBRNE
MY SHEMEEOZI5%RE
BATPT1SHR

$II§@%%%K:%::EH
REf> mE%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁj
WEEE_ZT_"F+HA—H=E
=+ A=+ BBEEE
EMNRBRER BERREBE
e
BI00%NBEEFATHRMAX
R HEAT100% 05T 30 BR ©

BIGERDR A HHEEAEE) R
B E P e 2 B #R[2016]55 5258
X oBZE—XRERAB—HIE"
HEER S EBERIS% IR FMTFR
B AEEREINFREE T
DB RE—T B RHNER
BMBEAFHR - BE_ZE_=ZFK
BT CEFE+RA=+—HIEFE
EFHZRIBEXBEE RZER
B Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRiEHRA @

180

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit AEENHEBRASERKEME

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or E WA # 2R HRRYBR AR Al A1) 3 AR W0
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: e

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’000 RMB'000

(restated)

8= HE

—gZ= S ——

+ZA +ZR

=+—H =+—H

L E IEFE

ARBFTRT ARETT

(REF)

Profit before tax BRIR Al m A 2,369,187 3,385,739
Taxation at income tax rate of 1 S%Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%?\ﬁﬁlﬁ

15% (2022: 15%) (ZE "9 :15%) 355,378 507,861
Tax effect of share of results of ETEH%@’&T%%Z%&?& T

associates (12,912) (26,655)
Tax effect of share of results of ELEErEXER O MBETE

joint ventures 1,383 424
Tax effect of income not taxable for FAIRFEME BBEZFHRUAZ

tax purpose MBETE - (2,677)
Effect of additional tax deduction for & R 2% & FB 2 ZEIMR 7510 R

research and development expenses 2 &2 (68,486) (65,937)
Tax effect of additional deduction BEXRERFIERINIBZ

for purchase of equipment and MR &

appliances - (34,512)
Additional tax benefit to a Social HEBNEEZEIINRNBESE

Welfare Entity (5,495) (5,059)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FABFAREINRIEESE

not recognised (264) (12,671)
Utilisation of deductible temporary — EhA@FRESIHI A IR0 G K

difference previously not recognised MHZE2 (695) (81)
Tax effect on tax losses and deductible 7 F 53 A9 77 18 518 K pT #§40

temporary difference not recognised ERMEENRNESTE 12,454 11,408
Tax effect on expenses not deductible FLIRFEME A HEIDFHEZ B

for tax purpose %R?‘EV‘ 5,030 24,933
State and local income taxes for BRANREEWBARNER &

U.S. subsidiaries 75 PSR (1,421) (6,218)
Withholding tax TBINR 3,291 -
Effect on different tax rates of TEMZHWBABNEE

subsidiaries 32,303 46,239
Over provision in prior years BEFEBREEE (12,981) (1,466)
Income tax expense for the year FAMEREX 307,585 435,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FAREF
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB’000
(restated)
8= BHE
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
ARBFTRT ARETT
C<==p7l)
Profit for the year has been arrived at  F P& A &0 FR K5t AT
after charging and crediting: BEHBERN:
Staff costs, including directors’ and =N
supervisors’ remuneration (BIEE S MEEEH )
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRTEFI 5T 2R
contributions 196,708 181,928
— Salaries and other allowances — e R EHMER 1,957,086 1,939,805
— Share-based payment expenses — UMD AERNNRER
(Note 38) (M$5E38) 55,459 91,767
Total staff costs BT AAR%E 2,209,253 2,213,500
Auditors’ remuneration for the Group 7<% B /% #EHfN & 8,533 8,915
Impairment losses on inventories EFEREBE 32,223 13,078
Impairment losses on other intangible EfthEF & EREEE
assets 8,020 10,806
Amortisation of other intangible assets Efth#E 2 & & # 5 276,238 250,501
Impairment losses on property, plant ¥ B KRR EHREEE
and equipment 1,679 -
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BERREBE
plant and equipment (U z) 2,147 (60,919)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BEREETE
equipment 587,745 511,630
Depreciation of investment properties R &Y EITE 5,399 3,853
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 42,322 37,160
Lease expenses related to short-term B HAHE B RMNHEER X
lease 10,651 7,298
Cost of inventories recognised as an RAFEZNEERAK
expense 6,586,420 6,441,741




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the
entities comprising the Group to the directors, chief

1N2.EF5 -EFERESHE

EFREFEME

FEBERENHAEBNERATE

E THBHIAESMEFEN

executive and supervisors of the Company are as o
follows:
Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-ZE+-B=t+-HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3] Nigfp
Hek BIkER WL AER
& Hit2R B (GELD) fIRA% b
AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Long Jing (note ) BT R4 (e - 2,046 46 903 5,270 8,265
Mr. Cong Rinan SHEAE (THER)

(chief executive officer) - 1,681 117 435 1,757 3,990
Mr. Lu Jungiang (note d) EHREE (W) - 1,012 M - 268 1,321
Mr. Ni Shili (note b) RERILE (Fizk) - 914 - m 2,108 3,733

- 5,653 204 2,049 9,403 17,309

Non-executive directors JEHITEE
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng mEEEE
Mr. Chen Lin BthEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§
e RN EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE5 - BEEFERESME @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments BEEREEMNE (B
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-ZE+ZB=+-HLEE

Retirement

Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

E30) N

Hek RIkER HRTEA AER
g HitER BEEEA (Ha) fIRA% by

ARBTR ABBFR ABBFR ARBFR ARBFR ARBTR

Independent non- BUFQTES
executive directors
Mr. Li Guohui (note ) FEERE (f15H) 207 - - - - 207
Mrs. Meng Hong (note )~ &A%+ (izkg) 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Li Qiang (note h) Fa%s (FEh) 150 - - - - 150
507 - - - - 507
Supervisors ¥
Mr. Song Dapeng (note j) RABLE (H35) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Zhuanggiu ARG ()
(note ) - 537 46 339 527 1,449
Mrs. Gu Meijun AREUL - - - - - -
- 537 46 339 527 1,449
507 6,190 250 2,388 9,930 19,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE - BEFERESME @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EERESEME (@
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022
BEZZCF+ZA-t+-HILEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits Performance Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
xR bR
Hek RINEA TERATEA AERN
ik Hitzis EHEIER (Hi3Ea) THRZ it
NS AEBTR ARETR NS ARETR AEETFR
Executive directors BTEs
Mr. Long Jing (note ¢) AT (Wak) - 1422 43 553 10,072 12,090
Mr. Cong Rinan RHMEE (THER)
(chief executive officer) - 950 43 605 3,357 4,955
Mr. Lu Jungiang (note d) EREE (Fzkd) - 583 26 309 640 1,558
Mr. Ni Shili (note b) RER %L (5th) - 440 15 209 4,029 4,693

- 3,395 127 1,676 18,098 23,296

Non-executive directors JFHITER

Mr. Tang Zhengpeng BERLE - - _ _ _ B
Mr. Chen Lin TR s - - _ _ _ _
Mr. Lian Xiaoming (note e) /NS A (Hizke) - - - _ _ _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§
e RN EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE5 - BEFERESME @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

ESEREEME B

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z__F+_RA=t-HLEE

Retirement

Salaries benefits Performance Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R LR

&k BINER TRRATEA AERY
ik A2 R (Mizra) THRZ st
NG S AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Independent non- BUknTES

executive directors
Mr. Li Guohui (note f) FEBRE (FH) 97 - - - - 97
Mrs. Meng Hong (note g) RALT (Mizkg) 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Li Qiang (note h) T (H5Eh) - - - - - -
Mr. Lo Waihung (note i) ERIEEE (H3H) 75 - - - - 75
Mrs. Fu Mingzhong (note i) {1 B#h & £ (i) 89 - - - - 89
Mrs. Wang Jinxia (note i) THRELL (M) 120 - - - - 120

41 - - - - 41
Supervisors ¥
Mr. Song Dapeng (note j) RAMSRE (H13) - - - - - -
Mr. Yue Chunliang (note k)~ E&FR 54 (zEk) - 59 2 38 504 603
Mr. Zhang Zhuanggiu AT ()

(note ) - 290 29 290 1,007 1,616
Mr. Hu Yunyong (note m)  EAZE %4 (HizEm) - - - - - -
Mrs. Gu Meijun BEEYL - - - - - -

- 349 31 38 1,511 2219
an 3,744 158 2,004 19,609 25,926

Notes: FMosE :
(@)  Approved by the Remuneration Committee, the performance (a) REHIWNEZEGHIE  RIFBEBTEAN

related bonus payment is determined by reference to
the individual performance of the directors and the chief
executive. The chief executive, executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
non-executive directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as Directors.

MB2EEERTHBEZEAARE
MEE > LAITHARKRATEEHN
MeRlEETERAADRAEERS
BHRBARM  LHIFRITES KE
ENNEREAREERESTNRES

Bk
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’,

SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Mr. Ni Shili has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 6 June 2022 and has resigned
as an executive director of the Company with effect from 31
December 2023.

Mr. Wang Daoming has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 29 December 2023, which is subject to
shareholders approval.

Mr. Long Jing has re-elected as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 6 June 2022 by approval of annual
general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Lu Jungiang has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 6 June 2022 by approval of
annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Lian Xiaoming has resigned as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 6 June 2022 by approval of
annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Li Guohui has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 6 June
2022 by approval of annual general meeting of the Company.

Mrs. Meng Hong has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 28
September 2022 by approval of extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.

Mr, Li Qiang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 30
December 2022 by approval of extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.

Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mrs. Fu Mingzhong and Mrs. Wang Jinxia
have resigned as independent non-executive directors of the
Company with effect from 6 June 2022, 28 September 2022
and 30 December 2022, respectively.

Mr. Song Dapeng has been appointed as supervisor of the
Company with effect from 6 June 2022 by approval of annual
general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Yue Chunliang has resigned as supervisor of the Company
with effect from 22 April 2022.

Mr. Zhang Zhuanggiu has been elected as supervisor of the
Company with effect from 22 April 2022.

Mr. Hu Yunyong has resigned as supervisor of the Company
with effect from 6 June 2022 by approval of annual general
meeting of the Company.

12.EF -EFERESME @

ESEREEME (&

PEE

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT'§
e RN EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 12.EE5 - BEFERESME @
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Five highest paid employees LTaEEMEEE

The five highest paid employees of the Group during RENFERRGEREHMESS
the year included one director (2022: three directors), B—R%EF (T2 ”F =48
details of whose remuneration are set out above. %) > HEMsFEH N £ HEr
Details of the remuneration for the year of the Mm% (CTEZ2F M%) & il
remaining four (2022: two) highest paid employees who BE CGEAEBZEEHXTETHA
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Group 8) FANFMEEIBWT ¢

are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB'000  RMB'000
BE BE
—EBIEZF T
+=A +=H
=+—-A =t+—H
ILSFE IEFE

ARBTFR ARBTT

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 25,065 12,960
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

1N.EF5 -BEEREESME ©®

Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are
not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the

IaREMEEE (@

HMNFRUTHEEETIFEEFZ
RN ES AR

following bands is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
No. of No. of
employees employees
8= HE

ot - S
+=AH +ZAH
=+-—H =+—H
ILEE IHFE

BEAZK EEA#

Emoluments bands in Hong Kong Dollars B =& & (U#E 7T (F87T)) 51)
("HKD™)

HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000

HKD7,000,001 to HKD7,500,000

HKD10,000,001 to HKD 10,500,000

HKD 11,000,001 to HKD11,500,000

4,500,001/ 75 %5,000,0007% 75
7,000,001% 75 £7,500,000% 75
10,000,001% 75 £ 10,500,000 7T
11,000,001 £ 11,500,000/ 7T

- ] = N
|

RBEE_E_=F+_-_RA=+—
HEFEER AEBTESZCME
FEMATEFT FRTES B
VEHTES EFNALRSH
BB EEA RSN A REBE N
AREBERFNRE S(EABEBE
BCEIZF &\ - BIBEE
EERITHEBEERNEBEE S _=F
+-_B=4+—HIEEE(ZCZE_Z
FE) RETAME -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
executive directors, non-executive director, independent
non-executive directors, supervisors, or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2022:nil). None of the directors, supervisors and chief
executive has waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE
13. DIVIDENDS 13. R
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HE BHE
—E-= =
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEE EFEE
AREBFRT AR®TFT
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ERERASDIKAIES :
during the year:
2023 Interim — RMB0.0734 TET-FARHERE
(2022: Interim — RMB0.086) AR TO. O7347‘E
per share (_7__5 HEARG B —
5% A\ R #0.0867T) 335,485 393,074
2022 Final — RMB0.079 B FRERE—
(2021: Final — RMB0.065) SR AR0.0797T
per share (CEZI—F . RKERE—
FRAR0.0657T) 361,080 297,091
Total 4Bt 696,565 690,165
Less: distribution to the shares hold & : A= 5E ARG 2 ED
by the trustees under a share FHEIFE 2R B
award scheme (Note 38(a)) ik (F5E38(a)) (9,565) (9,846)
687,000 680,319

REREHEFRB EFEBRNVEE
2 -F+Z“HA=+—HIH#F
ENRIBKEESRARE0.09437T
(ZZ2——F: AE¥0.0797T) »
5+ AR %431,011,00070 (Z &
——F: ANR"361,080,0007T) °
ZIEE BRI RITHRE
ARG EHER HEIfEE-

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023 of RMB0.0943 (2022: RMB0.079)
per share, amounting to RMB431,011,000 (2022:
RMB361,080,000) in total, has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
in the forthcoming general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8REF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per KRB HEB ANELERERKREE
share attributable to owners of the Company is based BAHRE TIEEFE
on the following data:
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: mABESENOT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(restated)
8= BHE
+=B +Z=A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
ARBFTRT ARETT
(B E5))
Profit for the year attributable to KABHEE NELFEREF
owners of the Company 2,001,906 2,764,093
Earnings for the purpose of MmEREXRBNMSNET
basic earnings per share 2,001,906 2,764,093
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BREBEEHENEE
shares:
Adjustment to the share of RS &NV E A
profit of subsidiary based on FEAS I 8 A B s A
dilution of their earnings per share - (926)
Earnings for the purpose of diluted FEREERFIMENWEF
earnings per share 2,001,906 2,763,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. 81REH @&
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
‘000 ‘000
8= 8=
—=== B
+=A +=8B
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
T2 T B
Number of shares & HE
Number of shares for the purpose of FhEtEEREABFME W
basic earnings per share BHEB 4,507,876 4,505,556
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary — ZEBEHEMNREZ :
shares:
Incentive shares ED B 19 11,025 21,093
Weighted average number of ordinary SLEt B S REERAME N
shares for the purpose of diluted LB M98
earnings per share 4,518,901 4,526,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
Ao

BB ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERSE
Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HIE~
BERE BHRE
TRIE BEY RBRERESH "B kI& T st
AEEFT AREFR AR®ETn ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETET
CosT 72
At 31 December 2021 (restated) RIZZ-%
TZA=1—H (EE7) 577,141 3,780,923 2,844,534 76230 1,022,459 7,772 8,309,059
Additions HE 734,966 10,959 276,367 12,845 68,743 - 1,103,880
Transfer Eeh (548,155) 76,645 403,981 - 67,529 - -
Transfer from investment properties ~ BEEHRENE - 72,758 - - - - 72,758
Transfer to investment properties BEERENE - (88,306) - - - - (88,306)
Disposals HE - (14,196) (52,474) (7,429) (63,599) - (137,698)
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 5,606 5,510 12,722 143 5,875 718 30,574
At 31 December 2022 (restated) s
+ZA=+—H (&3 769,558 3,844,293 3,485,130 81,789 1,101,007 8490 9,290,267
Additions HE 491,269 39,277 116,532 6,356 92,089 - 745,523
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39)  E—EIBAF (:£39) - 10,138 1,497 6 3,468 - 15,109
Transfer b (257,621) 37,463 109,055 - 111,103 - -
Transfer from investment properties ~ BEEHRENE - 41,831 - - - - 41,831
Transfer to investment properties BEERENE - (39,451) - - - - (39,451)
Disposals HE - (214) (61,123) (2,386) (46,996) - (110,719)
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 1123 1,261 3,255 444 1,206 144 7433
At 31 December 2023 RIEZZE
+ZB=1+-H 1,004,329 3934598 3,654,346 86,209 1,261,877 8,634 9,949,993
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(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R e MBI MIEE

ECET-HF+RA=+—HULEFE

15. ¥ - B E R&E @)

Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
HIE~
BERE BHARE
TRIE BEY RMERER HE RIE 1 st
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR AREFn AR%ETrn ARETR
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 31 December 2021 (restated) R_E_—F
+ZA=1+—H (&7 10,776 656,597 1,233,436 46,205 576,854 - 2,523,868
Depreciation provided for the year FNHRNERE - 136,785 27,177 6,249 141,419 - 511,630
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREHRENE - 6,124 - - - - 6,124
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - (10,822) - - - - (10,822)
Eliminated on disposals RHEREH - (7,895) (26,911) (4,323) (53,412) - (92,541)
Exchange adjustments EREE - 1,17 3,693 141 2,8% - 7,847
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RZE-"F
+ZA=1—H (&5 10,776 781,906 1,437,395 48,272 667,757 - 2,946,106
Depreciation provided for the year FRNHRNERE - 139,352 294,638 5,850 147,905 - 587,745
Impairment provided for the year FNHRAERE 1,679 - - - - 1,679
Transfer from investment properties ~ BRERENE - 10,323 - - - - 10,323
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - (7,718) - - - - (7,718)
Eliminated on disposals R HEREH - (90) (55,531) (1,632) (44,646) - (101,899)
Exchange adjustments EREE - 289 536 2 487 - 1334
At 31 December 2023 RIZEZ=F
+-E=1+-H 12,455 924,062 1,677,038 52,512 771,503 - 3,437,570
CARRYING VALUES IREfE
At 31 December 2023 R-BE-ZE
+ZB=+-H 991,874 3,010,536 1,977,308 33,697 490,374 8634 6,512,423
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RZIB-Z&
TZA=+—H (EE7) 758,782 3,062,387 2,047,735 33,517 433,250 8,490 6,344,161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress and freehold land,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of their estimated residual values and at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.2-95%
Plant and machinery 9.5-19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0 -31.7%
Furniture, fixtures equipment 19.0 -47.5%

and tools

As at 31 December 2023, total net book value of
property, plant and equipment served as collateral for
the Group's borrowing and bonds payable amounted to
RMB846,376,000 (2022: RMB867,733,000).

15.

ME-BERSRE ®

EpmE - mERREER (T
BTRREMRA LR UE
fSARLE A B S EISRERS 2
T EEITE :

BEY) 3.2 —9.5%
i 55 o 1% 23 9.5 —19.0%
RE 19.0 —31.7%
FRE - BEEE

RIE 19.0 —47.5%

A B =F+"HB=+—H'1
AAREBERREMESERRDN
ME-BEKRZBENIRB FELLEE
A AR 1846,376,00070 (& _—
F: ANR%867,733,0007T) °

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FHIESE
Leasehold Leased Office
land  properties equipment Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00
HELH HEME MAERE Wt
ARBTT AREBTT AR®TRT ARETR
Carrying amount at W-E--&-F—-HZ

1 January 2022 IREE 396,468 78,730 1,119 476,317
Additions NE 2,934 73,776 456 77,166
Disposal HE (5,333) - - (5,333)
Depreciation charge TEER (9,830) (26,650) (680) (37,160)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 4,231 - 4,231
Carrying amount at gt S -

31 December 2022 +ZRA=+—-HZKEE 384,239 130,087 895 515,221
Additions NE - 22,357 4,247 26,604
Disposal HE - (7,780) (167) (7,947)
Depreciation charge NEEHR (10,138) (30,090) (2,094) (42,322)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 1,588 1,164 2,752
Carrying amount at RZEZZE

31 December 2023 +ZB=+—-BZKEE 374,101 116,162 4,045 494,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 16. FRAEEE ®

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE HE

—E-= —_E_
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEE
AR¥BFTr AERETT
Expense relating to short-term leases fSHAFHERIX 10,651 7,298
Total cash outflow for leases HERE M 4EEE 55,633 40,022

FEBIMEFEHESERAE
keFERAREE-HEAGNEE

For both years, the Group leases various offices and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 12 years. Lease 12FNEERRETIL - AEKRRTL
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain EENER FEE 8EEERE
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In 18R R - 4 o 1R T AR HA Ko 5T R
determining the lease term and assessing the length RO BN RE KEBER
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the BHANERLET SN REINIT
definition of a contract and determines the period for BYHEARE ©

which the contract is enforceable.

HEEaENHERHRE~RORFS
R MIEE36 0

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in Note 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. 8 EWE
RMB'000

ARBFT
COST [N
At 1 January 2022 BT T&F—H—H 166,979
Transfer from property, plant and equipment E#BY% HE K& HE 88,306
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREEYE -KRENMRE (72,758)
At 31 December 2022 B _HF+-A=+—H 182,527
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEBEYE -HELRE 39,451
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEME -KREMRE (41,831)
At 31 December 2023 R_E_=ZF+_BA=+—H 180,147
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2022 N_E__F—H—H 33,191
Provided for the year FRERE 3,853
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B BEY % HE&K&E 10,822
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEEYE -KREKRRE (6,124)
At 31 December 2022 RIZEZZF+ZHA=+—H 41,742
Provided for the year FRERE 5,399
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B BEY % HE&K&E 7,718
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEEYE -KREKRKE (10,323)
At 31 December 2023 RIZEZ=F+ZH=+—H 44,536
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2023 RIZEZ=F+ZH=+—H 135,611
At 31 December 2022 RIZEZZF+ZHA=+—H

140,785

FERREYENR _ST_=F+_
B=+—HHNAFENAAR
144,331,0000 (ZEZ=-F . AR
#150,142,0007T) > ZAFEEH
KNBEETE ©

The fair value of the Group's investment properties of
approximately RMB144,331,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB150,142,000) has been determined by
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. 8EWE ®
The fair value was determined based on the income NEEDREAEETE > MYZEPR
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable BrIHHEMNZ THBERRKEE
units of the properties are assessed and discounted at EHILEYMERR 2 MBI R T
the market yield expected by investors for this type of EARMEIR -MIBHESL2EMEL
properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference Al HAE B AJ 19 M & K 5% @ H A4
to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the L% 2 BB R T AT G o BhIR
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties Kh2EZPEFEmAEZHE
in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined RBDMABZWARFUETE
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the WM EREE 2 IHTAPIELHR
sales transactions of similar commercial properties in BOoDURMAEBRREMEZRTE
the PRC and adjusted to take into account the market HE o XFEMMANMLES AL EE
expectation from property investors to reflect factors Eo
specific to the Group's investment properties. There has
been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the Rt ZEMENLAFER HE
highest and best use of the properties is their current ERERNDAHRERR
use.
Details of the Group's investment properties and RRERR AEEERAATESE
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end MO EYNERERFBENT !
of the reporting period are as follows:
The carrying value of investment properties shown M EMMREEMENREESER
above comprise of buildings erected on: R B2 Y -
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
—E¥-=f£+-RA=+-H ZECE+ZA=1H
Fair value Fair value
Carrying at level 3 Carrying at level 3
amount hierarchy amount hierarchy
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IREE HZRAFE RAE F=HLTHE
ARBTRT ARETR AR%TR ARETx
Located in the PRC FAREIR L, 135,611 144,331 140,785 150,142

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 3.2% per annum.

TR EYEZEREUFEX
32%FLUIFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
8= BHE
—g-= =
+ZAH +ZR
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IEFE
ARBTR ARBTT
Cost % 7S
At 1 January n—HBA—H 3,638,741 3,348,497
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—REKBABELE
(Note 39) (MF5E39) 34,872 -
Exchange adjustments PE 52 5 2 54,177 290,244
At 31 December r+ZHA=4+—H 3,727,790 3,638,741
Impairment testing on goodwill mE iR ENE

The Group uses operating divisions as the basis for
reporting segment information. For the purposes of

FEBEREENEEREBRS D
MEHWEE - [ETREANS
BMERDEINTREELEEN

impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the following groups of CGUs. The carrying amounts
of goodwill as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as

MBRl-N B =FK
+TTA=+—H BEZEREEN

— = — —

_—

follows:
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—f=-= =2
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
Medical device products BERMESR 32,215 32,215
Orthopaedic products AR Em 173,966 173,966
Interventional products A EE oh 3,249,640 3,199,417
Blood management products MmEEEESR 237,097 233,143
Minimally invasive medical devices e B masm (f15E39)
(Note 39) 34,872 -
3,727,790 3,638,741

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The management considers that groups of CGUs are

represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of medical device products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2022: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2022: 14%). The cash
flows for the following years are extrapolated using
a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%). The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2022: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2022: 14%). The cash
flows for the following years are extrapolated using
a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%). The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of interventional products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 10-year period (2022: 10-
year), and discount rate of 13% (2022: 13%). The
cash flows for the following years are extrapolated
using a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 3%).
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

18. B2 )

BERENH (@

BERSMERZRSELEMAER
Z ol BB ERBESEM
Br-olkosBEUEEBHES
EFFE (CE__F 1% VHRER
K BEIRE14% (ZE "4 1 14%)
AER - BREENRERSFEHE
25% (ZE-"F :125%) WEH
BEXHEH AEFEHEEZEE
BREAERERIEEREREXR]Y
RAFREBEREEBHTHREREY
TEHAM A E o

BRERZIREELEMER 2
WElsELhERBETEmE
EeriolcEUEEBHMEZR
F(CEIF: ﬂ@%ﬂﬁ%&
BRIRE14% (ZE - _"F 1 14%)
BER %XE?ME%ﬁ%&%
25% (ZE "% :25%) WEH
BEEXHEHE tEHEHEBEEZEE
REAMIBERIERR EREXT]
BEARENEEBEMBEEZ
TEHAMEEE ©

NAERZREEELEMARN ZT
WElE B IEEHEESTEME
EeornlioleEUEEBH A2+
F(CEIZHF +ﬂ3%ﬁﬁﬁ&
BHIRE13% (ZCE - "F :13%)
%EW( Hﬁkﬁrﬁqfﬁﬁuuéﬁkﬁﬁ
25% (ZTE "% 3%) NRHAIE
EXEH - FEERBEEZTER
RAMBERIEREXR EBRERIZ
BEREAREEBHEMSER T
HATEERE ©
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Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. & )

200

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs of
blood management products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management covering a 5-year period (2022:
5-year), and discount rate of 15% (2022: 15%). The
cash flows for the following years are extrapolated
using a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2022:
2.5%). The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are discount rate and growth rate. The
growth rate is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

For goodwill impairment testing purpose, goodwill
allocated to individual cash-generating units of
minimally invasive medical devices belongs to
orthopaedic products segment. The recoverable
amounts of the groups of CGUs of minimally invasive
medical devices have been determined based on a value
in use calculation. The recoverable amount is based on
the financial budget approved by management covering
a 5-year period, and discount rate of 15%. The cash
flows for the following years are extrapolated using a
long-term growth rate of 2.5%. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are discount rate and
growth rate. The growth rate is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amount is significantly above the
carrying amount of each CGUs. Management of the
Group believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not result in
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. EthER EE

Development Product Customer
Costs  Technology Relationship  Trademarks Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BgHE  EAmK BAMG L iy
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
CosT F
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-E+ZE=1+-H 121,290 1,349,085 1,113,185 165,768 2,749,328
Addition m% 29,159 1,942 - - 31,101
Exchange adjustments ERAE 12,231 117,427 100,812 15,311 245,781
At 31 December 2022 EA E__F+-B=+-H 162680 1468454 1213997 181,079 3,026,210
Addition 28,376 50 - - 28,426
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) Hﬁ(ﬁ% MBS (F1339) - 12,853 - - 12,853
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,903 23,549 21,618 3,07 51,141
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZF=1+—H 193,959 1,504,906 1,235,615 184,150 3,118,630
AMORTISATION #i
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZF=1+—H - 465,196 426,822 54,804 946,822
Charge for the year FRFEY - 118,218 116,803 15,480 250,501
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 42,599 43,054 5,579 91,232
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZE=1-H - 626,013 586,679 75,863 1,288,555
Charge for the year FRES - 138,534 122,340 15,364 276,238
Exchange adjustments ERBEE - 10,418 10,929 1,351 22,698
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZF=1+—H - 774,965 719,948 92,578 1,587,491
IMPAIRMENT e
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZF=1+—H 3,929 - - - 3,929
Impairment loss recognised in the year FNBREDAESE 10,806 - - - 10,806
Exchange adjustments ERAE 744 - - - 744
At 31 December 2022 RZE__#+°A=1+—H 15,479 - - - 15,479
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRAERDAESE 8,020 - - - 8,020
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 303 - - - 303
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZF=1+—H 23,802 - - - 23,802
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZF=1+—H 170,157 729,941 515,667 91,572 1,507,337
At 31 December 2022 RIFZZE+ZRA=1+-AH 147,201 842,441 627,318 105,216 1,722,176
The above other intangible assets have finite useful J:QtHT@;ﬁi\ﬂ/ SEABERIEA

lives. Such other intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

FH - ZFHEHMELEERUTH
F'aﬁa‘%?Em% /H%ﬁh

Product technology 5 - 12 years 7 o i Al 5-124F
Customer relationship 8 — 11 years E R EMAR 8-114
Trademarks 11 - 12 years A 11-124

As at 31 December 2023, total net book value of other
intangible assets served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB1,243,622,000 (2022:

RMB1,461,558,000).

WZ_E-_=%+"B=+—H">
EAAEEERERRNEME
FEENEEFEEEAARE
1,243,622,00070 (ZEBE - _F : A
E%1,461,558,000m) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REZE AT EZS

202

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E"= -
+ZA +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Cost of investments in associates KEME QBRI A 1,045,898 1,045,898
Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ FE{5 UL B % ] HE K
other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEmlA 415,483 329,404
1,461,381 1,375,302

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the

reporting period are as follow:

Proportion of

RBEHR SFEBNBE QS
BT -

Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights held
Name of entity registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activities
31/12/2023  31/12/2022 31/12/2023  31/12/2022
MR, FEEFE FEEFE
BRE2E SEMAEER TEERME PRttt SRR TEER
—$-=f B_”_Hf CZE¥IZE "ZT__F§
+zR  tZR  4zZR  fo8
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+-H

Shandong Weigao PRC PRC 26.5506%  26.5506%  26.5506%  26.5506%  Research and
Blood Purification development,
Products Co., Ltd. manufacture and sale
("Weigao Blood of blood purification
Purification”) medical devices

WERE B MK FE HE HE R FCE AR R
HaRHBERAT B AENHE
(TR = AR #1E)

Hunan Smart Medi- PRC PRC 20% 20% 20% 20%  Information technology
label System services provider
Info &Tech Ltd.

("HunanSmart
Medi-label")

HEBEREERK HE FE EERMRSRED
BRARE (THEE
RE))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of a
material associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

20. R EATINED @)

EXBMEQAT ZMBENEE

ERTEBENERBME AT M
ERESEZEHINMT - HERBE
ERREEBVHERSENRNZ
BMERRPHFRRPIITZEE -

BERREABDEANGEMBR
RAIRe

Weigao Blood Purification B S & F M
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
+=R +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETT
Current assets MENEE 2,650,319 2,425,008
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,173,482 4,156,328
Current liabilities mEaE (1,461,547) (1,556,879)
Non-current liabilities I UB=K (113,155) (128,487)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
8= BE
—EZ= =S
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETT
Revenue WA 3,532,223 3,450,929
Profit for the year KEE @ F 325,916 316,426
Profit for the year attributable to = MR FCHER A
owners of the Weigao Blood (S AR FEE A
Purification 325,916 316,426
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. R ZEATIMNEZ @)

Weigao Blood Purification (continued) B S &R ML (&)

EXBIZ BB ER RN GRS ]
ARSI B S MR F O m

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

in Weigao Blood Purification recognised in the FREIEMNHER
consolidated financial statement:
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB’000
—¥-= - ——
+=AR +—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFR AREBTT
Adjusted net assets of Weigao Blood Ei& A& F1Lz
Purification KREEERE 5,100,628 4,774,712
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZEBERE S MK FIEZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification  Ffr 7 ## 7 b 26.5506% 26.5506%
The Group's share of net assets of NEBEEGE S MR FE
Weigao Blood Purification BEFE 1,354,247 1,267,715
Goodwill SRS 100,489 100,489
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERES MR FIEEDZZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification BRTE{E 1,454,736 1,368,204

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, third party investors
injected RMB625,000,000 to Weigao Blood Purification, which
resulted in a dilution of the Group’s interest in Weigao Blood

MisE -

BE_SE-__#+-_A=+—HLEE"
E-HREEARSMRBLIBEARE
625,000,0007T » & 2 7 & @ 72 B B R %

Purification from 28.0871% to 26.5506%. The gain on deemed 1ER R FH28.087 1% #8 £26.5506% © 17
disposal of partial interest, representing the difference between the EHEB D #Hm 2z W B EaBIEE
share of net asset value before and after the dilution, amounting to EFEE%E) AR®100,398,000t/Em
RMB 100,398,000 is recognised in profit or loss. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RS ¥R

31/12/2023  31/12/2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E"= -
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Cost of investments in joint ventures & & & & B EARAS 361,730 361,730
Share of post-acquisition loss and FELNEREER
other comprehensive expenses Hih2mHEx (12,555) (3,332)
Exchange adjustments PE 52 5 2 143 (363)
349,318 358,035
Details of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the RHRERR AEENG S BEF
reporting period are as follow: BUF

Proportion of

Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights held
Name of entity registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activities
31/12/2023  31/12/2022 31/112/2023  31/12/2022
ML SEEFRE SEEFRF
BEEAE AMFAEER  FEERME PR R a2t FIELLH TERH

ZE-z§ "TI-_"F CZBZZ§ "ZT__F
+=8 +=8 +=8 +=8
=+—-H =+—H =+—-H =+-A

Qingdao Songyuan PRC PRC 38.5% 38.5% 38.5% 38.5%  Investment in companies
First Phase Medical in medical industry
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

("Qingdao Songyuan”)

BEBILRERER HE HE RERBRTERT
REAHBLE
(BIRE®)
(IE&Mmik)
Weihai Shangyuan Fund ~ PRC PRC 19.8% 19.8% 19.8% 19.8%  Venture capital business
EEHTES HE FE BIERE
Shandong Baiging Energy ~ PRC PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Technical service provider

Technology Co., Ltd
("Baiqing Energy")

WEREBEEREARE FE il R ARB LR
g (MaEsE 7))
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

21.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Note:

On 24 December 2020, the Group entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other six parties to establish Qingdao
Songyuan to invest in company running business in medical
industry. The total subscribed capital of Qingdao Songyuan is
RMB2,000,000,000, of which RMB770,000,000 is subscribed
by the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the Group invested
RMB308,000,000 to Qingdao Songyuan, the remaining
RMB462,000,000 is to be invested within 5 years after the
establishment of the partnership.

On 12 October 2020, Wego Healthcare entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other seven parties to establish Weihai
Shangyuan Fund. The total subscribed capital of Weihai Shangyuan
Fund is RMB303,000,000, of which RMB60,000,000 is subscribed
by Wego Healthcare. As at 31 December 2023, Wego Healthcare
invested RMB30,314,000 to Weihai Shangyuan Fund.

The Group invested in Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan
Fund as limited partner. The Directors considered that the interests
the Group held over Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan Fund
carry rights that are substantively the same as the investee’s ordinary
shares and provides current access to the returns associated with its
ownership interest in the investee, which is driven by the investee's
financial performance.

In October 2022, the Company invested in Baiging Energy with
amounts of RMB25,000,000, and hold 50% ownership interests over
Baiging Energy.

The Group had joint arrangements with other parties whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangements and have rights
to the net assets of those joint arrangements, the Group accounted
the investments in Qingdao Songyuan, Weihai Shangyuan Fund and
Baiging Energy as interests in a joint venture using the equity method.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

21. R BT ENERE @

MisE -

RN_EBE_EFE+_/F+NE AEEEE
MABETILEEWE RIIEFEMNER W&
ERREBEBETENLT -FENRNE
B ARA NRME2,000,000,0007T > EH b
AR #770,000,0007cHAE BB
EC-F+ZA=+—H AEEQEBENL
TR E AR 308,000,000 > Hig AR
462,000,000ciEE B EMITBSER
RE o

WZZE_ZZEHF+HA+ZH>Wego
Healthcare E BE Mt AsI L & BHE > i
UBBHTEZ HEHTEENER
WEARA ART303,000,0007c HF A
K #60,000,0007tHWego Healthcares?
B M ZEZ=ZF+"HA=+—H>Wego
HealthcaremE B Tt EEREARTE
30,314,000z °

FEBRRERGBARBEEEMNRKE
BHTEZ BEFRA FEEFASFEMN
BRREEHTEENEDRRRETNG
BRAFEEMARNER > I 2 4= A EE
BHERRKRESNFTAE # oA ER
R R WIRE S B RIREES-

RIZBZZF+R > AREAREMBER
KB A AR 25,000,0007T ° W FHFH A
BEJR50% P A # ©

FERSEHEMATAGERH Bt &7
HRRHAAHREREERZEAER
FNFEEZFREN AEEGERBDEAR
B BIR BB T EE KRB RIE
BEARIBN—BEELENED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 21.RAaZEXMNERE »®

Summarised financial information of material BAAETEZHBEEHEE
joint venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the ERAEENERGE XU
Group's material joint venture is set out below. The BRBEEHINUWT - HBERGE
summarised financial information represents amounts ERBREEEVFREEANRR
shown in the joint venture's financial statements BELEMBRRPIIRZEEE

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity BEPEFAEDENGS MR
method in the consolidated financial statements. KA
Qingdao Songyuan BERE

31/12/2023  31/12/2022

RMB’000 RMB'000
—E-= g2
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREFRT AR®TFIT
Current assets MENE E 345,827 435,026
Non-current assets JERBEE 429,489 361,070
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (1,304) (1,304)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE BHE
T = —E-
+=A +—-A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
AREBFRT ARBFT
Loss for the year KEEEE (20,780) (4,230)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 21.RAaZEXMNERE »®

EXGECEZMBERNEE (B

Summarised financial information of material
joint venture (continued)

EXB I B ER RN GG ]S
BRSNS SNREE 2 IRE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

208

in Qingdao Songyuan recognised in the consolidated

financial statement:

ERVEER

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
—gZ= -
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Net assets of Qingdao Songyuan BENEREZEESFE 774,012 794,792
Proportion of the Group's ownership ZAEBENRSERRZ
interest in Qingdao Songyuan FTEEREm LA 38.5% 38.5%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBNRBEELRER 2
interest in Qingdao Songyuan REE 297,995 305,995
Aggregate information of joint ventures that BERNERERZAELEZERET
are not individually material *
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
= -
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
The Group’s share of loss and total AEFEGEEAEEE 48
comprehensive expenses %8 (1,223) (1,172)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR 22. BAFEAABHAEZS
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MIA
31/12/2023  31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB’000
—FZ= S
+=A +=R
=+—H =+—H

ARBTFR AREBTT

Unlisted investments: JELEHRE !
— Foreign exchange swap (note a) —ShEER AR (Ffysta)
— Interest rate swap (note b) —FMZEE#H (MFstb)
— Investment funds (note ¢) —®KEEE (ffskc)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLE2RBH DA -

— Current liabilities —REERE

— Current assets —RIEE

— Non-current assets —EREEE
Notes:

(@  As at 31 December 2023, the Group held a foreign exchange
swap which was issued by HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
to fix exchange rate of USD against RMB at maturity date of 23
September 2024, with principal amount of USD20,000,000.

(b)  As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group held an interest
rate swap which was issued by HSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited to exchange floating interest rate with fixed interest
rate, at maturity date of 21 June 2024, with principal amount
of RMB300,000,000.

(c) As at 31 December 2023, the amount of RMB67,449,000
represents 11.76% (2022: RMB95,408,000 represents 11.76%)
of the interest in a health science fund. The amount of
RMB19,461,000 represents 4.47% (2022: RMB24,321,000
represents 4.47%) of the interest in an investment fund.

M EE -

(7,653) -

371 572
86,910 119,729
79,628 120,301
(7,653) -

371 -
86,910 120,301
79,628 120,301

RIBZ=%+"A=+—H0 > &&
E#FBHSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited# {TRYIMEIRHR > LI Z &
ZMEAAZ+=BIHBEHRKE
TRARBNEXEE KT8 R
20,000,000z ©

RIBE_=FR_E__F+=A1
=+—H>&XEEFHEHSBC Bank
(China) Company Limited24789> %l
BHEAZZE_MNEABZ+—HAE
Bt LMEIEFERFEFE K
& EEA AR #300,000,0007T °

RIB-_=F+"_B=+—HB %%
AR #67,449,0007c (CE - _F: A
FE1695,408,0007T 5 11.76%) 15#E
REES211.76%EE SEARE
19,461,00070 (ZEZZF : AR
24,321,0007C ; 4.47%) I6— BB &
B ZA447 %R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose.

23.

EIERIA

BEIREMBRNRER & TELE
MBEEMBRCHRIEHE Y

FR¥R BB FH 2 IESERR B BR D AT
mre

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—EZ= =2
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFxT AR®BTFIT
Ceq==pl)
Deferred tax assets RERIEE & 207,102 161,241
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (165,794) (199,797)
41,308 (38,556)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting year:

REABREEERBARSEE B
BENTBRERESELREBER
HEEHHWT :

Time
difference Time us. Time
of property, difference of Share-based Unpaid  research and Interest difference of
Deferred  plantsand  intangible  Unrealised  payments bonus development Impairment  deduction  Deductible  changesin  Contract Others
income  equipment assets profit reserve  andsalary  expenses  of assets limited losses ~ fairvalue liabilities  Provision (note) Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
e LR 30
RS EREEN FER  AERH T EWE HaEn N ATEEH ]
LA K EHE B AREE ke Bx BEARE RE | Bz anad Bk () 5t
ABETT AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(@=3) (%5
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-£+ZR
(restated) =+-H (§&7) 9779 (19,294)  (267,032) 34,185 36,762 1,879 (28,519) 52,274 19173 1,309 11,262 9,192 54,126 20,754 (64,150)
(Charge) credit to (MezE) s AR
profit or loss (19100 (37,541) 39,766 9,866 17875 - (10,784) 2,885 29,116 41,146 (11,348) (776)  (48,683) 13304 42916
Exchange adjustments EREE - (3193) (22889 2 1,706 - (3,014) 179 2815 1,570 - - 3,285 213 (17.322)
At 31 December 2022 RIEIZE+ZR
(restated) =+-H (§E5) 7869 (60,028)  (250,151) 44,083 56,343 1879 (@317 55338 51,164 44,05 86) 8,416 8728 36,181 (38,556)
(Charge) credit to (%8 stARE
profit or loss (2,566) 5847 39,665 11,765 8,71 - (4,059) 931 20,847 (37,446) 1,500 (2,165) - 31,027 82,497
Exchange adjustments EREE - (653) (3,995 6 a1 - (738) 54 1,016 545 - - 148 53 (2,633
At 31 December 2023 Rz %5 B3
A=+-8 5303 (483 (4481 S84 655 1819 (@04 64703 BT 14 144 6151 886 G178 41308
Note: The others mainly comprised transaction cost, prepaid expense, ek HMFEGEZEMEREE N

inventory capitalisation adjustment etc., due to the time

differences under U.S. income tax code.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to the following
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

EIETRIE (@)

PR S HASR o BE L LA S BT AR R
URNEERIELERBESE  HA
FERI G A B sE AN IEH B 3017
HRER

31/12/2023  31/12/2022

RMB’000 RMB’000
T +z=B  foB
=+—H =+—H

ARBTFR ARBTT

Arising from impairment of assets HEEREESE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB203,253,000
(2022: RMB123,152,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The above tax
losses will be expired in the following years:

34,836 39,468

R_E_ZF#+_-_B=+—8">
NEEHEEUHEHE AR EN D
HERAFEEREEENARE
203,253,0007t (ZEZZF : AE
#123,152,0007T) ° R AEFEA
915259’3, AR > #0047 AR B S
BRERELERIEESE - FMRIEE
BN T FEREER :

31/12/2023  31/12/2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

—E-= —ECF

+=B8 +—H

=+—H =+—H

ARBFrT ARETT

2023 —E_= - 1,168
2024 —ENFE 8,160 8,943
2025 —ERHEF 20,728 20,728
2026 :%:/\ 51,595 51,595
2027 —ECLHF 39,742 40,718
2028 —ENEF 83,028 -

203,253 123,152




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24. BRI ETHERIE

KERE EARBLEBAN) STLET
MEHERZ MERAEFHEE
BEIUANFE—E=F -FRM

The Group entered into certain finance lease
agreements as a lessor for equipment. The average
terms of finance leases entered into usually range from

212

one to three years. All interest rates inherent in the EZ2BHEHARBEHEBNRELOH
leases are fixed at the contract date over the leases HAEEE o
terms.
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
== =S
+=R +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETFT
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  Ft2HREBDHTA :
Current assets MEEE 42,963 70,831
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,302 23,037
58,265 93,868
Present value of
Minimum minimum lease
lease receivables receivables
31/12/2023 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B RERERE EWREHEEREZRE
—EC=E S —E-= S
+Z=H +Z8 +=-AH +ZA
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+—H
ARBFR ARETxT AREFR ARETH
Finance lease receivables EURERERESE
comprise
Within one year R—ER 59,159 90,093 53,878 84,365
In more than one year but not B —FEBRBETME
more than two years 15,761 20,795 15,352 18,765
In more than two years but ~ BEMEEFBELE
not more than five years - 5,204 - 4518
74,920 116,092 69,230 107,648
Less: unearned finance income i, : AEEREE U (5,690) (8,444) - -
allowance for credit losses EEBEREERE (10,965) (13,780) (10,965) (13,780)
Present value of minimum lease EWREHAETEZ
payment receivables RE 58,265 93,868 58,265 93,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Effective interest rates implicit in the above finance
leases range from 6.00% to 7.00% per annum (2022:
6.00% to 8.00% per annum).

Finance lease receivables are secured over the
machineries leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by
the lessee.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
finance lease receivables due from fellow subsidiaries is
RMB56,046,000 (2022: RMB60,877,000).

24. BEWRMBEHERE @

FimERENS 2 ERENEN
F6.00EXETE(CE_—_F: &£
F)Z A F6.00/E E£8.00F) ©

FE U R B 10 & R IE LAPRAE 1 28 1R 1R
o REBTASFERBAREN
BRTHENFEFIETR-

R_E_=fF+"_A=+—H"
FEWNRERSENENREESRE
EWRRBRZMBAIIREBEARIE
56,046,00070 (T2 __F: AR¥
60,877,0007T) ©

Details of impairment assessment of financial lease FEU AR E 1 B BB BT A 5F 1R E
receivables are set out in Note 42. RMIsE42 0
25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. FEUIRE R
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREFRT AR®TFIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables (note a) EEMEEWER FFsa) 740,601 772,435
Variable-rate loan receivables (note b) ZEF|XKEWE R (Mfztb) 71,506 61,646
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEREEE (22,440) (22,290)
789,667 811,791
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  Ft2HREBDIHTA
Current assets RENE E 642,476 627,626
Non-current assets ERBEE 147,191 184,165
789,667 811,791
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
RMB369,528,000 represents the loan provided to third
parties secured by various equipment, carrying the effective
interest rates range from 6.00% to 8.50% per annum. (2022:
RMB344,175,000, the effective interest rates range from
6.00% to 8.00% per annum). As at 31 December 2023, the
carrying amount of RMB371,073,000 loan receivables from
fellow subsidiaries, carrying the effective interest rates range
from 6.00% to 8.50% per annum (2022: RMB428,260,000,
carrying the effective interest rates range from 6.00% to
8.00% per annum).

Included in the balance were loans provided by one of the
subsidiary of the Company provided loan with total principal
amount of RMB29,692,000 (2022: RMB29,692,000) to the
eligible employees of Weigao Orhopaedic to partially fund the
subscription of share award scheme granted to them, with a
period of five years, bearing interest at the benchmark lending
rate that published by the People’s Bank of China. As at 31
December 2023, the accrued interest of the loan included
in the balance of loan receivable was RMB2,062,000 (2022:
RMB1,925,000). Details of the share award scheme of Weigao
Orhopaedic are set out in Note 38 (c).

Included in the balances was a loan provided by the subsidiary
of the Company with principal amount of RMB17,027,000
(2022: RMB17,027,000) to an employee of Weigao Orthopaedic
with a period of five years. The loans are unsecured, bearing
interest at the benchmark lending rate that published by the
People's Bank of China. As at 31 December 2023, the accrued
interest of the loan included in the balance of loan receivable
was RMB2,508,000 (2022: RMB1,502,000).

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables are set out
in Note 42.

25. BIREH @
MisE -

(a)
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RIZEZ=F+ZH=+—H k@A
B8 AR 369,528,000 015 F 5
THZEFR O UURREBEERR B
PREEF & E N F6.00EZES.50E <:
T 4F . ANR"344,175,0007T
PRFF EEE N ‘?%.ooris.oo@ °
RIE_=F+"B=+—H EWK
EXREECEERBRANBABDE
FARE371,073,00070 > BEEFX
HWENF6.00EES50E (ZE -
F: NR1428,260,0007T > BRREF|
K& E /) F6.00EE8.00E) °

EHBERAAT BB ATIBES
BERZAERREEREASHEBAR
129,692,000 (ZE_—F : AR
#29,692,0007T) 2 B3k LLER 9
ITRFHERDBEABNRE B
HRE RETEARRTAHGHE
HEERMERHE - R B _=F+_
B=+—B st A\EKREREHIE
FTEXHFEAARY2,062,0007T (=
7__¢ AR#1,925,0007T) © &

BRIRD BB =T B A s B H R M 5
38(c)°

EREEALNENBAABES R
H—2EREREASHRBARK
17,027,000 (ZCE-—F : AR
17,027,00070) * BB AEFZER -
ZEERAERE REPFEARR
ARAGHEEERMEFE - R _IE
::¢+—ﬁ +—H> st AEUK
EREBRZESERNEAARK
2, 508 000C (ZEZZF : AR
1,502,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

26. INVENTORIES

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—EZ= =S
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFxT AR®BTFT
(&E7)
Raw materials Rt 705,362 662,210
Finished goods B AL R 1,789,990 1,661,545
2,495,352 2,323,755

As at 31 December 2023, total net book value
of inventories served as collateral for the Group’s
borrowing amounted to RMB351,879,000 (2022:
RMB289,204,000).

W2 _=F+"_B=+—H"H
EAREBEEREFRNEFEEERR
FEA ARM351,879,0007T (Z&
— & AR18289,204,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUR & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x
I

>

216

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)

—EZ= =S
+=A +—A
=+—A  =1—8
AREBFRT AR®TFIT
(&E7)
Trade receivables FEUL E 5 BR R 5,970,229 5,789,493
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERBEE (281,742) (297,208)
5,688,487 5,492,285
Receivables from factoring business 7R BfRIBZ 75 > FE UL IE 231,400 232,945
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEREEE (2,722) (2,418)
228,678 230,527
Other receivables Hih e g 772,379 713,225
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EERERE (2,336) (1,667)
770,043 711,558
Prepayments BAMIE 740,969 721,233
7,428,177 7,155,603

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLE2RBH DA -

Current assets MEEE 7,365,212 7,085,067
Non-current assets FERFEE 62,965 70,536
7,428,177 7,155,603

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB5,970,229,000 (2022: RMB5,789,493,000
(restated)).

Included in trade receivables are an amount due from
fellow subsidiaries of RMB3,157,466,000 (2022:
RMB2,878,559,000 (restated)), an amount due
from a holding company of RMB3,076,000 (2022:
RMB2,952,000), and an amount due from an associate
of RMB22,669,000 (2022: RMB28,063,000), an
amount due from associates of a holding company of
RMB236,000 (2022: RMB867,000).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

N—_E_=—F+"HB=+—H"%K
BEEREHANEREZIRNA A
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BWEZEFBIERRBERIEBA
TIZIE AREE3,157,466,0007T (—
= __F  ANR%2,878,559,000
7T (RET))) ER—EEZERAE
FIBEARM3,076,00070 (ZE -
F . ANR1E2,952,0007T) EFEK—
B = AR HIEAR®22,669,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in receivables from factoring business
are an amount due from fellow subsidiaries of
RMB126,000,000 (2022: RMB144,700,000). The
amounts are due in one year with effective interest
rates range from 6.00% to 7.00% per annum (2022:
from 4.75% to 8.57% per annum).

Included in other receivables are an amount due
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB449,055,000 (2022:
RMB68,272,000 (restated)), an amount due from
a holding company of RMB20,967,000 (2022:
RMB386,970,000 (restated)), an amount due from an
associate of RMB6,816,000 (2022: RMB11,810,000),
an amount due from associates of a holding company
of RMB299,000 (2022: RMB194,000). The amounts are
unsecured and repayable on demand.

Included in prepayments are an amount paid to
fellow subsidiaries of RMB55,022,000 (2022:
RMB 139,566,000 (restated)), and an amount paid to an
associate of RMB2,877,000 (2022: RMB6,620,000).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

27. YL B 5 Rk Be H fth FE U 7k

I8 (&)

KEREBEHR 2EKRRIEBECE
BB RZMBATDRE AR
126,000,00070 (Z2-"F : AR
#144,700,0007T) o ZEMIER —
FREHH EBRFEMENF6.00E
F7J00E (CEZ_F . FHZF4.75
[EE57E) o

HtEWRIEBERKBRKBA
T IE A R #449,055,00077 (Z &
::fﬁ AR %68,272,0007T (A
57))) - EWK— F’ﬁ?ﬂﬁ“/\TTAIE)\
R #20,967,00070 (ZE -
AR 1386,970,0007T (&K EF))) ~
FEW—BHEAIRBEBARE
6,816,000 (ZE-_"F : AR
11,810,0007T) KEW—BERK A
TE’]H?M/\TTAIE/\ﬁmz99 000
T (ZEZZF  AR®194,000
T0) cERERBEBAERERARE

FEIF Ea%Eﬁﬂ%Wf@Tﬂ
B ARM55,022,0000 (ZB =
F: AE%139,566,0007T (K&E
7)) REN—BE#EEATDREBEAR
2,877,000 (ZE-_—_F: AE
#6,620,0007T) °

RIEMER REZEA27NEI
BN ENREEERER) =
BREC A0 T

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB'000 RMB’000

(restated)

+=A +—A

=+—H =+—H

AREFR ARETT

(& E5)

0 to 90 days 0FE90k 2,756,267 2,618,692
91 to 180 days 912180k 1,105,295 1,056,219
181 to 365 days 181&2365K 1,037,082 1,092,384
Over 365 days 365K 789,843 724,990
5,688,487 5,492,285
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUR & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB1,864,982,000 which are past due
(2022: RMB1,856,720,000).

As at 31 December 2023, total net book value of
trade and other receivables served as collateral for the
Group’s borrowing amounted to RMB227,834,000
(2022: RMB210,937,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 42.

I8 (&)

A =F+_A= + H» K
EENEKRESZRTEHEEE
FEEEEAARE, 864 982,000
T (ZEZZF . AR
1,856,720,0007T) B %1 8A Y FE UK BR
%’7\0

RZE_=F+_B=+—HF
AXREBERIRFRNEKE SR
TR EMERRIENRE FEEEE
A NER1§227,834,00070 (Z& _:
F : ARH®210,937,0007T) ©

& U B 7 AR 7R R HL M WRR TR R R
BT LT IF R M 5E42 0

28. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 28. MAFEAAHEHMZEWA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEZEHEIA
INCOME
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—EZ= ==
+=A +—B
=+—H =+—H
AREBFRT AEBTT
€<S==¢7l))
Unlisted investments: ELrHEE:
— Bank bills receivable —EWEIRITE#E 344,211 521,651

All bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed bills
receivable of RMB113,006,000 (2022: RMB380,076,000
(restated)) for the settlement of trade and other
payables. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivable, and the Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in
accordance with the commercial practice in the PRC and
the risk of the default in payment of the endorsed bills
receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by the reputable PRC banks.
As a result, the relevant assets and liabilities were
derecognised. The maximum exposure to the Group
that may result from the default of these endorsed bills
receivable is equal to their carrying amounts. The fair
values of the Group's continuing involvement in the
derecognised bills are not significant. During the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer
of the derecognised bills. No gains or losses were
recognised from the continuing involvement in both
presented. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged
bank bills receivable of RMB13,599,000 (2022: RMB
RMB107,611,000) to secure the letter of credit.

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2023, pledged/restricted bank
balances represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure trade facilities such as bills payable and letter
of credit and short-term borrowing amounting to
RMB754,975,000 (2022: RMB694,084,000). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

The pledged/restricted bank balances carry fixed interest
rates which range from 0.01% to 5.30% per annum
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 0.01% to 4.00% per
annum).

28.

29.

BAFEFAEMBEUA
HEZEBIA @
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EEEMNERG -ENFIEEHE
FEWNEEYHRBERFNHRIERT
BFHRER RESERKREESD
XA RS o AUt > 18 R8
EENEBEEBEER - AEEA
ERZEESZERKEBRLIRERX
HTAF SENBRARRENREIRR
B AEBRHKRIIBIAZENTE
BEZNFEIAER-BE_ZT
TEERZEIE+RA=4+—
HIEEE  AEBITARANEZER
IEEREE Y AR MR EE
B-REVNFERNHYEERFESHA
BANGHEE - BEERERY
BIEH o

A _=F+_HA=+—H"=xK
EECRFEREBETEE AR
13,599,000 (ZE-_—F: AR
107,611,0007t0) AR EIS(E S ©

EERZIREIRITER

RZE_=F+"FB=+—H"'B
HiR/ ZIRABTAEKIERET
RTTUEFRESHE (FINENE
BREAEKREHER 2ERE
B AR 1754,975,00070 (& _—
F . AR ®694,084,0007T) ° B
HIRITTERB R EEERIBITER
B RBR o

RZE_=ZF+_"_F=+—H"'EB
W ZREIBITEGRICE TR
ENFEHE0OQIEESI0E (ZF
T HF IEF0.01EE4.00E) 5t
IS

219



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 30. IRE KR ERITEEER

220

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits
and short-term deposits for the purpose of meeting the
Group’s short term cash commitments, with amount
of RMB4,797,461,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB5,521,051,000 (restated)), which carry interest at
market rates range from nil to 1.90% per annum (2022:
nil to 1.89% per annum).

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents
included deposits of RMB80,721,000 (2022:
RMB162,595,000), carrying interest rates at 0.25% per
annum (2022: 0.35% per annum), in an associate of a
holding company.

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash
equivalents served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB101,094,000 (2022:
RMB155,910,000).

Term deposits

The Group's Term deposits were issued by banks with
original maturity over three months, with amount of
RMB2,191,270,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB1,443,435,000), which carry interest rates range
from 1.30% to 5.40% per annum (2022: 1.30% to
4.90% per annum).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. FE (3 B 5 ARX B H fth FE 3 7%
18
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables MRIBEAR BHEZHRIIINE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the N EZRMBRE DITAOT -

reporting period:

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’000 RMB’'000
(restated)
=== =
+ZAH +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
(REF)
0 to 90 days 0F90k 874,314 1,078,863
91 to 180 days 91&2180K 92,060 90,815
181 to 365 days 1812365K% 72,292 100,732
Over 365 days 365K E 118,744 162,917
Trade payables FEfTE F R 1,157,410 1,433,327
Bills payable e R 612,207 278,783
Other tax payables H (I8 138,266 206,034
Construction cost and retention BEARENFRESE
payables 75,264 88,513
Selling expense payables EHERX 995,471 839,398
Consideration payable for the W ESmERMZAE
acquisition of Weigao New life (f5E3)
(Note 3) 309,000 -
Obligation arising on acquisition of W IEFEEZEE
Zhejiang Quantum (Note 39) (M5E39) 20,363 -
Other payables H (I 7B 1,238,166 1,569,844

4,546,147 4,415,899

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLE2EFHRBE DA !
Current liabilities mEaE 4,319,784 4,415,899
Non-Current liabilities JEREER 226,363 -

4,546,147 4,415,899

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 B2RBEBNEBREEHRARIIOKRE
days to180 days. All the bills payable will mature within 180K o P A BT ZHR IR ML /<@
six months. BREH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31. E(TE Z IR R H BT

Included in trade payables are amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries of RMB389,649,000 (2022:
RMB299,045,000 (restated)), an amount due to an
associate of RMB42,592,000 (2022: RMB68,454,000
(restated)), an amount due to a holding company of
RMB1,047,000 (2022: RMB1,235,000), and an amount
due to an associate of a holding company of RMB7,000
(2022: RMBS8,260,000). The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within credit period.

Included in other payables and consideration payable
for the acquisition of Wegao New life are amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries of RMB343,698,000 (2022:
RMB39,517,000 (restated)), an amount due to an
associate of RMB17,000 (2022: RMB571,000), an
amount due to a holding company of RMB105,515,000
(2022: RMB217,860,000), and an amount due to an
associate of a holding company of RMB28,657,000
(2022: RMB17,634,000). The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

I8 (&)

ENEZEFEEENRRZNEA

SIFUE A R #389,649,0007T (Z=
— % AR1299,045,0007T (£
B3))) EN—EBEATMIEA
R 142,592,00070 (ZE - _F :
AR 168,454,0007T (&KEH))
A —BEZERABHREARKE
1,047,0007C (ZEZ—F . AR
1,235,0007T) KBS — B A )
Eﬁ— sl E ANBMIEARKT,000

T (ZTEZHF 1 AK¥8,260,000
TE) ZETEAERF - REEPD
EEHREE-

HEMENRBEBRKRER ST ERE
HZREBEECNRARZREAST
1B AR #343,698,0007 T (Z &
— & AR¥39,517, ooo;T:( RE
7)) EN—EBREATDREBEAR
#17,00070 (Z = __fE AR
571,0007T) ~ BN —BERAB K
| AR #105,515,00070 (Z & _—
F . ANR1217,860,0007T) & FET
—EEZER AN —EEE AR RIE
ANER#528,657,00070 (Z & - —4F .
AR #17,634,0007T) © ?.Z:EITJXIE?%
HIEF R E RN EKEEE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. a9& 1@

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000

(restated)

+=A +—H

=+—H =+—H

AREFRT AR®TFT

(&R&E7)

Sales of goods & 7 o 434,222 388,086
Current liabilities mENEE 424,492 380,444
Non-Current liabilities JERBERE 9,730 7,642
434,222 388,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. BHNEFE @
The revenue recognised in the current year relates AFEERINELEBESHEREME
to carried-forward contract liabilities amounted R A & AR #380,444,000
to RMB380,444,000. Contract liabilities of T RBE_ZEZ-_MWNE+ZA
RMB424,492,000 will be recognised as revenue during —+—HLEFE cHNEBBARE
the year ending 31 December 2024. 424,492 ,0007T 1 FE D 7 UL A o
Included in contract liabilities are amounts received EHNEEERERERNEBLRE
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB38,552,000 (2022: ZIBEARM38,552,0007 (&
RMB37,717,000 (restated)), amount received from ——HF: ANR®37,717,0005T (&
ultimate holding company of RMB225,000 (2022: 55))  BEWERLERRERIEA
RMB6,000), amount received from an associate of R #225,000c (ZTEZZF . AR
a holding company of nil (2022: RMB2,199,000), #6,0007T) ~ BEWIER AT 2 HiE
and amount received from an associate of nil (2022: NAFEE (ZTE_—_F: AEK
RMB1,878,000). 2,199,0007T) & B U E & A B RIE
T (ZE2F ARK¥1,878,000
JT) ©
BORROWINGS 33. &
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
+=B +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREFRT AR®TFT
Bank borrowings at variable-rate BFHF X5t ERIRITE;
(Note a) (ft5Ea) 2,217,721 2,566,523
Bank borrowings at fixed-rate B € 5 BERRITER
(Note b) (M zEDb) 828,923 797,497
3,046,644 3,364,020
Secured (Note ¢) BER (5Eo) 3,003,624 3,192,923
Unsecured eI 43,020 171,097
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

33. BORROWINGS (continued)

33. thrk (&)

(£ 2

The borrowings are repayable as follows: & AR THHEEE
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
+=R +=A
=+—B =1-8
ARBFR ARBTT
Within one year 2,546,750 960,808
More than one year but not EEN e
exceeding two years 499,894 1,904,318
More than two years but not SMEMU L ERBBERSE
exceeding five years - 498,894
3,046,644 3,364,020
Less: Amount due within one year BB TREEaET
shown under current liabilities R—E AR E BB (2,546,750) (960,808)
Amount due after one year shown §'J?%3Fuu§j],%1fﬁ'ﬁﬁ\ F
under non-current liabilities HARYFR 499,894 2,403,212
Notes: B &

(@) As at 31 December 2023, the variable-rate borrowings carried
interest rates ranging from 3.20% to 7.81% per annum (2022:

0.50% to 7.03% per annum).

(b) As at 31 December 2023, the fixed-rate borrowings carried
interest rates ranging from 1.14% to 3.43% per annum (2022:

3.08% to 3.43% per annum).

(00 On 31 March 2020, the Company entered into a loan

agreement with International Finance Corporation,

in the

aggregate principal amount of RMB500,000,000, bearing fixed
interest rate of 3.43% per annum. The loan is secured by equity
interests of Jierui, Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd,
Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease Co.,Ltd that owned by the
Group. On 25 August 2022, the Company and International
Finance Corporation agreed to replace the Weigao Purui equity
interests with property, plant and equipment of the Company
as collateral. As at 31 December 2023, the total carrying value
of the pledged property, plant and equipment of the Company
was RMB599,815,000 (2022: RMB627,948,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the balance included loans of
RMB8,913,000 (2022: RMB17,100,000) secured by pledge
of certain of the Group's finance lease receivables of

RMB8,913,000 (2022: RMB17,100,000).
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AR ZE+_RB=+—0B &S
MEEBRBANEEI20EET.S1E
CRENFIR(ZEZ—4F . §F0.50E
EF7.03E) 5tBe

N_EBEZ=F+"A=+—H EBFE
MEERBNFEE114EE3.43E
MAE (ZEZZF . 8F3.08EF
3.43E) 5t B e

RIEZEFE=F=+—H &~AF
BERESHART I ASBEA AR
#£500,000,000c I E R % B EF
MEAHIAZB-ZEFUKRERES
M2 LR EHERRAR
EEtsHEmERAEERATMNRE
RHER- R _Z-_—_ENB=_+E
H o A7) B R & ‘TH%LAZK
NENYE BEERBENAES
1%HQ$¥T’F?%?EH$D%°E’:‘:;‘:E¢
+ZA=Z+—H ' AATBCERY
¥ BMEARBNRDEEAARE
599,815,0007t (ZZEZZF | AR
627,948,0007T) ©

Eé_v__EJr B=+—08> &8
BEFEEHRARS, 913,000 (ZF
— = AER#17,100,0007T) * @B
HIRAER ARES 913,000t (ZF
——#: AR¥17,100,0007T) ZEF
FEWRRE T S RUBIRHER -
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33. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@]

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the balance included short-term
borrowing of RMB300,000,000 (2022: RMB300,000,000)
secured by certain of the Group’s restricted bank balances of
RMB368,300,000 (2022: RMB362,159,000).

On 12 September 2019, Argon entered into Tranche A
Credit Agreement (“Tranche A”), with principal amount
of USD325,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,267,265,000),
bearing variable interest at Secured Overnight Financing
Rate (“SOFR") plus 2.125% per annum (2022: GBP London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2.625% per annum),
and includes a revolving credit facility bearing interest at the
same rate. As of 31 December 2023, the amount utilised
under the revolving credit facility was USD33,000,000
(equivalent to RMB233,729,000) (2022:USD33,000,000
(equivalent to RMB229,832,000)). WW Medical and Healthcare
Holdings Corporation (“WW Holding”) entered into Tranche
B Facility Agreement (“Tranche B"”) with principal amount of
UsSD75,000,000 (equivalent to RMB523,215,000), bearing
variable interest at SOFR plus 2.4% per annum (2022:
LIBOR plus 2.4% per annum). As at 31 December 2023, the
outstanding principal for Tranche A and Tranche B amounted
to USD311,067,000 (equivalent to RMB2,203,194,000), with
maturing within one year.

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, both Tranche A and Tranche
B had been refinanced in February 2024, Tranche A will have
an aggregated principal amount of USD140,000,000, and
the revolving loans will have an aggregate principal amount
of USD50,000,000. The refinance of Tranche A has been
funded USD175,000,000 with four years term. The refinance
of Tranche B will have an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000, and had been held by WW Cayman which
has a maturity of three years.

AR ZE+ZHA=+—0B &5
BIERBERARK300,000,0007T
(Z=E=Z-—4#F : AR¥300,000,000
T) G EBEBRAER AR
368,300,0007C (CE -4 : AR
362,159,0007T) 2 5 [RHIR1T45 bR 12

IR
RZE—hhFEAB+ZH > BIRFIIL

A4 F8#4325,000,000E T FBER A
R #2,267,265,0007T) MyTranche A
EE1# % (TTranche A)) > FBFIX
BERBERAEFZE (TSOFRY) ME
ME2125B (2T Z2F © HikEfm
HERTTRIZERMAIZE (TLIBOR) M
FEFE2 625H) :&’@%w@ml
X ENBEREEMRE-EE
—=f%+ZHA=+—H ’ﬁfaf:.',\
MEETNEEAEE433,000,000
E7t (BER ARK®233,729,0007T)
(Z=&Z -4 :33,000,000= 7 (48
£ AR #229,832,0007T)) c WW
Medical and Healthcare Holdings
Corporation (TWW Holding 1) 5] 327
£ %8 475,000,000E 7T (FHER AR
#523,215,0007t) ATranche BREE 17
#% (TTranche B1) » 2 EFZFE ASOFR
MERZE2 4B (ZZE - _4 :LIBOR
MEFZK24E) RIBE_=F+_
H=+—H ’Tranche AKTranche BfJ
FREEAL311,067,000%E 7T (HEZE R
AR#2,203,194,0007T) KR —ERE
Hyo

A ZE_=F+_B=1+—H%"
Tranche ARTranche BHLHIBER &
“HEZBETEME  Tranche A
M 485815 %140,000,000% 7T
MERERNASEEHEESER
50,000,000 75 ° Tranche ARYEBRIE
2 8#E 175,000,000 75 AR &M
fFoTranche BEMEARTEEA AR
#1,000,000,0007% > FHWW Cayman
FHE HRA=F-
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33. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Company guaranteed the borrowings under
Tranche A and Tranche B. Certain of Argon's assets
serve as collateral for borrowings under Tranche A and
Tranche B.

On 31 December 2023, the details of Argon’s assets
pledged are as follow:

33. famk @

ARATATranche AKTranche BRY
ERIRHER - BRETEERA
Tranche AJTranche BIE &Y
R o

RZIEZ=F+ZHA=+—H"'BE
EFEESREENSBOT
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31/12/2023
RMB’'000
—EZ=
+=8
=+—H
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment ME-BE KRB 246,561
Other intangible assets HihmiEE 1,243,622
Inventories =78 351,879
Trade receivables FEUL B 57 BR X 227,834
Cash and bank balances RERIBITLERR 101,094
34. BONDS PAYABLE 34. B{HEH
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
+=H +—A
=+—A =1—8
ARBTFR AREBTT
Green Bonds RBES 995,405 993,977
The bonds are repayable as follows: B5AR MY HABEE
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
+=R +—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFTR AREBTT
More than two years but not exceeding  BEMEEBRBRIEE
five years 995,405 993,977
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34. E{H{&E3F (@

34. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

35.

On 31 March 2020, International Finance Corporation
agreed to subscribe the senior secured green bonds
(the "Green Bonds”) issued by the Company in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
with maturity in seven years. The Green Bonds bear
fixed interest rate of 3.59% per annum, payable semi-
annually. The effective interest rate of the Green
Bonds is 3.75% per annum. The Green Bonds, are
secured by equity interests of Jierui, Shandong Weigao
Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd, Shanghai Weigao Financing
Lease Co.,Ltd, being subsidiaries of the Group. On 25
August 2022, the Company and International Finance
Corporation agreed to replace the Weigao Purui equity
interests pledge with property, plant and equipment of
the Company as collateral. As at 31 December 2023,
certain property, plant and equipment of the Company
with a total carrying value of RMB599,815,000 (2022:
RMB627,948,000) were pledged.

RZEZEF=A=+—H K
TRHARRERBEARABETH
K%VAE?%AEW 000,000,000
THELBEEREEES (IGE
E%)) " HRATE - FBESN
Bl EEFEKAB3.59% SHXELN
— R BEFNERFNNEXS
3.75% i BESEUSNEBRB A
ai%ﬁM%@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁE
NEIRLEHERMEMRERRER
Tﬂﬁﬂyff%ékﬁi#ﬁ i —
FNB-+HH> $ o) £ 5 R
ETRABEEMUERNE Y E-
BEREZERNES S IHREE
AEFR - RZZE_=%+2"2A8
=t+—H ' ARBEREEEAAR
#599,815,000c (ZE - _"&F : A
E15627,948,0007T) WE T

R REREEIEE R

DEFERRED INCOME 35. IRFEUW A
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E-= B CHF
+=AH +=A
=+—A  =+—8
AREFRT AR®TFT
Arising from government grants =N 67,346 82,204

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLE2FHRBE DA !

Current liabilities mEaE 7,369 13,110
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 59,977 69,094
67,346 82,204

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
received new government grants from the government
authorities amounting to RMB14,883,000 (2022:
RMB6,337,000) to subsidy the Group’s certain capital
expenditures. The Group has complied with the
conditions attached to the grants as at 31 December
2023 and will transfer the grants to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the related assets. During the year,
the Group recognised these government grants to
other income amounting to RMB29,741,000 (2022:
RMB24,097,000).

BE_ZT_=—F+"_A=+—H1t
FESAEEBRIIBFBPEEGEA
14,883,000 c(ZE "% A
EE1£6,337,0007T) Z FTEAS /8
MAEREBRNE TEARZIREM
BB N _E_=F+"B=+—
H>XEB BB/ E K
U EREEZEAFERR
EBEZEHOERG FR O AE
lﬁﬁuﬁﬁffﬁyr‘%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ{muﬁk
AR #29,741,0000 (ZE -
Aﬁﬂ%24,097,oooﬂ:) °
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36. LEASE LIABILITIES

36. THE&E

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
+=8B +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Lease liabilities payable: FEHEEaE:
Within one year S —FER 26,587 29,323
Within a period of more than one S—F U EERES
year but not more than two years i FHARE 23,673 23,976
Within a period of more than two RMEN EERBBE
years but not more than five years hFHAER 40,004 38,687
Within a period of more than five years 8@ f F HB K 37,004 41,414
127,268 133,400
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR REE /MmN 1218 A
within 12 months shown MBI & BRI
under current liabilities (26,587) (29,323)
Amount due for settlement after SRIERBadEmi12@EAa
12 months shown under MR REENMIE
non-current liabilities 100,681 104,077

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 7.05% eSS
per annum (2022: from 4.75% to 7.05% per annum).

HEaEEBNMEFEE
BENF4.75EF7.05E 2 [
(ZE_ZF . §FNF4.75BE

SEX

7.05/E) o
37. SHARE CAPITAL
37. &%
Nominal Number of Total
value of non-listed  Number of number
each share shares H shares of shares Value
RMB RMB'000
& L™
RipEE LEaE ] HER#E R aag Y
ANRETRT ANRETT
Registered, issued and fully =i EE2TRER
paid:
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ_&#+°RH
=+—H 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063
At 31 December 2023 RZBEZ=F+"H8
=+—H 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 17 November 2014, the Company’s share
award scheme (the “Incentive Share Scheme”) was
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting.
The maximum number of non-listed Shares
which may be issued under the share award
scheme would be 223,818,616, which represent
approximately 4.76% of the issued share capital of
the Company, as incentive shares to key personnel
of the Group, and other persons as approved
by the Remuneration Committee (the “Selected
Employee”), in batches in subsequent years. The
Incentive Share Scheme lasts for 10 years starting
from 17 November 2014 which took grant date
during this period in consideration. Details of
the Incentive Share Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 August 2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the
incentive shares will be granted to the Selected
Employee, subject to non-market performance
vesting conditions.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, for
Selected Employee with a domestic identity, the
trustee will administer the incentive shares, which
may be organised in forms of companies owned
by the employees, limited partnership, or qualified
trust companies in the PRC, or for Selected
Employee with a foreign identity, the trustee will
hold the incentive shares outside the PRC.

38. UBe{n B E W (IR

(a) 2T MG HHENE S

RWZZE—mE+—HA++tH>
NN E) BB ES R K E
PR (D B B 5T B (TR B AR 1n
&) o RIS BB 5T 8 7T
BITIELETROMZEZSHE
1 74223,818,6168  HEN
KRB BEEITRANLG76%
REEREFERAEBRFEA
ERFMEEZHENEMA
(M@ AL PHEBITIELAR
BhRR (7 o BN B 10 5T &) 2 8
AEB_E—NE+—B+t
HiEst+5  HEZ B4
BEBH HERHtE
HEERAABHBAE
—mENB+EBZAMRC

R AR IR 10 51 81 > BB AR 1D
W EIETH I X AR B IR Y
RETHEFZmA e

RIBESRE R T8 AR
REMHNEmAMES » 5EA
i BB R H A BE LU
ERENAT RABENER
GBAANEERETLAT
AN ST RIENS
MHZ@mAME > REARE
PRI SN AR AR (D o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 1

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted
first 45,960,000 incentive shares to 111
Selected Employees, with the consideration of
RMB101,112,000 at the issue price of RMB2.20
per share. The fair value of the incentive shares
as at grant date amounted to RMB104,121,000.
For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The granted shares are
vested in five tranches with the vesting date on 31
December of each year from 2015 to 2019, the
vested shares are excisable after two years lock up
period following vested.

Three partnerships were set up for the purpose
of administering the Incentive Share Scheme
and holding the shares, and hereby regarded as
trustees of the Company and consolidated to the
Group accordingly.

As of 31 December 2023, the outstanding
incentive shares under the Incentive Share Scheme
were 14,456,000 (2022: 14,456,000), included
1,110,000 exercisable shares (2022: 1,110,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none
of the shares were repurchased and sold by
trustees.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
trustees repurchased 8,812,000 shares, which
would be taken up by the Selected Employees
with the net consideration of RMB35,248,000 at
the price of RMB6.20 per share, and 2,448,000
repurchased shares were sold for a total
consideration of RMB26,783,000. The repurchased
shares are held by the trustees for the benefit of
the Share Award Scheme.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

38. e B E BRI (&

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

HERR17 18 — F 17

R_E—HRE+_8+—
H XA USKEKRND AR
22002 BITEEXRERY
45,960,000R8 % B p& 19 %
M12S3 A REAARK
101,112,0007c° IR F HER
ZHEIRD 2 ATFEAR
104,121,000%0%}%%&&%?&
SIECHEBEGNRMOMS
/AFHEEEEE@%M BITE
ZENEBNRTEHRZEBBERM
BERERFHNEBH R U
B FIERAREZ - HHEK
MRS FURE > FEH
HA_E—HREE_ZT—A
FEFEFZT+_A=+—H'B
SERMAINEBEMEHE
EREmEB T UITE

AR =BE&aBA8hA%

BE R & 8 RFHRA M

RIBIBRAHERRNZR
aA

EARRE PR A E R4
iR o
BHE_Z_=ZF+_H
=+—H8 BB KMmstaE
BT 2ZWERITEBERIMD
A14,456,0000 (Z& - =
& . 14,456,0000%) > B234F

1,110,000 I 17K M (ZF
4 :1,110,0008%) ©

BHE_ZT_-_=%+_H
—+—HIFEE T AHE
ok EETARKS, -

= S — fE + = A
=+—HIFE ZFTAUE
AR 6. zoﬂﬁfa?f%@ﬁ%%

H=@m AFTIEZAIRYS,812,000
BREH KESEA ARKE
35,248,0007% )Ezz 448,0000%
BLORmMELEE  BREBAA
E“ﬁ%26,783,0007|: (o] FE B2 15
HRTAAZRMDHEBEE D
MR-
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 2

On 21 October 2021, the trustees subscribed the
newly issued 48,300,000 non-listed shares with
the total consideration of RMB172,914,000 at the
issue price of RMB3.58 per share. On 24 December
2021, the Company granted 48,300,000 incentive
shares to 83 Selected Employees.

Based on the Share Award Scheme of the
Company, the Company will repurchase the shares
granted to the Selected Employees when the
Selected Employees are not satisfying specified
vesting conditions. The total consideration paid
by the Selected Employees are recognised as
liabilities, and will only be reversed by portion to
other reserve when the shares are vested each
year. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
RMB34,583,000 reversed from liabilities to other
reserve (2022: RMB34,583,000).

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant
date amounted to RMB197,490,000 which
determined by market price of listing shares of the
Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The Group recognised
the incentive share expenses of approximately
RMB42,426,000 (2022: RMB81,077,000) into the
profit or loss during the current year.

Nine limited partnerships were set up for the
purpose of administering the Incentive Share
Scheme and holding the shares, and hereby
regarded as trustees of the Company and
consolidated to the Group accordingly.

38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

MBI AR a8 — F

WZE-_—H+8=+—
H RTAUERERD AR
W3 58T 2 BITEDREN
22 17H948,300,000R8 3 £
mMRM BREA AR
172,914,000 R &~ —
F+ZAZ+MHHE > KRB
H48,300,0008% & Bh A& 19 583
Z=mAe

RGN B IR B E s 8
TABEESHAREDIS
ERBRGROBERETS
mABNRMD -ZT@m ARMEAA
HEREBRRABE WER
REERMRB R #E 35
FHMEFEE L=
+ZBR=+—HLEEE AR
#%34,583,000cHEEEEE
HM@EHE (CEZ_F: AR
#34,583,0007T) ©

REFEBHZHEBRGD ZA
FEAK197,490,0007T 75
KeERRI LEHRHZH
BMmEE °

MEHERNGIEEEBKY
WD MmEs A FEAERB
pETECENEZERE
HEARHERAEESRHEREN
SBENUBEG LIRS
ToRAEE > AEBRER
BRAERMEIHOARK
42,426,00070 (& -~ & :
AR #81,077,0007T) ©

MEENBROERFTAE
RNRIZNABEREER
B BRI R BT AT 2R
ARRAIER AEEGE AfRKe
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Share Award Scheme of the Company
(continued)

Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 2

38. e B E BRI (&

(a) 2B R HENEE (B

HEREAE - F_H (B

(continued)

Details of specific categories of share award are as ERROBBEBENNFEBU

follows: T
Vesting Issue
Date of grant period Price
RHAH RED &178
Batch 2 24/12/2021 5 years RMB3.58
EPEins 5&  AR¥3.58%T
As of 31 December 2023, the outstanding = S SR =

incentive shares under the Incentive Share Scheme
— Batch 2 were 48,300,000 (2022: 48,300,000)
of which 28,980,000 is exercisable (2022:
19,320,000).

Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

On July 26 2018, WW Medical and Healthcare
Company Limited ("WW Cayman”), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a non-qualified share
option plan (the “Share Option Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees of WW Cayman
and its subsidiaries, which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date. Under the Share Option
Scheme, a committee designated by the board
of directors of the WW Cayman may from time
to time in its sole discretion grant options to the
eligible employees.

1l B

Y
+—8 > ZENRM 8 —
F2MBEBTHRITHENEE
B% 15 7348,300,0008% (2022
1 48,300,00008) > H A
28,980,000/ (20224 :
19,320,000 f%) A] F U T (B o

(b) WW Cayman BYBEBR1E:T 2

RIE—NFEtBZ+8>
KA B M B ABWW Medical
and Healthcare Company
Limited (TWW Cayman J) 4%
FFPRE RE B #E 51 8 (THE AR #E
&) CHEFTEENEARAWW
CaymanREMBABINESR
REEREERMHE B
FHBRI0CFANBM - RiEHE
fe ST E > WW CaymanZE =
BIEETNZEGI AL
HEREEREEREEBER
o
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 8% of the
shares of WW Cayman in issue at closing date.
Unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company, the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of WW Cayman’s shares in issue.

As at 31 December 2023, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
3,359,014, representing 7% (2022: 3,181,903,
representing 7%) of the shares at that date.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time
after vesting and will be cancelled if not exercised
before the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.

The exercise price of each batch of option is
determined with reference to the total cash
consideration paid by the Company in the
formation of WW Cayman for the acquisition of
Argon, taking into account the relevant costs and
expenses involved, but in no event shall be less
than the fair market value of a share of stock in
WW Cayman on the date of grant.

38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &1

)

REBRESE oK EHE
RENMERERMDEBHETE
HBiBXE HBEBEZETHWW
Caymanf& 15 B8 % o BrIEE A
REIKE#AE BFEREE
HERE (BIEBTEMERTT
R ARE) BT Em IR
2EBMHERNBEETRE T
BT BB FBIBWW
CaymanB 1T HBI1% ©

RIEZ=%+Z"H=4+—
H st8|ETERE RDET
EINERENMERRMOEE
733,359,014 » (57 5% H H#7
R MBI mT7% (B __F
3,181,903f& > {H57%) ©

REBREERZORE -
Bz #E B 1 BB B 12 BY AT {7 B
171 BRI H B AW
106 Z A 1T > BIR 4 5E

SMHERENTEELKLZ
ZEINNT R IIWW Caymankd
WEEBIRMZAHNIRENE
4aRE > B R R B MR R AL AR R
FMZEE  EEmUAAER
P& E HEWW CaymanfRZ=
HAFHHEE-
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uigin AEREER @
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman (b) WW Cayman HBJiERZ#E T2l
(continued) (&)
Details of specific categories of options are as BB EENFROT
follows:
Vesting Exercise
Date of grant period Price
R B RRH fIfEfE
Time-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
R ERERE 4 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00
REEERERE 4F 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
R B2 R IR 4F 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
R ERERE 4 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 08/08/2022 4 years Usb11.30
REEERERE 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 12/12/2022 4 years Usb11.30
R B2 R IR 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 01/01/2023 4 years UsbD11.30
R ERERE 4 11.30%7
Time-based options 10/03/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEERERE 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 31/03/2023 4 years Usb11.30
R B2 R R 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 19/07/2023 4 years UsbD11.30
R ERERE 4 11.30%7
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. UG AERIFH @)
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman (b) WW Cayman HJEBg#E T2l
(continued) (&)
Details of specific categories of options are as EREREENFROT
follows: (continued) (#8)
Vesting Exercise
Date of grant period Price
EHAMH BED 7@
Performance-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
RREERRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 30/10/2019 4 years UsD10.00
REEEFRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
REREBRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
RREERRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 08/08/2022 4 years UsD11.30
REEEFRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 12/12/2022 4 years UsbD11.30
REREBRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 01/01/2023 4 years Usb11.30
RREERRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 10/03/2023 4 years UsD11.30
REEEFRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 31/03/2023 4 years UsbD11.30
REEEBRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 19/07/2023 4 years Usb11.30
RREERRE 4F 11.30% 7T

235




236

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
share options held by employees during the year:

38. UBe{n B E W (IR

(nﬁ)

R EEER

EH

/ 5

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &I

TEREBFRNEEFMFER

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at

Option type 11112023 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2023
R-ZBZZE R-ZBZZE

~R-A +2B=+-B

REEL HETE FRRE ERTE ERER ERIH HETE
Time-based options BREERRRE 1,892,800 187,603 (105,750) (7,144) (1,500) 1,966,009
Performance-based options  RREEERE 1,289,103 211,027 (105,750) (1,379) 1,393,005
3,181,903 398,630 (211,500) (7,144) (2,875) 3,359,014

During the year ended 31 December 2023, options
were granted on 1 January 2023, 10 March 2023,
respectively.
The estimated fair value of the time-based options
granted on those dates is USD2.40. The estimated
fair value of the performance-based options on

31 March 2023 and 19 July 2023,

those dates is USD2.40.

The fair value of the options was calculated using
the Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into

A —

RB8E_ZT_=F+2_A1
=+—BLEFE BREDH
B =ZF-—HF—H-=®

—_=F#-HBAt+HAZ%T==

—A=+—HRZZE-_=%
tE+hBEREY RZEH
HARENEEEEREDN

st A FER2.40%TTo

R

EHEMKRBEEBEREDN
Bt AFEA2.40FETT

BRiEZ A TFERBHR—
M EBRESRE

LRt

the model were as follows: BB A BRI T ¢
2023 2022

—E-= S
Weighted average share price (USD) 11.30 11.30
MEFEHERKE (ET)
Exercise price (USD) 11.30 11.30
1T15E (1)
Expected volatility 40% 40%
BRI ENE
Expected life 1.5 yearsfE 1.5 yearstE
TEHAG AR
Risk-free rate 3.00% 3.00%
I ) B 1 =R
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(c)

(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the comparable companies
over the previous 1.5 years (2022: 1.5 years). The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
UsD1,684,000 (equivalent to RMB11,928,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
UsD1,197,000, equivalent to RMB8,052,000) in
relation to share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme by WW Cayman.

Share Award Scheme by Weigao
Orthopaedic

On 9 May 2020, a share award scheme was
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting of
Weigao Orthopaedic (the “Weigao Orthopaedic
Share Award Scheme”). A total number of
3,300,000 shares of Weigao Orthopaedic were
awarded to the eligible senior management and
employees (the “Eligible Employees™), which
representing 0.92% shareholding of Weigao
Orthopaedic.

The issue price of Weigao Orthopaedic Share
Award Scheme is RMB15 per share, the total
consideration amounted to RMB49,500,000.
60% of consideration was covered by the loan
provided by Weihai Hongyangrui to the Eligible
Employees, and the remaining 40% was funded by
themselves.

38. e B E BRI (&

(b) WW Cayman BYEEBR1E:T &1

(c)

(nﬁ)

FEHEBSXRERERBE
15& (ZTE - "F:158)d
ﬁttﬁ“’\ia’]}ﬁi&@?zﬁﬁ

E-BERNEERBNREMEE
REREANEHRFHER
BAR BRI T ERB RIT
HEREARNTEFHARE -

AEBEFIBIBEWW Cayman
MERESERENERRE
BRERBEE_ZE_=ZF+_
)%_Jr—EitEr;,%,sBﬁS'z
1,684,0005% 7t (MHEMR AR
11,928,00070 ) (Z& -
1,197,000% 7> HER AR
#8,052,0007T ) ©

ES &0 AR &

WZE_ZFHRBAHE
SERKRER KT HEMRKR
mEEsE (e ER R
BNt &) o 543,300,000
KESERERNDETEER
SHREEEKREE (TEEHK
BE)) 'HE=EBEREERN
0.92% o©

B = B LR 10 BB 51 8 By 2
TEAERARE 15T BA
Ba AR149,500,00070 0 &
"R 60 % B9 1 1B B L 75 3 [ B
MEERESRMHENEMS
i HERd0% B EBESHE -

(\—

E
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uigin AEREER @

(c) Share Award Scheme by Weigao
Orthopaedic (continued)

Details of the shares awarded are as follows:

(c)

==

5
=

l%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂﬂ’\]ﬂﬁfﬁi%&ﬁbﬁé‘]

EERROFBOT -

Vesting
Date of grant period
RHAM REH
Performance-based awards 09/05/2020 4 years
RIEERE “ZTZE 4F
HANH
Based on the Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award R B = B R0 2 e 5t &
Scheme, as the subsidiary of the Company will HRAAGIMNBRAB GRS
repurchase the shares granted to the Eligible B EEREINIE TR B K
Employees when the Eligible Employees are not HELNEERTEERES
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the total HRG BHEBEREEMSN
consideration paid by the Eligible Employees are HNEERKBRRABE WIEF
recognised as liabilities, and will only be reversed REERMNEBRERI D
by portion to other reserve when the shares FEHMPFEE LT =
are vested each year. During the year ended 31 +ZA=+—HLEFE» AR
December 2023, RMB12,375,000 reversed from 12,375,000t H B EEEE
liabilities to other reserve (2022: RMB12,375,000). HtEE (CE-__F: AR
#£12,375,0007T) ©
The estimated fair value of the performance- RBEERBNREL HEAD
based awards on the grant date is RMB19.8 per B AT ERERARKRE19.8
share. The difference between the fair value and T ERERMA AT EEE
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed TEZENEERGERE
on a straight-line basis over the periods in which BFEHRERBNBAREANE
services are expected to be rendered by the Eligible BEREZH RNEBEEZZE =
Employees. During the year ended 31 December F+ZRA=+—HIEFE &
2023, Weigao Orthopaedic recognised a share BEMEROEBMEROA

awards expense of approximately RMB1,105,000
into the profit or loss (2022: RMB2,638,000).

(d) Repurchase of shares of Weigao
Orthopaedic

On 28 August 2023, the board of directors
of Weigao Orthopaedic approved Weigao
Orthopaedic to repurchase certain of its public
issued shares by using its own funds for a future
share award scheme plan. During the year ended
31 December 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic has
repurchased 917,266 shares, accounted for
0.229% of its total issued shares, with a total
amount of RMB36,530,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 May 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic acquired
62.1429% equity interests in Zhejiang Quantum
Medical Devices Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Quantum”) for
a cash consideration of RMB43,500,000. Zhengjiang
Quantum is established in the PRC and principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of minimally invasive medical devices. The
acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition

39. W HEEHI B A F)

R_E_=FFAB_+HHE ES
FRLEREREARE43,500,000
TWENIEFERSEWERAT
(THTIEF]) 62.1429% R 1 o 3
IE2FRHEAN > EEREMA
BERBAMNME - EERBEE &
W EBEE KB WEEARY(EE
75 U B o

REBRBAEKRBNEERBHR
M&afR

RMB’'000
AREF T
Property, plant and equipment IER =Y 15,109
Other intangible assets HihwmpEEE 12,853
Inventories =8 1,729
Other receivables H fth UL TR IE 536
Cash and bank balances & RIBITHEER 283
Trade and other payables FES B Z R KR EAMERIE (10,425)
Contract liabilities a5H8E (1,722)
Deferred tax liability RIEIRIEE R (2,783)
15,580
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WRSFREENHE :

RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration paid BB 43,500
Plus: non-controlling interest o FEER S 6,952
Less: net assets acquired B FTNEEREEE (15,580)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEFTEANEE 34,872
The non-controlling interest (37.8571%) in Zhejiang REHBRBRI WIS FIEER
Quantum recognised at the acquisition date was R (37.8571%) Jh2EREIGMNT

measured by reference to the proportionate share of the ETEEFEZILAFE-

net assets of Zhejiang Quantum.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

AR RET S > W E LN B
RETHI o
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39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. BB B AT (@

240

(continued)

Net cash outflow on the acquisition

WP EE MR E RN PEE

RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration paid BB 43,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of the A FTEREARNRERIREE
subsidiary acquired B (283)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents upon RIKEER B RABRNIRERIREEE
acquisition of a subsidiary Y 43,217

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year is RMB1,090,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
Zhejiang Quantum. Revenue for the year includes
RMB12,887,000 generated from Zhejiang Quantum.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2023,
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023 would have been RMB13,238,109,000, and profit
for the year ended 31 December 2023 would have
been RMB2,061,250,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2023, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had Zhejiang Quantum been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the Directors calculated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment based
on the recognised amounts of property, plant and
equipment at the date of the acquisition.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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AEEGHNAENIEFELENEE
INEFEFEL AR 11,090,0007T © &
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—HRER AERHEHE_ZT_=
F+_A=+—HIEFEZKA
A ANRM13,238,109,0007T »
BE_T_-—"HF+-_B=+—H
FEEEZAEERZMNBFEAARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+-_F=+—HILEFE
39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. BB 28 (&)

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the iR ARERENTE (8)
Group (continued)

According to the agreement reached by Weigao RIZE S B AL 8 7 AT R
Orthopaedic and the former shareholders of Zhejiang %E&E@Tﬁ%ﬁa{ﬁﬁﬁil%%ﬁé;%
Quantum, under the condition that the net profit of —HENMAER -T2 S
Zhejiang Quantum reaches a certain amount in 2025, BRAERBRENTIRRERNTAE
Weigao Orthopaedic is obliged to purchase all except By AT & 55 % LASH E\’\]%%MQ% ’
for 5% of the equity interest of Zhejiang Quantum held REEE\%EE%%Mﬁﬁ o FOUTAS
by a former shareholder at that time, at a consideration B> BE 8RR EKES TR
calculated according to the established method. At RARREMHEIRRABARE
the acquisition date, Weigao Orthopaedic recognised 1$9'571'OOOT_EB/‘]EE@%%E%E@%
&o

the equity acquisition obligation as a financial liability
measured at present value of the amount payable
to the former shareholders with the amount of
RMB19,571,000.

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. B KR
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had commitments 1= §E§$+:ﬁ Ej’_ E': 75
which were contracted for but not provided in the $E:'zﬁm/ﬁj§%%ﬁ%§$%ﬁaﬂﬁ
consolidated financial statements: 1B AR B R AL

31/12/2023
RMB’'000

—E-=
+=A
=+—H
ARETr
Commitments to Joint Ventures (Note 21) HEEPEEE (T:E21) 491,686
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WYX - BEKRZE 510,300
Incorporation of a joint venture AR —EEERE 150,000
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41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. EXRAEER

242

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes borrowings net of cash and
bank balances) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained profits).

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issue of
new shares as well as the issue of new debt or the
repayment of existing debt.
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policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
receivables from factoring business, loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
trade and other receivables, pledged/restricted bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, financial liabilities
at FVTPL trade and other payables, borrowings and
bonds payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. R TH
Categories of financial instruments SR TAER
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
(restated)
—E-= —EF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®BTFT
(& &E7)
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BN EFFABGSEZ
TREE 87,281 120,301
Amortised cost #iE R A 15,220,581 14,904,731
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFESF AEMEEIEA
FTEZEHILA 344,211 521,651
Financial liabilities ERaE
Amortised cost iR A 8,048,211 8,161,301
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BN EFFABGEZ
ETHEas 7,653 -
Financial risk management objectives and BERGEERERBE

FEENTEEHNTABSERER
BEBZEBWRIE BRER &
ATESFABGFEZESHEE
BAFESFAHEMEZEWRASE
ZEBIA BWEZ RN HEAt
FEWGRIE BRI ZIRFIRITHE
PR ERIBITESFBATES
ABamstBZEMER -BUES
AR AR S H M FE A FRIE ~ 1B Rk A A
BF ZETMITEFBREME
RE -HZETMTAAMVER
BRETHRER (B ER RN ER
%) EERBABEZRR T
S 540 fe] B AR 5% 55 LB BY SR o
EEEEEREEZSTRAR  LUE
R B2 bRy B RO ER BB & Y HE I ©
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. £ T H @

244

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Some subsidiaries of the Group undertakes transactions
in foreign currencies other than functional currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, as disclosed in Note
22, the Group hold foreign exchange swap which is to
fix exchange rate of USD against RMB.

The Group did not applied hedge accounting in
the measurement of foreign exchange swap. The
management manages its currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should such need arise.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) B R (&)
Currency risk (continued) BigmE L (8)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RHRERR AEEUINESIEZ
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EEEREKEREZREEN
the end of the reporting period are as follows. Fo
Liabilities Assets
31/12/2023 31/12/2022  31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
af8 BE
—§-=f "E”_”_f CEIE= “EICF
t=A t=A +=A +-A
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+—H
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR AR%Txn
Group entities in PRC AERRTENER
Currency of SGD Frng T - - 11,130 7,139
Currency of EUR Bl - 1,790 3,005 19,622
Currency of HKD AT - - 97 1,561
Currency of USD E7T 9,025 76,968 1,064,019 728,690
Currency of JPY H - - 4,453 298
Currency of KRW BT 4,420 - 2,791 241
Group entities in U.S. KEEREZRNER
Currency of EUR BT - 2,080 4,917 6,736
Currency of SGD N T 262 671 554 1,251
Currency of NOK e BA 65 3 5,259 5,300
Currency of CHF I L7 BP 230 1,132 794 690
Currency of DKK HE R 35 48 3,574 1,612
Currency of SEK 1 8 52 B 23 31 3,691 4,361
Currency of GBP iS5 1,332 1,253 13,673 10,813
Currency of CLP BRHEE 3,346 2,457 19,771 13,854
Currency of COP SREIHER 580 1,640 26,021 15,113
The Group's foreign currency risk is concentrated on the AEEWNIIERBREIEZEFTAR
fluctuation of RMB and USD against foreign currency. B RETRINEBIEE o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. M T A @&
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 5% (2022:5%) increase and decrease in the RMB
and USD against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the
year where RMB and USD weakens 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of RMB and
USD against the relevant currency, there would be an
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

MBRREEBRREE (&)

i BE (1)

Ei5mpE (B

TRAVWNAEEGARERETR
FERESNKE 2 BER EF R Fk5% (T
T F5%) ZHRAES%AE
BEHIINEEXRSIZEOAEEE) 2 5T
Ho-BMREDMESFERERNZIU
SNEETIIE ETIER W HAR
5% ZHNEEXSENFHEMRE 2R
B UTEHEERTREARBRET
DAEBANEEES %R AFEER
BRI ZARB - MARBRETR
RN EFES% B g HAEE
MeEMNEERTEE-

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT

Profit for the year KEE wm A
— Group entities in PRC —AEERFENER 45,562 28,849
— Group entities in U.S. —AEEREENER 2,859 1,991
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to finance lease receivables, loan receivables,
pledged/restricted bank deposits, borrowings, bonds
payable and lease liabilities with fixed interest rate
(Notes 24, 25, 29, 33, 34 and 36). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to loan
receivables, cash and bank balances and borrowings
with variable interest rate (Notes 25, 30 and 33).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of saving/lending rate
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China and SOFR
arising from the Group’s USD dollar denominated
borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based on interest
rate level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and
ensure they are within reasonable range. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, as disclosed in Note 22,
the Group hold interest rate swap which is to exchange
floating interest rate with fixed interest rate.

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

i BE (1)

VeI

AEBBHREEREKHERER
BH-ERER BEF, 2R R
TEF- B ENESKRTEM
EatENAFEMNEXRAR (KF
24~25-29-33-34%36) c RNEH
THERAEEEBRKRER REKIRT
EHRAOIEERNREERENER
% (M95E25~30&33) ©

AEBNRERENXRABEESE
PRPEARRITERNER &
A ERLSOFREAAEB U E T
ERNERMEEN RS - AERE
BT EURN K ERFIEAER
R EEHMPAEE ZBEFE
DEEBEMNERR SEEREH
B E KFBARERZ LA > I FE
RZEERERSEHZERN -HE
_E_=F+”_B=+—BuLt#E
M sE22FriR BEE » AEH
FBEMEGHR UETEMEIRF
A= o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. R T A @)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMBEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) B EEE (&)

Interest rate risk (continued) FI|E B fzz (48)

Total interest income from financial assets that are L#E At ENETHMEENT S
measured at amortised cost are as follows: WA AEZBUN T -

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
BE BH=E
—E-= BT
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETFT
(&R E5)
Interest income ) E WA
Financial assets at amortised cost BIER AT E SRIEE 235,678 181,410
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at KA ESFABmIEZEME
FVTPL: BN EREXE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE BH=E
+=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZEIHM At E=Ex T EE 268,157 186,048
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables, cash and bank balances and borrowings
with variable interest rate at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-
rate loan receivables, cash and bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
points (2022: 25 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on variable-rate loan receivables, cash
and bank balances and variable-rate borrowings had
been 25 basis points (2022: 25 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have decreased/increased
by RMBS&,785,000 (2022: decreased/increased by
RMB8,043,000 (restated)).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, receivables from factoring business, other
receivables, pledged/restricted bank deposits, cash
and bank balances, loan receivables, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, finance lease receivables. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated with loan
receivables and finance lease receivables are mitigated
because they are secured over various equipment and
machineries.

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

B EEE ()

"R E DT

TXHEHREDTERNREEAR
FEWET IR RIBTEGRRTE
ERAZHH KRR EE - DK
BENRBESHRNZIEEREDR
ReRRTERRIEEARNEE
HBREEMRE 25EEARLEF
(ZE % 25@EHEKEF) 1
mEim b REEBEHA KN EIE
BIAE B BN EH B9 G o

WIEEEBKER R NIRITE
Bk R 7 Q%?K?F'JT?PW/BHEEZS
TIﬁZIS!Ei?(_v__ 251I

= EIJZIKi%IE\ai_v_:E
+-B=+—HBLEEENRER
R R D 1IN R #8,785,0007T
(CBZZFEHL EMARKE
8,043,0007T) (K&E&EF) o

15 B/ B R B (E 5T 1

EERBIEAERHNFENESH
ﬁ?ﬁ AAEREAMBEEE
o AEBEERBREZREBN
B SR RERIBER Z BRI
B HMEWRE 2R R
HIERITFER R RIRITER I
WER - BAFES AREMEEUY
ASFENEHFTARBWRMERE
MIE REB T EFATAHER®

s H Ath {5 18 ,,&L(?&fﬁéﬂﬁ/fﬁ?m
ERENEERRE LB ERR

kEWMEEEREEANEER
RISUERE HESBBIERE
R R AR R o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. For finance
lease business and factoring business, the Group also
has delegated a team responsible for (i) designing and
implementation of overall risk management internal
control policies and procedures and establishing
appropriate risk appetite; (ii) designing and execution
of due diligence procedures; (iii) reviewing the
creditworthiness of customers. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
in accordance with HKFRS 9 on receivable balances
individually or based on provision matrix.

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI only comprise
bank bills receivable that are issued and guaranteed by
the reputable PRC banks and therefore the credit risk is
considered to be low.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks. However,
the credit risk on pledged/restricted bank deposits and
cash and bank balances is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 56%
of the total trade receivables was due from fellow
subsidiaries (2022: 52%). The Group has concentration
of credit risk as 55% of receivables from factoring
business was due from fellow subsidiaries (2022: 62 %).
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 47% of
loan receivables due from fellow subsidiaries. (2022:
59%).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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(INVEEERPREEIBI UL &
EERBETEMB RS ERFIR
REMEEHRRRAEBIRER
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach of HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the ECL on these items by using
a provision matrix grouped by risk portfolio, which is
estimated based on the financial quality of the debtors,
historical credit loss experience and the past due status
of the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and assessment
of both the current as well as the forward-looking
information that available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date.

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December
2023 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
with gross carrying amounts of RMB2,688,208,000 and
RMB36,452,000 respectively as at 31 December 2023
were assessed individually (2022: RMB2,353,320,000
and RMB56,291,000 respectively).

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

EEmEERBEFE (&)

MEWEZERME  AEEEHK
AEBVHBREENFIRTHME
B ZREMBEREEHESTER
BEE - FREABERKEEREN
EERENEEIN FERBBE
BREBEGDENEEEEEE
ZEEENRRBEERRE LR
BEBANMBER BEREBA
BHRRNEEREEBEER R
BNEEFRET RN —REBERR
RS BEEBEERAA DY
FIMESHIRIEME BIRAE MATHE
MEEBETMEE

TREVEHAEKREZERFEER
Pt O E R ZEEINE F iR
EHEAEERE (BEEHEB)
NER _E_=F+_-_B=+—
HRNBEEETG - RS _=
+-_B=+—HEEBEAXREE
EREERE REEED A
AR %2,688,208,00070 & AR &
36,452,000 c (CE - " F : DHIA
AR 12,353,320,00070 & A R #&
56,291,00070) WER A EERT
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMBEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERAEFG (B)
(continued)

31/12/2023

Trade

receivables

- Gross

Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB’000

_— ——

+=A8

=+—H

FEus

=R N

FEIRE —RERE
ARBTT

Low risk type customer BEAREER 2.44% 226,677
Normal risk type customer EERRBRERR 3.56% 3,018,892
Total 4 5t 3,245,569

31/12/2022

Trade

receivables

— Gross

Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB'000

(restated)

=
RS

+=A

=+—H

U

B 78R

FHEREX —REAE
ARETTT

(B E5)

Low risk type customer EREEER 2.00% 203,760
Normal risk type customer FERREERR 3.40% 3,176,122
Total HEEt 3,379,882
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBEFG ()
(continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETKBABIER EZMEKE S
that has been recognised for trade receivables under RAEBNEHAEAEEREE
the simplified approach. go

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20 2T
FEBR FEBHE
(BRiEERHE) (EEHE Mt
ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 (restated) RZZZ”"F#—H—H
(EE5) 226,426 36,923 263,349
Transfer to credit-impaired BEEEHE (27,772) 27,772 -
Impairment losses recognised (restated) B HRRERSE (K E5) 42,345 - 42,345
Impairment losses reversed BELIRESE (391) (8,404) (8,795)
Fxchange adjustments (B R RE 346 - 346
Write-off b= (37) - (37)
As at 31 December 2022 (restated) RZEZZF+ZA=+—H
(&5 240,917 56,291 297,208
Impairment losses recognised EBRARESE 22,794 - 22,794
Impairment losses reversed BELIRESE (18,544) - (18,544)
Fxchange adjustments (R R 123 - 123
Write-off s - (19,839) (19,839)
As at 31 December 2023 RZE2Z=%+”"A=+-H 245,290 36,452 281,742
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe

MBRREEBRREE (&)

EEmERBEFE (&)

HEEHNBREBABRBREMH
2 H WERIENEERA KR R

BABBBEIMBRERER) > &
EEFMBEE Z RN - BLERE
W & 5 BRI ATT B M ©

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
None of the trade receivables that have been written off
is subject to enforcement activities.

PMEWREEEMIENS A%E
ERAEEMBHRSERFIRS
R AR 2 MBRREEBE
BEEERE-

For finance lease receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL.

TREH LR ERE T ERURRES
EIEREER.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for finance lease
receivables.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20N 27

FEEHE EEBHE
(RIEEHE) (EERE) st
ARBTR AERBTR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2022 S "F—HF—H 8,303 2,923 11,226
Impairment losses recognised BREDAERSE 2,554 - 2,554
As at 31 December 2022 R_E__F+°"A=+—H 10,857 2,923 13,780
Impairment losses reversed BEBHESSE (115) - (115)
Write-offs it 55 - (2,700) (2,700)
As at 31 December 2023 RZE2Z=%+ZA=+-H 10,742 223 10,965
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for receivables
from factoring business.

EMTH®

MBRREEBRREE (&)

EE R BEFE (&

TREIIBKBREBER ZBUIR
IRHERHEEEEER.

12 m ECL

RMB'000

12188

REGEEHEH

ARBFR

As at 1 January 2022 KRB _&£-B—H 844
Impairment losses recognised ERIAESE 1,574
At 31 December 2022 A S 2,418
Impairment losses recognised ERIAESE 304
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZA=+-H 2,722
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

MBRREEBRREE (&)

EE R BEFE (&

T RE Y E A S WRIR RSB RIS

allowances that has been recognised for other BEEHER
receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
12 m ECL impaired) Total
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
20EE
128R REESE
RHEESE (BEHAR EH
AEBTR ARBTR ARETR
(575 (BE5)
As at 1 January 2022 (restated) RZEZ"F—F—H
(&5 1,894 346 2,240
Impairment losses recognised BREDAESE 61 - 61
Impairment losses reversed ERLHESE (634) - (634)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RIBZZE+-R=+—H (KE) 1321 346 1,667
Impairment losses recognised BREDAESE 749 - 749
Write-offs s - (80) (80)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+ZA=+-H 2,070 266 2,336
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BHERABEEAEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREREEFG (&
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TERET R U & RS A A5 1B
allowances that has been recognised for loan HHER
receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
12 m ECL impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2178
128R BEER
REGEER  (EERE) Ly
AE®Fr ARBTRT ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 Ny SR 17,965 7,500 25,465
Impairment losses recognised BRIAERE 825 - 825
Impairment losses reversed BERAEESE - (4,000) (4,000)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZH+ZRA=1—H 18,790 3,500 22,290
Impairment losses recognised BRERAEESR 155 - 155
Write-offs 6 - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2023 RZEBZZ£+ZA=1+-H 18,945 3,495 22,440
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. M T A @&

258

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank
balances deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
different to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMBEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEEZEE (&)
Liquidity tables MEBEEX
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than Over undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2:5 years Syears  cashflows  31/12/2023
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RS2z
g RERY AMRRE +A=t+-8

1S hitE 1526 2358 BigsE HEUE MR E
% AEETR ARETR ARETR AEETR  AEBETR  AREIR

203 St
Non-derivative financial liabilities it eman
Trade payables ERERER 1,157,410 - - - 1,157,410 1,157,410
Construction cost and retention payables BEMARENREE 75.264 - - - 75,264 75,264
Bills payable [ES 612,207 - - - 612,207 612,207
Other payables EfERZE il 1,945,501 103,000 126,658 - 2,175,159 2,161,281
Lease liabilities HEER 4.75 29,902 26,686 43,254 39,529 139,37 127,268
Bonds payable EfES 375 35,900 35,900 1,046,371 - 1,118,171 995,405
Borrowings &
- fived rate REilES 3.25 684,799 505,050 - - 1,189,849 828,923
- variable rate -5ENE 1.58 2,656,201 1,398 - - 2,657,599 2,217,121

1,197,184 672,034 1,216,283 39,529 9,125,030 8,175,479
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

F+ZA=+—HLEE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. TR T A (&)

MBRREEBRREE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REEZRE (&
Liquidity tables (continued) TEEZ K (B)
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 311212022
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
RIRIZE
Ty EES el FEERE T2AZT-H
BRI DRE 1525 155F i ikt WEREE
%  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(fme) (BE5) (& E3))
2002 I
Non-derivative financial liabilities it eman
Trade payables EfBRER 1433327 - - - 1433327 1433327
Construction cost and retention payables BERAREARES 88,513 - - - 88,513 88,513
Bills payable 28 278,783 - - - 278,783 278,783
Other payables HftfEfI 58 8 2,019,484 - - - 2,019,484 2,002,681
Lease liabilities HEAR 475 30,748 24,335 46,342 4,752 144177 133,400
Bonds payable EfiES 375 35,900 35,900 1,082,271 - 1,154,071 993,977
Borrowings e
- fixed rate -EEHE 330 326,618 17,150 587,751 - 931,519 797497
- variable rate L L 44 825212 2,003,427 1398 - 2,830,037 2,566,523
5,038,585 2,080,812 1,717,762 4,152 8,879,911 8,294,701
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

42. TR T A (&)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

EMIANATEHE

FEBUEEMBEZLTEHE
HEMEEREME B/ TFE

rEBHOEMEEREHEBEREN
BREPRB LA FESFE - TRE
NEBNPEELSTMEERSE
MEBEAFTEZER (LHZ P
REETERBARE) -

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
(RMB'000) hierarchy input(s)
31/12/2023 3111212022
RUTRBNATE
(AE¥Fr) ATEEH fhEAERRREARE
k- Jan - “EICE
+-A8 +ZR
=+-AH =+-H
Financial assets
ERMEE
FVTPL - Interest rate swap 3N 572 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward
interest rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.
BRATEGABGAE-FEEHR E BRRERE ARRENERERH

= (RERREHRNIER YT
R RENHEEE RRRSH
FLEERRMLRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE B

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and TEFUREBEZL FEHE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair HEMEEREMEEHLTE
value on a recurring basis (continued) (4

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key

(RMB'000) hierarchy
31/12/2023 311212022
RUTRANAEE
(AE®T ) ATESH
- e S
+ZA +2A
=+-H =+-f

input(s)

EELERRRBABE

FVTOCI - Debt instruments at FVTOC] 344,211 521,651  Level 2

BATEF ARMERRAGE- EZH
BATESAHMEZERAGEZ
REHIA

FVTPL - Investment funds and equity 86,910 119,729  Level 3
security

BATES A BmstE-E% B=H
RENBm R

Financial liabilities
EMAR
FVTPL - Foreign exchange swap 7,653 - Level2

BATES A BmstE-NEER EZH
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Discounted cash flow - future cash flows
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.

FRASRE-BRMEHFAEER
BOLERERNARRERE

Income approach - in this approach,
the discounted cash flow method was
used to capture the present value of
the expected future economic benefits
to be derived from the ownership of
this investee, based on an appropriate
discount rate.

WAE-IERER RRERRLRE
FEEREZSREHNSNEEER
ERERARCENGZNRE (kB
ARREHE) o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward
exchange rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period) and contracted
forward rates, discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

FHAERE - ARREREREEN
BX (RERRSHANTREREH
BX) Raf B R RREE
HFAEERRNIEZER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Fair value measurement of financial ERMITAMNAFEIE B

instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value BoRAFEAENHE
measurements
Financial
assets

31 December 2023 —E2-=#+=ZHA=+—H at FVTPL

RMB’'000

BATE

s AEE

HEZ
EMEE
AREFx

Balance at 1 January 2022 N ZETF—RB—HZ &R 100,943
Change in fair value NE(BEEE 18,786
Balance at 31 December 2022 N_E - —HF+ "B =+—H2 %% 119,729
Repayment of investment principle ERERERE (12,636)
Change in fair value N EEE (20,183)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R_E_=F+_A=+—B2& 86,910
Fair value of financial instruments that are FIE R A BRI £ T B A2 F
recorded at amortised cost 2]
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts EEXR ZEGEUBRRPE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded BIE AN SRHREERSRE
at amortised cost in these consolidated financial BENEREREAFEEE-

statements approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43.

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

MEGHEENARZHIR

TREFAEEBRRELTHAELE
WaREF (BREREkIFREE
)  MEZIMEENERDEE
R ERREME DB 2 AEBR
BREAEWMRADE

Bonds Dividend Lease
Borrowings payable payable liabilities Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 13) (Note 36)
fa% EfifRs EftkE HEaR it

AEETR AEETFR AEETR AEEFR AEETR
(M3t33) (Miz34) (Hfz£13) (Miz£36)

At 1 January 2022 PrZE-"%-F-H 3,064,016 992,549 - 80,845 4,137,410
Dividend declared BERKE - - 741,638 - 741,638
Interest accrued iFgilE 150,148 35,900 - 5,353 191,401
Exchange adjustments ERHE 206,731 - - 2,760 209,491
New lease e - - - 71,166 71,166
Financing cash flows BERETE (56,875) (34,472) (741,638) (32,724) (865,709)
At 31 December 2022 RIRZZE+ZA-1-H 3,364,020 993,977 - 133,400 4,491,397
Dividend declared BERRE - - 732,633 - 732,633
Interest accrued gl 232,257 35,900 - 4,814 272,911
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 38,608 - - 7,432 46,040
New lease HEE - - - 26,604 26,604
Financing cash flows RERERE (588,241) (34,472) (732,633) (44,982) (1,400,328)
At 31 December 2023 RE-ZE+-AZ+-H 3,046,644 995,405 - 127,268 4,169,317
44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS a4. T BIFEREXR S

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
endorsed bill receivables of RMB303,105,000 (2022:
RMB800,861,000) to settle the trade and other
payables.
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BE_Z_—F+-A=+—H1t
FE AEEMEEENEZERR
REMEMTIBESEERKREERAR
#303,105,000c (ZE " : A
F #800,861,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-_=F+-_F=+—HILEFE
45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FAEA TR 5
() RBEE_Z_=FK_Z

T TF+ZR=+—Hlm
BEERN ~EEE TIRHE

(a) The Group had the following related party
transactions during the two years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022:

ANERS
2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
—F= S
ARBTR ARBTT
Cs=cpl)
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETERWB QB 426,469 403,217
Sales to a holding company HEF—BERAT 1,114 482
Sales to an associate HEF—EE AT 24,606 43,329
Distribution made through BIBEAKBRBELDH
fellow subsidiaries 3,542,500 3,346,880
Logistic support services provided ERHBABIREZ
by fellow subsidiaries M 2 5 AR5 105,914 78,203
Purchases from fellow subsidiaries  [E[E %[ B ‘A 51 1% 8 911,787 604,006
Purchases from a holding company [ — B A 5 F i 1,363 6,595
Purchases from an associate m— B E AT RE 241,684 266,960
Purchases from an associate of m—EER AN
a holding company —RBE A B EREE 46,928 21,724
Operating lease income from REBZRMEBERABZ
fellow subsidiaries KEHREWA 8,698 6,733
Operating lease income froman  RKE—BHE AT~
associate KEHEWA 1,973 1,973
Operating lease income from an  RE—REZER RSN —HE
associate of a holding company BERBZKEREWA 742 742
Finance lease income from fellow RERBRMNEBAEZ
subsidiaries MEREWRA 37,827 31,045
Interest income from factoring REBERNBLABREBER
business from fellow subsidiaries — ZF B U A 8,291 11,180
Other service provided by BRMMBABRMZ Hih
fellow subsidiaries AR 75 48,877 19,926
Service provided by a —EER A BRMEZ IR
holding company - 79
Service provided to fellow BIEENGIEYNCIE L E
subsidiaries 8,616 4,067
Service provided to an associate m—ElE AR M Z R 7,322 10,316
Interest income from an associate KB —BER A E N —[
of a holding company BEABZHBUWA 436 4,080
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(continued)

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in Notes 24, 25, 27, 30, 31, and 32.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
principal of the finance lease business provided
to fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to
RMB 14,600,000 (2022: RMB189,723,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
principal of the factoring business provided to
fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to
RMB116,000,000 (2022: RMB178,000,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
subsidiary of the Company acquired interests
in Weigao New Life from subsidiaries of Weihai
Weigao International. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company acquired interests
in Weigao Medical Materials from Weigao Holding.
Details of the related party transactions are set out
in Note 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Company participated the Asset Backed
Securitization issued by Weigao Holding involving
account receivables with a carrying amount of
RMB220,521,000 (2022: RMB512,060,000).
The Company transferred all risks and rewards
associated with those account receivables to
Weigao Holding, and therefore derecognised the
account receivables.

(a) (I\E)

FEU {FREE AN LHRIBEREE
IEEH M sE24~2527~30
31&%320

BHE_Z_=Z®€£+_A8
=+— Eltfﬁr; KEEM
BarlBARREZHME
HMExKAcBEAARK
14,600,00070 (ZE - _—&F :
AR #189,723,0007T) °

HE_Z_=—"%+2"A8
=+—HLEEE > AEHBF
AfBABRHEBZREER
rXEEEAANEH116,000,000
T(ZEZ_F: AR
178,000,0007T) ©

HE_ZT_=4+ = H
—t+—HIEE  ZXABHE
@ﬂhﬁiﬁﬁ.@%%@
SINBRSTERGD B
T F+ZHA=+— Em
FE ARBRHESEERA
W%Wﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%%W%g
Bl A X = k8 N N
30

BHE_Z_=Z%+= )%
=t+t—HLEEFEE AR
Fﬁ@%%@aéﬁﬁﬁih
HFE A RERAEASARK
220,521,00050 (Z & - "% :
AR #512,060,0007T) HYFE UL
EETAOZIK N BB AL R R
RAERE B — U] R B2 K 2] 3k &
&é%ﬂh%l’z}ﬂ Bz (R 1HE 4%
IEFESREUR AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HIFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
subsidiary of the Company disposed the equity
interests in Weihai Weigao Yikang Nursing
Products Co., Ltd. to a fellow subsidiary Shandong
Qifu Health Technology Co., Ltd with a cash
consideration of RMB27,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
subsidiary of the Company, Jierui disposed the
equity interests in Zhengjiang Weigao Automatic
Equipment Company Limited* to Weigao Holding
with a cash consideration of RMB10,000,000.

* Formerly known as Shandong Weigao Automatic
Equipment Company Limited.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members

45. FAIEATXR G @)

(a) ()

BHE_ZT-__F£+ " H
—+—HIFE > A2 3K
BABUBREREARE
27,000,0007cm B & M B A
LWERtEREMNEERAE
HERBH S EEER R
ERABBRKRRE

HE_ZT_-__4+ A
=+—HIEFE  ZATH B
NBERZEUEBEEREBEARK
10,000,000cEE S EBE A E
HEWIHSBEERESR
R ABI*SR IR HE

* AIBURESESHERERR
]

(b) FEERASRERM

RERN BEFTRTIBEEEEN

of key management during the year was as Hp ERVFHBUT :
follows:
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—¥=-= ==
ARBTR ARETT
Short-term employee benefits KR EEERN 11,430 8,409
Post-employment benefits BB R 259 202
Share-based payments PARG 7 75 B BRI R 10,984 21,622
22,673 30,233

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

EERTEZTHABRFHN
hEFMEESRER AL
WRBERHHELMETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HIEE

46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES BAEFTE

268

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. All Hong Kong
employees joining the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

No forfeited contribution under the scheme is available
to reduce the Group’s future contribution.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of mainland.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 16% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:16%) of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

Argon sponsors a 401(k) retirement savings plan
for all Argon employees. This plan includes both
employee contributions as well as employer matching
contributions.

Other subsidiaries in jurisdictions outside of the PRC
contribute to statutory retirement plans on behalf of
their employees which in many cases are managed by
the government in those territories. Those subsidiaries
make periodic contributions to the statutory retirement
plans as required and contributions are generally
determined as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries
or a fixed amount per employee per calendar year
depending on the jurisdiction.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in Note 11.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FEER_ZZTF+_H2HR
BRREEAREEMRPIMKRILZ
BHEEAFEEFE -AFFEZE
ENDHAZSARECES BAE

EzEE AT AE PIAMBAE
ErERAEEHNASEBRMEAR
E5tE e

MR ¥ 5% 51 83 552 W it 7R BT A 1R IRt
DRERZ R R

AEBZHEKNBABE ZEEN
ABAERNKE 2BHXREBERIK
BRFEZHE-RBEE_ZE =
FE+_B=+—HLEEE ZEH
BABEZFHEMEAZI16% (ZF
"8 16%) EERAKEF FE MM
RUEABRFTEES ANERY
BAREHE 2E—BFEAEHIE
EZHRo

ERBAAZIRESREM401(KE
NES5TE & B BEEREEHM
DURe ff8 3= VT Bp (R o

$IM%?E%EWE@W%@?
REEEESREZTERMKE S
EFFZIERT ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%7fﬁ
EBNHNER ZSHBATRE
KEHREEBRIRET B TR B#t
NEEREEESTIENA D
BERiReEEHEFESLRE
EREEZRETE

AEEMRZEAEEMNRBEMHMH
RIS EH R BR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Paid up issued/

47. X 2B X EMBATFS

RTET=ZFERIZTF+TR

=+—H ' ERAFNBRAEFE

mE:

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRITES/ B’+ZBA=+-H
WEARAHE st E HES FERARIEZERRE TEEH
% (EH) % (1)
—BC=E B_”f Z¥IZE _B_F
Weigao Orthopaedic* PRC RMB400,000,000 50.63 50.63 21.55 21,55 Manufacturing of
(LREEERMRRABRAR) orthopaedic medical
device products
URHEEHMHRABRAT HE AR 1400,000,0007C REBRBRREER
Beijing Weigao Yahua Artificial Joints ~ PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Research, services and
Development Company Limited* sales of medical devices
FrEEEEAIRSEEERAR)
FPREBEEA\IHSBEERAT  +& AE70,000,0007 BERZENHE BER
e
Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical PRC RMB65,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Manufacturing of
Devices Co., Ltd* orthopaedic devices,
(BMBHFEBEERERAR) implantation materials
and artificial organs
EMRNAEERBRERAT HE AE65,000,00070 RESHRE BEMH
RABEHE
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB950,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type |
Products Marketing Co., Ltd* medical devices,
LR Ak ERNREHE surgical devices and
RAF) other disposal medical
products
BREE (F5) BRAREHERAT 1 E AR 1950,000,0007C HEE-BEERR T
ik EREM— AR
BEM
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB1,309,070,000 19.21 19.21 80.79 80.79  Wholesale of Type |
Products Material Supply Co., Ltd* medical devices,
(REEE (F6) BERRa RS surgical devices and
[ENG) other disposal medical
products
HEEE (H6) BRRaMHME 7@ AR1,309,070,0007 HEE-HERRE T
BRAE ik REAM— TR
BEM
Weihai Jierui Medical Products PRC RMB114,030,000 81.70 87.70 12.30 1230 Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited* PVC granules, plastic
(FEZHERERERAD) packing bags and carton
boxes
BEZHBRERERAT e ARH114,030,0007 HEBEPVCHIE 218
RER4R
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL le
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

R EEMBATFRE

270

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 - - Provision of logistics and
Company Limited* storage services
(LREEEENRERAT) (i)
LRESEEMABRAR ] AR 120,000,0007 RUEMTREERS
Weihai Weigao Jiesheng Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 95.9 95.9  Trading of medical
Devices Co., Ltd.* products
(FEEmERBESNERAT)
BBEmERERRNERAT HE AE120,000,0007 HEEREM
Weigao International Medical Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD207,699,690 100 100 - - Investment holding and
(REERREERAR) trading
BeERERERAT &H 207,699,690% 7 REERRES
Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing PRC RMB620,000,000 - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Ltd.* financial leasing
WFRESREREERAR) business of medical
equipment
URERREREERAT e AR 620,000,000 tEERRBENSERE
RERS
Weihai Weigao Medical Device Sales ~ PRC RMB150,000,000/ - - 75 75 Trading of medical product
Co., Ltd.* RMB200,000,000
(FEEEERRNHEERRAT)
BEERERGRMHEERRAT HE AE150,000,0007T,/ HEEREM
AE%200,000,0007¢
Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease PRC USD45,000,000/ - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Limited* USD50,000,000 financial leasing
(LEREREREERAR) business
LERBHERERR ’Au e 45,000,000%75,/ tERENEHERH
50,000,000% 7%
Taian Weixin Medical Products PRC RMB800,000/ 1 1 99 99 Trading of medical
Co., Ltd.* RMB30,000,000 products
(GETENERERERAR)
RETENERRRERAT HE AE800,0007,/ HEEREM
AE#30,000,0007T
Anhui Weigao Orthopaedic Medical. ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd.* Type Il medical device;
(RUESERBRENERAT) Enterprise management
advisory services
ZHERERBRRNERAT HE AR 120,000,0007 BEE-B FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. F AT EEMEB AT FEHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)

(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Shandong Weigao Hai Xing Medical PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 72.18 72.18  Production and sales
Devices Co., Ltd*. of Type lll medical
(LEEEEERERHBRAR) implant material and
artificial organ (6846);
production and sales of
Type | medical devices.
UREBEERRRMAERLR e AEH70,000,0007 LERBEF-HERA
MNIHRRAERE
(6846); £ ERHES—
BRERA-
Sichuan Weigao Tianfu Medical PRC nil/ RMB20,000,000 90 90 10 10 Research, sales of
Technology Co. Ltd.* medicines and medical
(O BEARBERRERAT) devices
M EERFEENRARAS e &/ \R20,000,0007 EEVE CEEIES
e
Jilin Weigao Bao Ren Medical PRC RMB39,616,810/ 65 65 - - Wholesale and retail of
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 medical products and
(ENEREECERLRERAT) medical devices
EMEREECERRRERAT  FE AE¥39,616,8107/ HERTERRERNE
A #50,000,0007T BRE
Weihai Weigao Yi Kang Medical PRC RMB30,000,000 10 10 920 90 Sales of medical devices
Device Sales Co., Ltd.*
[BEHBRRBRENHERRAT)
BEHEERBRRMBERRAT HE AR30,000,00078 HEBRERE
WW Cayman Cayman Islands  USD46,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
WW Cayman HEEE 46,000% 7T RELR
WW Medical and Healthcare Us. UsD1,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
Holdings Corporation
WW Medical and Healthcare el 1,000% 7t REnR
Holdings Corporation
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. ~ U.S. Usb1/Usb2,000,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Investment holding
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. % 1%£75,/2,000,000% 7T REER
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

BIEFE

7. %

%
E

Effective equity

BEEIMEAF

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Weihai Weigao Medical Products PRC nil/ RMB 10,000,000 90 90 10 10 Sales of medical devices
Co., Ltd.*
(EEHBERRRERAT)
BEERERRRERAT ] &/ AR 10,000,007 HEERRE
Shandong Weigao Jiahe PRC RMB10,000,000 67 67 - - Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Pharmaceutical Technology Type Il medical device;
Co., Ltd.* Biotechnology Extension
(LRESERBERRERAT) Service
URHEERBERRBRAT HE A 10,000,007 HEE-B FERE
ZEBERE £UR
i B AR
Argon (Shanghai) Medical Devices PRC USD3,000,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Sales of Type Il and Type
Company Limited. Il medical device;
(BIR (L) BEEMBRAF) technical services and
technology transfer.
ER (L) BEEMERAT HE 3,000,000% 7T HEE_ERE-HER
R BARBERRMS
B
Argon (Weihai) Medical Devices, Inc ~ PRC USD1,400,000 - - 89.81 89.81  Production and sales of
(BIR (B8) BEEMBRAT) Type Il and Type Ill. Sales
of Type I. Information
consulting service.
ER (F8) BEEMERAT HE 1,400,000% 7T TERHEFERE=
BoBEE B R
IR
Weigao Puri* PRC RMB104,275,000 95.9 95.9 - - Production and marketing
(LEEEEREEREERAR) of medical polymer
materials and products,
injection puncture
instruments
LREEEREEARARAT e AB104,275,0007 LERBERAENTH
BRER IHER
B
Shandong Mingde Biomedical PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 51.714 57.74  Production and marketing
Engineering Co., Ltd.* of medical polymer
(LRBEENER2TRERA) materials and products,
injection puncture
URBEENEEIRERAT e AR 20,000,007 LERBERAEN T
BRER IHER
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE_=F+_HA=+—HLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

47. ZRB X EZM B A E]

(&)

Effective equity

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ R+=B=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
ZBIZF ZC-F IZEIZE “2°CF
Shandong Weikang Medical PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 medical devices
(IRHEEENEERAT)
LEREERERLERAR il AR 5,000,007/ HERHEBERR
A 10,000,000
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB10,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of medical devices
Devices Sales Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
(LEHBERERENHERRAT)
URHEEHEESMAERRAT FE 10,000,000,/ HEBRRME
AE#850,000,0007t
Hunan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB13,750,000/ - - - 54.86  Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
(HEHEANBRERNBRAT) (v)
HEEeERBRRNERAT il AE#13,750,0007t/ HEEBRRE
A 50,000,000
Sichuan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMBS5,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
mlgEsERBREERERAT)
MIHEEHERBRERAT HE AEH85,000,0007T/ HEBRRME
AE#850,000,0007t
Fenwei Healthcare Technology and PRC RMB40,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research, services and
Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 consulting
[ERERRRNRER (L)
BRAF)
BRERRENREE (LF) HE AR 40,000,007t/ & RH R
BRAF A 50,000,0007T
Weigao Medical Korea Co.Ltd. Korea KRW 173,180,000/ - - 100 100 Sales of medical devices
BEERREARAD) KRW 168,000,000
AERREEARAR #E 173,180,008 7t/ HERRRE
168,000,00082 7T
Shandong Weigao Blood PRC USD55,000,000 - - 100 100 Research, services and
Technology Limited* sales
(LREBmRKAERAR)
LEEENREGERAR il 55,000,000% 7 W& RBRHEE
Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB45,000,000 - - 95.9 95.9  Production and Sales
Packaging Products Co., Ltd.*
(LREEEEEERRERAT)
LRHEEEaLRRERAT HE AR 45,000,007 LERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

EZ =

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

F+ZA=+—HILEFE

7. %

%
E

Effective equity

BEEIMEAF

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Weihai Hongyangrui Information PRC RMB217,777,770 - - 80.15 80.15  Computer technical
Technology Center (Limited services and sale of
Partnership)* electronic products.
(FEhBERBREMRO (BREH))
BELBRENRMGRL (BREY) HE AR217,777,7707 STRRRERERETE
miEE e
Shandong Weigao Weinasi PRC RMB15,250,000/ 90 90 10 10 Development, services
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB20,000,000 and sales of
(LEREEHNBEERRERAT) medical technology
development.
UREEEARRERRERAT  HE AR H15,250,0007,/ BREGNRE BBR
A 20,000,0007 HE-
Weigao (Beijing) Medical PRC RMB4,500,000/ 100 100 - - Research, sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 medicines
@B (iR BEREERAT)
BB (iR BERRERAT HE AEH4,500,0007T/ ERmE e
AE#850,000,0007t
Shandong Weiteng Medical PRC RMB35,000,000/ 1 1 99 99 Sales of medical devices
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
(IRHBRERRRERAT)
LREBERERRERAR ] AE#35,000,0007,/ HEEBRRE
A 50,000,000
Global Healthcare, Inc. us. UsD3,791,097/ - - 51 51 Distribution of medical
UsD10,000,000 devices
Global Healthcare, Inc. %M 3,791,097%7/ BELENDH
10,000,000% 7T
Henan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB50,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Technology development
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 of medical devices,
(EESERBERRERAT) technology consulting
and service. Sales of
Type I, Type Il and Type
[l medical device
AEEEARBERNKERAT HE AEH850,0007/ BRRENRMHE K
ARH10,000,00078 il R R o
HEF—H EBNE
“HERRMR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

47. ZRB X EZM B A E]

(&)

Effective equity

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Shandong Weigao Yahua PRC RMB1,100,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type I and Type Il
Orthopaedic Device Sales Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 medical device
(IRHBTE£BRENEERRAT)
UREEERERMAEERAT  HE AE1,100,0007T/ HEFBNE_EERE
A 10,000,000 B
Weigao (Jinan) Orthopaedic Device PRC RMB1,000,000/ - - 72.18 50.53  Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(@5 (EE) BRARERAT)
B® (BB BRMEERAT HE AEH1,000,0007T/ HEE-B FERE
ARH10,000,00078 SHEERE
Weigao (Shanghai) Orthopaedic PRC RMB1,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd.* RMB60,000,000 Type Il medical device;
(BB (L8 BRMEERAT)
B (L) BRMEERAT ] AR1,000,0007,/ BEE-B FERE
AE60,000,0007 —BEERE
Shandong Gaowo Medical Device PRC nil/ RMB10,000,000 - - - 64.96  Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Co., Ltd.* Type Il medical device;
(LERABESHERAT) ()
URBABRREMERAZ) HE 8/ NR 10,000,007 HEE-B FERE
SHEERE
Rad Source Technologies, Inc. Us. UsD10,634 - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
(ERHREERAG) X-ray based irradiation
machines;
HBRHEHEERAT E=E 10,634%7T XFRERENRERE
£
Rad Source Medical Technology PRC USD2,000,000/ - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd. USD8,000,000 X-ray based irradiation
(E%E (hE) BRREERAR) machines;
HERE (hE) BRRRARAS  HE 2,000,000%7t,/ XGRERENRERE
8,000,000% T g
Shanghai Weigao Gaojingchuang PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(LBEERABENEBRAR) IIl medical devices.
LEERRARERRERAR HE AR 120,000,0007 LERHEE -8 5

BRF-HRERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZE T - =F+_F=+—

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

BIEFE

7. 5B EEMB AT

%
E

Effective equity

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF

Zhejiang Weigao Medical Products PRC RMB9,000,000/ 1 1 99 99 Production and sales of
Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 Type |, Type Il and Type

(FIRERARERERAR) IIl medical devices.

WIHEERERERAT i AR 9,000,007,/ LERBESE-B B

AR 50,000,0007 BRE-EEERE

Tianjin Weigao Hainasi Medical PRC RMBS5,300,000/ - - 66.6 66.6  Development, services
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB11,377,200 and sales of medical

(RERBEMNBEBRNRERAT) technology
(former name Shandong Weigao development.

Hainasi Medical Technology Co., Ltd.)

RERREMRBENEERAT  FE AR 5,300,007/ BREGNRE BBR
(FBLEERERRBRRY ARH11,377,2007 BHE-

BRAE)

Shanghai Shuruikang Medical PRC RMB14,261,000/ 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Technology Development RMB20,000,000 Type I, Type Il and Type
Co., Ltd.* Il medical devices. Sales

(LESHEEENERRERAR) of Type Il and Type Ill ray

devices.

IENREERNRERERAT  FE AE 14,261,007/ LERFEF-B B

A& 20,000,000t ERE-EEERE
HEE_BRE-EN
Jththe

Shandong Weigao Blood Transfusion ~ PRC nil/ RMB50,000,000 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Technology Equipment Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type

(LEFERNETERERAR) IIl medical devices. Sales

of Type Il and Type ll ray
devices.

URERHORNERERAR e &/ \R 50,000,007 LERBEF B B

BRE-BRERE-

HEF_HBRE-ENX

Hefho
Weigao(Suzhou) Medical PRC RMB7,194,318/ 90 90 10 10 Production and sales of

Technology Co., Ltd.*
(@B G BEREERAT)

HE @) BENRARAT hE

RMB10,000,000

AEH7,194,31875/
AR 10,000,007

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Type I, Type Il and Type
Il medical devices. Sales
of Type Il and Type ll ray
devices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. F AT EEMEB AT FEHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)

Paid up issued/
Place of registered
registration  capital

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group as at 31 December
% (direct) % (indirect)

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ R+=B=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
ZBIZF ZC-F IZEIZE “2°CF
Shanghai electron Microscope PRC RMBE6,980,000/ - - 100 100 Production and sales of
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 Type |, Type Il and Type
(LEERBRHNEARAR) IIl medical devices.
Leasing of Type Il, Type
[Il medical devices.
LEERERNRARAT HE AE¥86,980,0007T/ TERBES-H 5
AEK10,000,0007 BRE-BEEZE
HEF_B F=-FE
B
Tianjin Yangfan No. 1 Enterprise PRC RMB26,671,000 - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting advisory services
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(REAEN—REEERTHABEE
(BRa®)
FEGN—SEXERAACHLE  FE AE26,671,0007 CHERERRE
(BRE®)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 2 Enterprise PRC RMB17,184,000 - - Enterprise management

Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(REGN_REEEEEABLE
(BER&%)

advisory services

FEGN_SEXERAACHLE  FE AE17,184,0007 CHERERRE
(BRE®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 3 Enterprise PRC RMB17,790,000 - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

(REBN=RELEBEABLE
(BRa®)

FEGM=REXERTACHLE  FE AE17,790,0007 CHERERRE
(BREH)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 4 Enterprise PRC RMB18,079,000 - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

(REAENOREEERTHOHCE
(BlRaE®)

FEGNOREXERAACHLE  FE AE¥18,079,0007 CEERERRE

(BERa®)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZE - =F+_H=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ZIS Bl X EMEBARFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRTES/ R+=B=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
ZBIZ§ “Z_"F CZEIZE "2_C°F

Tianjin Yangfan No. 5 Enterprise PRC RMB20,406,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

FREEMARELERLHOB LS
(BREH)

REGNLREXERLAABLE $E AE120,406,00070 TCRERERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 6 Enterprise PRC RMB17,005,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

FREEMAREEERLHOB LS
(BREH)

REGNAREXEEHICBLE  TE AE17,005,0007 TCRERERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 7 Enterprise PRC RMB17,540,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

FREEMLRELERLTHOB LS
(BREH)

REGNCREXERLAABLE $E AEH17,540,0007 TCRERERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 8 Enterprise PRC RMB19,153,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

FEEMN\REEERLTHOB LS
(BREH)

REGMN\GEXEEHACBLE  TE AE19,153,0007 CRERERRE
(BlRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 9 Enterprise PRC RMB18,974,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Partnership advisory services
(Limited Partnership)*

FEEMARELERLTHOB LS
(BREH)

REGMASEXEEHACBLE  TE AE 818,974,007 CRERERRE
(BlRa®)

Hunan Wei Gao Gaochuang PRC RMBS5,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Development, services
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* and sales of medical

(HEREREERRERAR) technology

development.

HEpmEERERRERAT HE AR 5,000,0007 BRRMNRE - BHER

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B EZE T _=F+_F=+—HIEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. F AT EEMEB AT FEHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)

(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEAE%HE s e &S FERARIEZBRRE TERH
% (E#) % (%)
—BCZf “Z--F CZEBIZE “T-CF
Shandong Weigao Ruike Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 2.78 20 97.22 80 Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(LEEBRNBERGERAR) IIl medical devices.
LEREESHEHBERMERAT ] AE20,000,0007 LERHEE-8 5
ERE-HEERE
Shandong Weigaorui New Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 3.03 20 96.97 80  Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(LREEHABRRIERAT) IIl medical devices.
URE SR ERRTERAT HE A 20,000,007 TERHEF B EZ
BRE-BEEZE
Weihai Wego Medical Materials PRC RMBS6,630,000 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(FBRERAMRERAR) IIl medical devices.
BEERERMEERAT ] AE 86,630,000 LERHEE -8 5
ERE-HEERE
Weihai Weigao Hande Medical PRC RMB15,000,000 - - 100 100 Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(AEEmEERRRRERAT) IIl medical devices.
BSEREERRNRERAR HE A 15,000,007 TERFEF B B
BRE-BEEZE
Weigao International Holding S.G. USD758,372/USD5,000,000 - - 100 35 Investment holding.
Corporation Pte., Ltd. s 75831287/ RARR-
5,000,000% 7
Wego Medical (Thailand) Co., Ltd THA THB3,000,000 - - 98 - Sales of medical devices.
e REI#3,000,0007 HEBRRMA-
Weigao New Life* PRC RMB15,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
(LREEHEBERHERAE) V) Type |, Type Il and Type
Il medical devices.
UREEHERERAERARV)  TE ARH15,000,00078 EERMES-B -
BRE-BRERE-
Weihai Liansheng Medical PRC nil/ RMB2,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
Equipment Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and Type
(FEHERESHBRAR) V) IIl medical devices.
BEHEBRESMERAZV) HE Z / A\R%2,000,0007 LERHEE -8 5

BRF-HRERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

ETREHF+HTRA=ET—

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

BILEFEE
47. ZREEEM B AFF1E
( )
Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2023 2022 2023 2022
BRETER/ ®+ZBA=+-H
WEARAHE e 2W§$ FEERGEZERRE TEEH
% (E1) % (F#2)
ZBIZE ZCCF IZEIZE “2TCF
Zhejiang Quantum* PRC RMB20,000,000/ - - 48.28 - Production and sales of
(IEFEREERERAD) (i RMB22,857,143 Type |, Type Il and Type
Il medical devices.
MWIEFEREMERAB ) HE AR#20,000,0007t,/ GERBES B FZ
AE22,857,1437c ERE-HEERE
Hunan Discovery Quantum PRC nil/ RMB2,000,000 - - 48.28 - Production and sales of
Medical Device Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and Type
(WEgRETE %%ﬁmﬁ RAE]) (vil IIl medical devices.
AREREFERENBERABV) @ %/ AR %2,000,0007 YERHEF-B B
BRE-HEERE
Shandong Weigao Precision PRC nil/ RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 - Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd* Type |, Type Il and Type
(LEEBEINEERAR) Vi) IIl medical devices.
UREBREIHEERA V) HE %/ \R#20,000,0007 GERBES B FZ
ERE-HEERE
* For identification purposes only * (ERE s 3l
Notes: M 5%
(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the (i) WERNBADNERETEMAERE
end of the year. #Ho
(i) In the opinion of the Directors, there is no subsidiary that has (i) ZEBRR BEEEFHAEEFEKX
non-controlling interests which is material to the Group. HEZIFERER B AR
(i) Shandong Weigao Group Logistic Company Limited were (i) WEHEEEEEYRERAGANR_E
deregistered on 26 October 2023. Z=F+ABZ+/BH#EER-
(iv)  Hunan Weigao Orthopaedic Devices Co., Ltd. were deregistered (ivy HEREERBEEMBERARNR

on 6 June 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

47. ZREEEMB AT FE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

48.

Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Shandong Gaowo Medical Device Co., Ltd. were deregistered
on 14 April 2023.

Weigao New Life and Weihai Liansheng Medical Equipment Co.,
Ltd. were merged by Weigao Orthopaedic on 3 January 2023.

Zhejiang Quantum and Hunan Discovery Quantum Medical
Devices Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Discovery Quantum”) were acquired
by Weigao Orthopaedic on 25 May 2023. Weigao Orthopaedic
holds 62.1429% equity interest of Zhejiang Quantum and
Hunan Discovery Quantum directly, so the company has
control over Zhejiang Quantum and Hunan Discovery Quantum
indirectly.

Shandong Weigao Precision Technology Co., Ltd were
established on 18 September 2023.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the subsequent event disclosed in Note
33(c), there is no significant subsequent event after the
reporting period.

48.

(&)

MizE © (48)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

LWEREABRSEMERABANR_-F
T=FNA+HAEEEL

BEHERESHERESMAERA
BN E_=F—HB=-—H#E=a8"
B o

MIEFRPEERETFEBERENE
RAB (DHEERET) R -=
EFR-+EEWES BRI &
EERNEBEANIEFRNELR
ET62.1429% M g1 > i A Bl R %
BRI EF R HmERETF -

LEREBTREERADR D
—=E#AB+ABRI

WmEHRESEN

BRMIEE33(OFTINEE 2 iR R IR SN
RESHEBEERRRER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

49. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49. QG ZMERRE
POSITION
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFTRT ARETT
Non-current assets JEREMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN =YL 2,802,923 2,832,751
Investment properties KREMZE 361,389 367,852
Right-of-use assets FREEE 254,041 263,066
Financial assets at fair value through #ZAFEFAEBHRITEZ
profit or loss THMEE - 572
Investments in subsidiaries R EABNKE 1,551,684 1,547,251
Interest in an associate R—EBE QBN R 1,347,791 1,251,934
Interest in a joint venture N—EEErENES 321,857 330,226
Deferred tax assets EIERIBE & 65,077 59,779
Deposit paid for acquiring property, — FEUXEEYZE R K&
plant and equipment B ziZE 69,859 93,245
Prepayments FBMRIE 68,757 70,967
6,843,378 6,817,643
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 5B 548,116 646,410
Trade and other receivables FE UK B 53 BR 70 R HL Ath & LUK
B 4,447,222 3,843,572
Financial assets at fair value through AT Et ABTIEZ
profit or loss THEE 371 -
Debt instruments at fair value through #AFEFF AEMEE B A
other comprehensive income STEZEB LA 159,239 312,771
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NETE O] 7,120,946 6,782,667
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BIEE S REIRITER 200,159 166,301
Cash and bank balances RERIRITAEER 1,721,481 1,515,555
14,197,534 13,267,276
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade and other payables P& B 5 BRI E A FE
IE 2,281,635 1,418,905
Contract liabilities EEENE 260,786 290,709
Borrowings (EEN 300,000 300,000
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFABRZIEZ
through profit or loss ERMER 7,653 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET I 8 A B R/ IE 3,532,039 4,331,060
Lease liabilities HEaE 10,603 11,301
Financial guarantee contracts MBIEREL 7,497 7,304
6,400,213 6,359,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE _ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEFE

49. ZATZHMBRAR @)

POSITION (continued)

49. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
== =S

+=R +=A

=+—H =+—H

ARBFrT ARETFT

Net current assets BB EFRE 7,797,321 6,907,997

Total assets less current liabilities BMEERMEISE 14,640,699 13,725,640
Capital and reserves BAR K #E

Share capital & A 457,063 457,063

Reserves (B 12,638,658 11,699,124

Total equity R AR KB 13,095,721 12,156,187
Non-current liabilities JERBER

Borrowings il 498,497 497,497

Bonds payable &S 995,405 993,977

Financial guarantee contracts THEEREHK - 7,497

Deferred income B3I A 13,052 30,227

Lease liabilities HEaRE 38,024 40,255

1,544,978 1,569,453

Total equity and non-current liabilities # % K IE R BN & EARZR 14,640,699 13,725,640
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR M A
For the year ended 31 December 2023 H{E—ZE " =-F+_B=+—HIEFE

49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49. ZABZHBIRRAR @
POSITION (continued)

Information about the movements in reserves of the BREXANGINREHARHEEBEEE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: 2B BE
Statutory
Share Other surplus Retained
premium reserves reserve profits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HERE
R {7 &8 Hithf# s fifE et Fo
ARETT AREBFr AR®TR AREFTx AR%T:R
At 1 January 2022 W& "F—-BF—H 2,743,144 359,828 226,117 8,220,181 11,549,270
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 785,192 785,192
Share-based payments (Note 38(a)) MR AERAR
(Bt5%38(a)) - 81,077 - - 81,077
Dividends recognised as distribution RAHPEHRE - - - (690,165) (690,165)
Other equity changes of an associate —EHEARNEMER
E) - 50,095 - - 50,095
Impact from business combination under HEZHTERAHN
common control A - (76,345) - - (76,345)
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZ&+ZA
=+—H 2,743,144 414,655 226,117 8,315,208 11,699,124
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 1,593,673 1,593,673
Share-based payments (Note 38(a)) MR AERAR
(Bt5%38(a)) - 42,426 - - 42,426
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADRNEE - - - (696,565) (696,565)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=ZF
+ZB=+—-8 2,743,144 457,081 226,117 9,212,316 12,638,658
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